
    
    
 

 
SOUTH FLORIDA 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY 

 

GOVERNING BOARD  
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
February 27, 2015 

9:30 a.m. 
 

South Florida Regional Transportation Authority 
Board Room 

800 NW 33rd Street 
Pompano Beach, FL 33064 

 
 
SFRTA BOARD MEETINGS ARE SCHEDULED ON THE FOURTH FRIDAY OF EACH 
MONTH AT 9:30 A.M.  FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CALL (954)942-RAIL (7245).  TIME 
OF MEETINGS SUBJECT TO CHANGE. 
 
 

SFRTA Board Members  
Commissioner Steven L. Abrams  Commissioner Bruno Barreiro, Chair   James A. Cummings 
Andrew Frey    Frank Frione      Marie Horenburger  
Nick Inamdar                               Mayor Tim Ryan      James A. Scott               
James A. Wolfe  
              

             

Executive Director 
Jack Stephens 

  

 

REVISED 
02-23-15 

 1 





    
    
R2.  MOTION TO APPROVE: Joint Participation Agreement (JPA) FM #406800-2-58-05 between 
the South Florida Regional Transportation Authority (SFRTA) and the Florida Department of 
Transportation (FDOT), in the amount of $150,000.00 for SFRTA to provide grade crossing 
improvements at NW 25th Street to support the Miami Intermodal Center (MIC) project. 
 
Department: Engineering and Construction  Department Director: Daniel R. Mazza, P.E.   
Project Manager: Michael Lulo   Procurement Director:   Christopher Bross 
    
R3.  MOTION TO APPROVE:  South Florida Regional Transportation Authority (SFRTA) Shuttle 
Bus Service and Financial Plan for fiscal year (FY) 2016-2020. 
 
Department: Planning and Capital Development Department Director:  William L. Cross, P.E. 
Project Manager:  Loraine Cargill                             Procurement Director:   Christopher Bross 
  
R4.  MOTION TO APPROVE:  One-year extension of Operating Agreement with the City of Fort 
Lauderdale for the Uptown Shuttle Link for continued midday shuttle bus service originating from 
SFRTA’s Cypress Creek Tri-Rail Station.    
 
Department: Planning & Capital Development        Department Director:  William L. Cross, P.E 
Project Manager: Loraine Cargill              Procurement Director:   Christopher Bross 
 
R5.  MOTION TO APPROVE: Purchase and Sale Agreement (Agreement) to purchase a 2.86-acre 
parcel from the Port of Palm Beach District (Port) required for storm water retention and to provide 
driveway access to the new Northern Layover Facility. 
 
Department: Planning and Capital Development Department Director:  William L. Cross, P.E. 
Project Manager:  Jessica Vargas Astaiza  Procurement Director:  Christopher Bross 
 
R6.  MOTION TO APPROVE:  South Florida Rail Corridor - Railroad Reimbursement Agreement 
between the Florida Department of Transportation (“FDOT”) and the South Florida Regional 
Transportation Authority (“SFRTA”) for Watchman or Flagging Services. 
 
Department: Engineering and Construction Department Director:  Daniel R. Mazza, P.E. 
Project Manager:  Daniel R. Mazza, P.E.  Procurement Director:   Christopher Bross 
 
R7. MOTION TO APPROVE: Amendment No. 3 to the South Florida Regional Transportation 
Authority (SFRTA) FY 2014-2015 Operating Budget to increase the Budget by $150,000 for the 
SFRTA to provide grade crossing improvements at NW 25th Street to support the Miami Intermodal 
Center (MIC) project. 
 
Department: Finance        Department Director:  Richard D. Chess  
Project Manager:  Elizabeth Walter-Ebersole                Procurement Director:   Christopher Bross 
 
R8.  MOTION TO APPROVE:  Motion to approve the General Counsel Contract with Teresa J. 
Moore. 
Department: Legal     Department Director:  Jeffrey Olson (Deputy  
                                                                                    General Counsel) 
Project Manager:     Procurement Director:   N/A 
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R9. MOTION TO APPROVE: Delegation to the Executive Director to: 
  

1. Enter into the Environmental Services Contract and associated Work Orders in an annual 
amount not to exceed $2.7 million, subject to Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) 
approval 

 
2. Enter into a Second Amendment to the Operating Agreement with FDOT, as needed, to 

reallocate monies between the cost tables (the exhibits to the First Amendment) 
 
Department: Executive    Department Director:  Jack L. Stephens 
Project Manager:  Jack L. Stephens                         Procurement Director:   Christopher Bross 
 

INFORMATION / PRESENTATION ITEMS 

Action not required, provided for information purposes only.  If discussion is desired by any Board 
Member, however, that item may be considered separately. 
 
I-1.  PRESENTATION- Fiscal Year 2013-14 Annual Audit Reports 
 
I-2.  PRESENTATION – Federal Legislation Update 
 
I-3  INFORMATION - Tri-Rail Coastal Link on the FEC Corridor 
 

COMMITTEE REPORTS / MINUTES 
Action not required, provided for information purposes only.  If discussion is desired by any Board 
Member, however, that item may be considered separately. 
 

A. PROPERTY TASK FORCE 
B. CONSTRUCTION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
C. PLANNING TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
D. MARKETING COMMITTEE 
E. OPERATIONS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 
F. CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
G. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
H. LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE  
I. ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 
J. LEGAL SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

MONTHLY REPORTS 

Action not required, provided for information purposes only.  If discussion is desired by any Board 
Member, however, that item may be considered separately. 

A. ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION MONTHLY PROGRESS                                   
REPORTS –   January 

B. RIDERSHIP GRAPHS – January 
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C. ON-TIME PERFORMANCE GRAPHS –  January 

D. MARKETING MONTHLY SUMMARY –  January 

E. BUDGETED INCOME STATEMENT – January 

F. PAYMENTS OVER $2,500.00 – January 

G. REVENUE AND FARE EVASION REPORTS – January  

H. SOLICITATION SCHEDULE – January 

I. CONTRACT ACTIONS EXECUTED UNDER THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S 
AUTHORITY  - January 

J. CONTRACT ACTIONS EXECUTED UNDER THE CONSTRUCTION OVERSIGHT 
COMMITTEE  – January 

K. PROPERTY TASK FORCE – PROJECT SCHEDULE  - N/A 

L. SECURITY REPORT - January 

M. EXPIRING CONTRACTS – January 

N.  CONTRACT ACTIONS EXECUTED UNDER GENERAL COUNSEL’S AUTHORITY  -  
January 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORTS/COMMENTS 
 
LEGAL COUNSEL COMMENTS  

 
CHAIR COMMENTS 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special accommodation 
to participate in this proceeding, must at least 48 hours prior to the meeting, provide a written request directed to the Executive Office at 800 NW 33rd 
Street, Pompano Beach, Florida, or telephone (954) 942-RAIL (7245) for assistance; if hearing impaired, telephone (800) 273-7545 (TTY) for 
assistance. 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Governing Board of the South Florida Regional Transportation Authority with respect to 
any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure that a 
verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

Persons wishing to address the Board are requested to complete an “Appearance Card” and will be limited to three (3) minutes.  Please see the Minutes 
Clerk prior to the meeting. 
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Exhibit 2
DRAFT - 2/18/2015

Line Proposed

1 Funding Sources 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2 SFRTA General Operating Funds 5,306,140$                                4,863,591$                                4,844,148$                                4,940,923$                                5,037,699$                                
3 Developer Contribution (Boca Center Shuttle) 100,000$                                    100,000$                                    100,000$                                    100,000$                                    100,000$                                    
4 City of Opa-Locka (Opa-Locka South Shuttle) 94,738$                                      -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
5 City of Fort Lauderdale (Uptown Shuttle Link) 181,773$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
6 FTA Job Access Reverse Commute 449,722$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
7 FDOT Service Development Grant (Boca Center Shuttle) 110,884$                                    110,884$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            

8 Total Revenues 6,132,373$              4,963,591$              4,944,148$              5,040,923$              5,137,699$              
9 Tri-Rail Shuttle Routes (Operated by SFRTA)

10 Lake Worth Shuttle (School Board/Congress Ave.) 210,957$                                    217,286$                                    223,615$                                    229,944$                                    236,272$                                    
11 Boca Center Shuttle (Town Center Mall/Lynn Univ.) 114,418$                                    117,850$                                    121,283$                                    124,715$                                    128,148$                                    
12 Deerfield Beach Shuttle 1 (Newport Center) 114,418$                                    117,850$                                    121,283$                                    124,715$                                    128,148$                                    
13 Deerfield Beach Shuttle 2 (Downtown Deerfield-Boca) 128,720$                                    132,581$                                    136,443$                                    140,305$                                    144,166$                                    
14 Pompano Beach Shuttle (Park Central/Copans) 128,720$                                    132,581$                                    136,443$                                    140,305$                                    144,166$                                    
15 Cypress Creek Shuttle 1 (East to Hospitals) 235,986$                                    243,066$                                    250,145$                                    257,225$                                    264,305$                                    
16 Cypress Creek Shuttle 2 (FDOT Route) 239,562$                                    246,749$                                    253,936$                                    261,122$                                    268,309$                                    
17 Cypress Creek Shuttle 3 (Powerline/Casino Route) 178,778$                                    184,141$                                    189,504$                                    194,867$                                    200,231$                                    
18 Fort Lauderdale Shuttle 1 (Broward Blvd. Route) 503,697$                                    625,301$                                    643,514$                                    661,727$                                    679,939$                                    
19 Fort Lauderdale International Airport Shuttles (1, 2, and Circulator) 1,017,050$                                1,047,562$                                1,078,073$                                1,108,585$                                1,139,096$                                
20 Sheridan Street Shuttle 96,540$                                      99,436$                                      102,332$                                    105,228$                                    108,125$                                    
21 Sub-Total 2,968,845$                                3,164,404$                                3,256,571$                                3,348,738$                                3,440,905$                                
22 Approved JARC Shuttle Routes (Operated by SFRTA)
23 Fort Lauderdale Shuttle 2 (Hospital/ 17th St.) 189,504$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
24 Fort Lauderdale Shuttle 3 (Weekends) (Downtown/Hospital) 181,889$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
25 Opa-Locka South Shuttle (Miami-Dade College) 379,008$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
26 Sub-Total 750,402$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
27 Partnerships/Payments (Not operated by SFRTA)
28 MDT Annual Payment 666,666$                                    666,666$                                    666,666$                                    666,666$                                    666,666$                                    
29 Palm Tran Annual Payment 666,666$                                    666,666$                                    666,666$                                    666,666$                                    666,666$                                    
30 Boca Raton APOC East and West Shuttles Partnership 140,000$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
31 City of Fort Lauderdale (Uptown Shuttle Link) 181,773$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
32 Downtown Fort Lauderdale TMA Routes Partnership 161,509$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
33 South Florida Education Center Shuttle Partnership 95,000$                                      95,000$                                      95,000$                                      95,000$                                      95,000$                                      
34 Delray Beach CRA Roundabout Partnership 75,000$                                      -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
35 Boca Center Shuttle Partnership (FDOT SD Grant) 110,684$                                    110,684$                                    -$                                            -$                                            -$                                            
36 Sub-Total 2,097,298$                                1,539,016$                                1,428,332$                                1,428,332$                                1,428,332$                                
37 Other
38 5% Contingency 290,827$                                    235,171$                                    234,245$                                    238,853$                                    243,462$                                    
39 Special Event Service 25,000$                                      25,000$                                      25,000$                                      25,000$                                      25,000$                                      
40 Sub-Total 315,827$                                    260,171$                                    259,245$                                    263,853$                                    268,462$                                    

41 Total Expenses 6,132,373$              4,963,591$              4,944,148$              5,040,923$              5,137,699$              

42 Revenue Surplus/Shortfall -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    

ASSUMPTIONS: 
Red cells indicate discontinuation of funding.

Base Rate - $55 per hour - 3% Yearly Increase to Contract Hourly Rate on SFRTA-operated routes.
Lines 4,6, 23-25: JARC Routes (FL-2,FL-3, OPA-S) due to sunset - Funding needed for FY17 and beyond.
Lines 7 and 35:  Additional Boca Raton Shuttle 1 Enhanced Service to be approximately 100% reimbursed for 2 years.
Line 18: FL-1 moves to 2 buses operating seven days a week in FY 17 for JARC sunset mitigation of FL-2, FL-3. 
Lines 18 and 19: New larger buses on FLL Airport and Fort Lauderdale 1 Routes at $68 per hour operating rate.
Lines 30, 32 and 34: Expiring funding partnerships (APOC, TMA, Delray Roundabout) not renewed.
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Exhibit 2- DRAFT SFRTA Five Year Shuttle Bus Service and Financial Plan (FY 2016 Thru FY 2020)
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MESSAGE FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 
 
This is the first time I have the privilege to write to you as the Executive Director of the South Florida 
Regional Transportation Authority (SFRTA), having assumed that position in February after the departure of 
long-time Executive Director Joe Giulietti, who left the authority in January to become President of Metro-
North Commuter Railroad, MTA, New York. 
 
Having spent more than a decade with SFRTA as its Deputy Executive Director, I came into this position with 
full knowledge of its many challenges and achievements.  Fiscal Year 2014 brought a number of milestones 
that I am pleased to have the opportunity to share with you. 
 
First and foremost, we are finally in receipt of virtually all of the new rolling stock we had on order.  Our 
passengers are now enjoying the comfort of 24 new Rotem Hyundai passenger cars and the reliability 
provided by 11 new American-made locomotives.  One final locomotive remains to be delivered. The 
purchase of the new equipment was made possible through the support of the Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA) and the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT). 
 
In spite of plummeting gas prices, ridership continued to show modest growth during Fiscal Year 2014. The 
rate of approximately 5 percent exceeded the national average of 1.5% according to the American Public 
Transportation Association.  Ridership again exceeded 4 million passengers.  More than 1 million of those 
passengers availed themselves of the convenience of the complementary SFRTA-operated shuttle bus 
connections. 
 

Substantial progress was made on the construction of the new Central Station at the Miami Intermodal Center 
(MIC) at the Miami International Airport. When the station opens in early 2015, it will complete what will 
become a world-class gateway to South Florida and the entire state. 
 
The SFRTA benefits from the dedication and guidance of the 10-member Governing Board, which has been 
very supportive of the SFRTA’s committed, hard-working professional staff. The senior management team at 
the Authority has been together for more than 10 years, creating a continuity of leadership enjoyed by few 
other transit agencies in this country. 
 
Our future appears very bright indeed. With a new station coming on board in Miami, the construction of a 
LEED certified station in Pompano Beach adjacent to a new SFRTA operations center, continued discussion 
about operating passenger rail on the FEC corridor through the Tri-Rail Coastal Link project, the possibility of 
expanding service into Jupiter, and anticipating the assumption of the responsibility for dispatch and 
maintenance of the entire corridor, the SFRTA is poised to enhance its positive impact on the region and 
increase its service to the people of South Florida. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jack L. Stephens 
Executive Director 
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December 18, 2014 
 
 
Commissioner Bruno A. Barrerio, Chair and  
The Governing Board 
South Florida Regional Transportation Authority 
Pompano Beach, Florida  
 
State law requires that each local government complete its financial statements for the most 
recent fiscal year in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and the uniform 
chart of accounts prescribed by the Department of Financial Services.  In accordance with state 
law, staff is proud to present the South Florida Regional Transportation Authority (SFRTA) 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.  This 
report signifies the SFRTA commitment to provide financial information that is accurate, 
concise, reliable, and of the utmost quality to its Governing Board, the citizens of the tri-county 
area, and all other interested parties. 
 
The SFRTA developed this report with an emphasis on clarity, presentation, and completeness, 
in all material respects, and to present fairly the financial position and results of the SFRTA 
operations.  All disclosures necessary to gain a full understanding of the SFRTA financial 
activities have been included.   
 
Assumption of Responsibility:  The SFRTA management produced this report in accordance 
with guidelines recommended by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United 
States and Canada (GFOA).  The responsibilities for the accuracy, fairness, and completeness of 
the financial statements, note disclosures, supplementary schedules, and statistical data presented 
rest with the management of the SFRTA.  It is the representation of management that the 
enclosed data presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial operations of the SFRTA. 
 
Internal Control:  The present accounting system includes the necessary internal controls to 
ensure reasonable, but not absolute assurance, regarding the safekeeping of assets against loss 
from unauthorized use or disposition.  It also ensures that adequate accounting data are combined 
to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that the cost of controls should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that 
the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 
 
Evaluations of internal control occur on a periodic basis.  We believe that the SFRTA current 
internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of 
proper recording of financial transactions. 

 
 



 

As a recipient of federal, state, and county financial assistance, the SFRTA is also responsible for 
ensuring that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations related to those programs.  The SFRTA is required to undergo an 
annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the U.S. Office of Management and 
Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States and Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations 
and the requirements described in Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, State of Florida. 
The results of the single audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, provided no findings 
related to the compliance requirements of OMB A-133 or violations of applicable laws and 
regulations.  Information relating to findings, recommendations, and all other aspects concerning 
this single audit are included in a separate document. 
 
Independent Audit:  The Sharpton Group, P.A. an independent Certified Public Accounting 
Firm, has audited the financial statements of the SFRTA.  The Sharpton Group, P.A.  rendered 
an unmodified opinion on the financial statements in their report located in the Financial Section 
on page 13. 
 
Management’s Discussion & Analysis (MD&A):  The MD&A provides the reader of our 
financial statements with an overview of our current financial condition.  The information 
contained in the MD&A is presented in greater detail than the information in this Letter of 
Transmittal.  The MD&A can be found on pages 15 – 31 in the CAFR. 
 
SFRTA PROFILE 
 
General Information: 
 
South Florida metropolitan area encompasses the southeastern part of the U.S. State of Florida 
and covers the counties of Miami-Dade, Broward, and Palm Beach, which are the three most 
populous counties in Florida.  The term "South Florida" is roughly synonymous with the Gold 
Coast.  In 2014, the population of South Florida was estimated at 5.8 million by the US Census 
Bureau making it the eighth largest metropolitan area in the United States behind New York, Los 
Angeles, Chicago, Dallas, Philadelphia, Houston and Washington D.C. 
 
The South Florida area is locally served by the SFRTA, Broward County Transit (BCT), Palm Tran 
(Palm Beach), and Miami-Dade Transit (MDT).  The SFRTA, which operates Tri-Rail, provides 
commuter rail service within the tri-county area, operating 50 weekday trains, 30 Saturday trains, 
and 30 Sunday trains along a 72-mile stretch of commuter rail. 
 
The Governing Board consists of ten members: one County Commissioner from each county 
(three appointments); one citizen appointee from each county commission (three appointments); 
a Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) – District Secretary (one appointment); and one 
governor’s appointee from each of the three counties (three appointments). 
 
Component Unit of FDOT:  The SFRTA is included as a component unit of FDOT.  FDOT 
includes the SFRTA as a component unit based on the special financing relationship that exists 
between the SFRTA and FDOT.  The SFRTA is designated as an enterprise fund of the FDOT. 
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Annual Budget:  The SFRTA Governing Board approves the SFRTA annual operating budget.  
The Governing Board must also approve any required revisions that result in an increase to total 
expenses.  The budget is maintained at a department level and is categorized by function: 
Operations, Train & Station Maintenance, Personnel Expenses, General & Administrative 
Expenses, Corporate and Community Outreach, Professional Fees, Legal, Contingency and 
Expenses transferred from/to Capital. Expenses Line item budgetary controls are maintained by 
the utilization of purchase orders limited to the boundaries of the budget and by establishing 
contractual obligations within the confines of the budget.  In addition, financial statements, 
which detail month-to-date and the year-to-date actual versus budgeted expenditure comparisons, 
are presented to the Governing Board on a monthly basis for review. 
 
Funding for the SFRTA budget is provided through fees collected at train stations, subsidies 
provided by FDOT, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and the three counties serviced by 
the SFRTA. 
 
ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 
 
Local Economy: 
 
With approximately 91.5 million visitors providing an estimated $71.8 billion to the Florida 
economy, Florida tourism is second only to California, and aside from Orlando, the South 
Florida area is the next major destination for tourists.  The South Florida tourism industry creates 
jobs for the region and generates many billions towards the South Florida economy. 
 
The South Florida area is also a major player in the international trade arena.  With three 
international airports, as well as, three deep-water seaports, the tri-county area provides easy 
access to Latin and South America. South Florida’s strength as an international trade player is 
evident by the fact that it ranks among the top 10 largest metropolitan areas in exports, its 
leading export being professional services to Latin America. 
 
South Florida’s economy has begun to show a slow rebound evidenced by a decrease in the 
unemployment rate from 7.1% in 2013 to 6.1% in 2014.  In addition, the housing market is 
recovering from the sinking home values the region experienced in 2007.  Fortunately, this 
encouraging recovery sign in the economy at the national, state, and local levels resulted in an 
increase in ridership in fiscal year 2014. 
 
Long Term Financial Planning: 
 
Despite the state of the local economy, the South Florida population continues to grow and the 
role of the SFRTA becomes even more crucial.  With no place to build new highways, the need 
for mass transit becomes critical.  The SFRTA is committed to creating a first-class 
transportation network by continuing to be instrumental in the planning and building of a 
transportation network that will provide for efficient and reliable movement of commuters 
throughout the tri-county region. 
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In June 2003, Governor Jeb Bush signed legislation requiring the three counties in the SFRTA 
service area to contribute $2.67 million each in funding to the SFRTA.  To date the three 
counties have contributed approximately $88.1 million, and the SFRTA has used approximately 
$48.0 million in various capital projects. 
 
At the completion of the Segment 5 project the SFRTA has expanded Tri-Rail operations from 
40 to 50 trains per day, which enabled Tri-Rail to run 20-minute headways during rush hour.  
The SFRTA estimates that these improvements will serve 19,049 average daily boardings by 
2015. 
 
In December 2009, in a special session, FDOT, per FL Statutes-Title XXVI Public 
Transportation Section 343.51, awarded the SFRTA a dedicated funding source from the State 
Transportation Trust Fund in the amount of approximately $13.3 million to support its operations 
and expansion.  This dedicated revenue stream will enable the SFRTA to continue operating its 
existing schedule of 50 trains on weekdays and 30 trains on weekends and holidays.   In addition, 
FDOT is committed to provide to the SFRTA approximately $17.3 million for fiscal year  2014-
15 for operating assistance. 
 
The Miami Airport Station, closed for more than two years for reconstruction, will reopen early 
in 2015.  The Station will provide passengers with a direct connection to the airport terminal by 
way of an escalator that will transport them to the Miami Intermodal Center (MIC). 
 
The SFRTA received 2 new locomotives in FY 2014 and will be receiving an additional 10 in 
FY 2015. 
 
Finally, the SFRTA is in the final negotiations steps to take over the dispatch and maintenance of 
the South Florida Rail Corridor. The transition is scheduled to occur in early 2015. 
 
Relevant Financial Policies 
 
The SFRTA operates as an enterprise fund and the accounting records are maintained on an 
accrual basis of accounting. The SFRTA reviews financial policies annually with the adoption of 
the Operating and Capital Budget.  The SFRTA prepares its budgets, capital improvement plans, 
and forecasts with the various financial policies in mind, and operates in compliance with the 
policies.  The policies help to ensure the ability to meet short and long term initiatives.  
 
Major Initiatives: 
 
Tri-Rail Coastal Link (formerly known as the South Florida East Coast Corridor Transit 
Analysis Study):  
 
The FDOT District IV has been leading the South Florida East Coast Corridor (SFECC) Transit 
Analysis Study in Palm Beach, Broward, and Miami-Dade Counties since 2004.  The study 
corridor is centered on the Florida East Coast (FEC) Railway right-of-way that generally 
parallels US Route 1 in the three (3) counties.  The SFRTA has been a critical partner throughout 
the many phases of the SFECC study process.  The SFRTA staff has continually coordinated 
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with the FDOT SFECC project team, other partner agencies, and various local municipalities to 
properly plan for Tri-Rail expansion onto the FEC corridor.   
 
 The FDOT’s and The SFRTA’s differing approaches to implementation of new FEC corridor 
commuter rail services emerged in 2011, creating tremendous challenges for the project.  In early 
2012, the region’s Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO)s and Regional Planning 
Councils (RPC)s (working through the Southeast Florida Transportation Council, a.k.a. SEFTC) 
worked to reconcile and merge the differing FDOT and the SFRTA approaches.  These efforts 
led to an agreed upon new project name (“Tri-Rail Coastal Link”) and a new project process and 
framework that was expanded and developed into a formal Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU).  The MOU importantly documents the roles, responsibilities and process for all of the 
parties going forward.  The Tri-Rail Coastal Link (TRCL) Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) was unanimously approved by the region’s MPOs, RPCs and the SFRTA Governing 
Board, and signed by the State of Florida Rail Enterprise in May 2013.  SFRTA’s roles and 
responsibilities for the project going forward are clearly defined in the MOU, including: FTA 
grant recipient and project sponsor; lead of the project finance plan; lead of the 
design/engineering and construction phases; and operator of the Tri-Rail Coastal Link service.  
SFRTA will support FDOT’s role as lead for the TRCL Project Development phase, which is 
scheduled to begin in January 2015. 
 
The SFRTA’s recent efforts on the Tri-Rail Coastal Link have included continued work on an 
economic and market analysis of proposed station areas, financial plan development, extensive 
technical support work on operating scenarios and costs, and technical coordination in other 
areas.  A great deal of technical coordination now occurs with the All Aboard Florida passenger 
rail project, which proposes new privately financed and operated inter-city service along the FEC 
corridor between Miami and Orlando.  Coordination also consists of tri-party 
negotiations/discussions (FECI, FDOT, and the SFRTA) for Tri-Rail Coastal Link access rights 
to operate on the FEC corridor.  These negotiations/discussions began in the summer of 2013 and 
are still ongoing. 
 
Central Broward Transit Study (CBT): 
 
The proposed Central Broward East-West transit line runs from Fort Lauderdale-Hollywood 
International Airport (FLL) northward to downtown Fort Lauderdale, then westward to Sawgrass 
Mills Mall and the BB&T Center arena.  There are no existing tracks along the corridor, so a new 
premium transit system would have to be designed and constructed. 
 
The project’s Locally Preferred Alternative (LPA) was unanimously approved by the Broward 
MPO in 2005, and was modified along the project’s western end in 2006. The resulting 
alignment in the western area shifted away from 136th street and over to Florida Power and Light 
(FPL) and canal rights of way. 
 
In 2009, the project was renamed the Central Broward Transit (CBT) Study.  An environmental 
review process for the CBT began, with a Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS) to be 
produced at its conclusion. Alignment alternatives for the new CBT transit service were revisited 
as part of this process.  A change in the alignment has taken place in the vicinity of the South 
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Florida Education Center, as the alignment now shifts to the south (away from I-595) between 
University Drive and US 441 in order to better serve the Education Center.  The project also 
reconsidered the potential transit mode for the entire corridor.  New options propose either Bus 
Rapid Transit (BRT) for the entire alignment or a combination of Modern Streetcar for the 
eastern half of the alignment (from University Drive to the Fort Lauderdale-Hollywood 
International Airport and downtown Fort Lauderdale).  The project now has a greater focus on 
integrating with shorter-term transit plans, such as the forthcoming 595 Express bus service and 
The Wave (downtown Fort Lauderdale streetcar). 
 
In October 2012, the Broward MPO approved a revised LPA for the CBT Study.  The LPA 
consists of BRT/express bus between the Sawgrass Mills/BB&T Center and the South Florida 
Education Center, with Modern Streetcar on the eastern half of the alignment (from the South 
Florida Education Center to the Fort Lauderdale-Hollywood International Airport, downtown 
Fort Lauderdale, and the Fort Lauderdale Tri-Rail Station).  Coordination continues among the 
CBT project team and the partnership (now being led by SFRTA) that working to develop the 
Wave Streetcar project in Downtown Fort Lauderdale.  It is increasingly likely that elements of 
the CBT project will become extensions of the Wave Streetcar, with a partnership led by FDOT 
District IV to study CBT/Wave extensions to Fort Lauderdale-Hollywood International Airport 
and to Port Everglades/Broward County Convention Center in greater detail beginning in 2015. 
 
Leadership in Environmental and Energy Design (LEED) 
 
In November 2011, the SFRTA received $ 5.7 million from the FTA Transit Investment in 
Greenhouse Gas and Energy (TIGGER) III Program to construct Tri-Rail’s first green, LEED 
certified, sustainable train station. The project will showcase a prototype “Green Demonstration” 
train station with enhanced safety, passenger amenities, and vehicular circulation.  The station 
will feature electric vehicle charging stations, solar panels on platform canopies for station 
energy generation, upgraded LED lighting and a new pedestrian bridge over tracks consistent 
with other Tri-Rail stations along the corridor.  The upgrades are expected to reduce station 
operating and maintenance costs, improve station area circulation and access and exhibit 
landscaping methods that will potentially conserve water and reduce pollution.   
 
In 2014, the SFRTA Governing Board approved the pursuit of a new Operations Center at the 
Pompano Beach Tri-Rail Station.  Analysis determined that the east parking lot area at the 
Pompano Beach Station was the preferred location for the new Operations Center.  The new 
Operations Center and previously funded Green Demonstration station have now been combined 
into one project, which will have numerous LEED certified elements.  Construction on the 
project is anticipated to begin in 2015. 
 
The Wave 
 
In 2010 and 2011, the SFRTA became more directly involved in The Wave, a planned 2.7 mile 
streetcar system in downtown Fort Lauderdale.  Since 2004, a partnership led by the Downtown 
Development Authority (DDA) of Fort Lauderdale has been steadily advancing the project from 
concept to reality.  In 2008, a LPA was endorsed by Broward County, the City of Fort 
Lauderdale, and the DDA, and became immersed in the FTA Small Starts process. The SFRTA 
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became part of The Wave partnership in 2010, and in 2011 agreed to become the FTA project 
sponsor and manager of design and construction. 
 
Many positive steps have been taken throughout in recent years.  In June 2012, The Wave was 
awarded an $18 million in Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery (TIGER) 
grant by the U.S Department of Transportation.  Key Federal environmental documentation has 
also been completed.  An Alternatives Analysis/Environmental Assessment (AA/EA) was 
completed, with FTA issuing a Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) for the 
Analysis/Environmental Assessment (AA/EA) document in September of 2012.  The City of 
Fort Lauderdale approved a special assessment district along the Wave Streetcar route on July 9, 
2013, which is a key funding component of the project.   In addition, a FTA Small Starts grant 
for the Wave has recently been recommended as part of the President’s FY 2015 budget, but is 
currently pending approval by Congress.  
 
West Palm Beach Intermodal Center: 
 
In late 2003, the SFRTA, in conjunction with Palm Beach County, the City of West Palm Beach, 
FDOT and the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council (TCRPC), formed a task force to 
evaluate the development potential of properties surrounding the current West Palm Beach Tri-
Rail Station.  The task force used the community charrette process to develop a Master Plan for 
Transit Oriented Development (TOD) on an approximately 36-acre site. 
Stations on mobility-enhanced transit corridors are conducive to Transit Oriented Development 
(TOD).  The site has the potential for a successful TOD implementation that will enhance transit 
services, while encouraging additional supportive land uses within proximity of the station.  
The Palm Beach County Health Department headquarters building (east of the station) has been 
constructed, which is one of the TOD components.  Construction was also completed in May 
2009 for the Palm Tran intermodal center and bus transfer facility (immediately west of the 
station).  The intermodal center also includes a new surface parking facility for Tri-Rail and 
Palm Tran patrons.  The parking facility consists of 118 new parking spaces and was opened to 
the public in August 2009.  Since then, TOD plans for the intermodal center and surrounding 
properties has progressed. These include a proposal for a large-scale mixed-use development that 
would be located on top of the recently completed bus transfer facility and surface parking lot.  
The Palm Beach County Commission approved key elements of the TOD plan in 2012, allowing 
for the project to move forward.    
The City of West Palm Beach is also pursuing short-term improvements on the east side of the 
station, consisting of parking lot redesign and resurfacing, pedestrian friendly features, and 
lighting upgrades.  A portion of the funding for these east side station improvements will come 
from federal earmark funds originally granted to the SFRTA.  The parking lot redesign and 
pedestrian enhancement components of the east side improvements were completed in mid-2012, 
with additional enhancements being constructed in the Fall of 2014.  
 
Awards and Acknowledgements 
 
The GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the 
SFRTA for its CAFR report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.  In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
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organized CAFR.  This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and 
applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current 
CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are 
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
 
Once again, the SFRTA has successfully prepared an outstanding CAFR.  An achievement made 
possible by the dedicated service of the entire staff.  Special thanks go to the staff of the Finance 
Department for their support and devotion to this project.  We can praise them all for their 
continued efforts to improve performance and reporting excellence.   
 
Additionally, we extend our appreciation to The Sharpton Group, P.A. for their guidance and 
professional assistance in the preparation of this report. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
  
 
 
 
Jack L. Stephens                                         Richard D. Chess, MBA 
Executive Director                                      Director of Finance  
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MISSION STATEMENT 
 

“To  coordinate, develop and implement, in cooperation with all 
appropriate levels of government, private enterprise and citizens-at-

large in the community, a viable regional transportation system in 
South Florida that endeavors to meet the desires and needs for the 

movement of people, goods and services.” 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

To the Governing Board of 
South Florida Regional Transportation Authority 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the South 
Florida Regional Transportation Authority (the “SFRTA”), a component unit of the Florida Department 
of Transportation, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the SFRTA’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion  
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the SFRTA as of June 30, 2014, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
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Other Matters  
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 15–31 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the SFRTA’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplemental 
schedules of operating expenses and statistical and general information section are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The supplemental schedules 
of operating expenses listed in the table of contents are the responsibility of management and were derived 
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental schedules of operating expenses 
are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory 
section and statistical and general information section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18, 
2014 on our consideration of the SFRTA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the SFRTA’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
 
December 18, 2014 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2014  
 
 
As management of the South Florida Regional Transportation Authority (SFRTA) we wrote this 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) to provide the reader of our Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) with an overview of our current financial condition.  This 
Analysis should be read in conjunction with our Letter of Transmittal, found on pages 1 - 8 of 
this CAFR, and the financial statements immediately following the MD&A.  Our intent was to 
make this analysis objective, based on currently known facts. 
 
The SFRTA's CAFR consists of four parts: a Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the basic 
financial statements, Notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information.   
 
The MD&A is also divided into four sections: 
 
Section I-Overview of the Financial Statements:  Section I gives the reader an overview of the 
SFRTA’s basis of accounting, measurement focus, the types of financial statements the SFRTA 
issues and financial highlights for fiscal year 2014.   
 
Section II-Financial Analysis of the SFRTA:  This section provides the reader with an analysis 
of changes in the SFRTA’s net position, an analysis of the SFRTA’s operations and financial 
condition for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, condensed financial information derived from 
the Statement of Net Position, the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  In 
many cases, we have provided a comparison to fiscal year 2013. 
 
Section III-Changes in Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt:  This section discusses the 
SFRTA’s purchase of capital assets, depreciation expense and the value of any asset disposed of 
during the year.  This section also describes the SFRTA’s policy on long-term debt. 
 
Section IV-Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates:  In Section IV, the SFRTA 
staff discusses known facts, decisions or conditions that could, or will have an impact on the 
SFRTA’s operations. 
 
There is no discussion on budgets since an analysis on budgets for Enterprise Funds is not one of 
the items specifically described by Paragraph 11 of Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 34.  There is, however, information concerning the SFRTA’s budget in Note 
1.G in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
There is also no discussion on infrastructure assets as the SFRTA does not report these assets on a 
modified accrual basis, because the SFRTA operates as an enterprise fund, the SFRTA records its 
assets on the full accrual basis. 
 
I. OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The SFRTA’s fiscal year starts July 1, and ends June 30.  The SFRTA operates as an enterprise fund 
and adheres to the accounting standards as set forth by the GASB, including GASB Statements Nos. 
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33 and 34 and all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements, prior 
to November 30, 1989. 

For reporting purposes, the SFRTA considers itself a special-purpose government engaged only 
in business-type activities.  The required financial statements for this type of entity are:  

1. Statement of Net Position:  This statement is quite similar to the balance sheet used 
in commercial businesses. 

2. Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position:  This statement 
puts an emphasis on total net assets and is quite similar to a profit and loss statement 
used in commercial businesses. 

3. Statement of Cash Flows (Direct Method):  This statement shows cash flows, 
both inward and outward in terms of operating activities, financing activities and 
investing activities. 

The enterprise fund Statements of Net Position; and Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting.  The economic resources measurement focus is essentially full commercial 
accounting with depreciation of capital assets.  The accrual basis of accounting recognizes 
revenue in the period in which they are earned and become measurable and recognizes expenses in 
the period in which they are incurred.  The determination of net loss is measured by the matching of 
revenue earned with expenses incurred. 

The SFRTA records all assets and all liabilities on the Statement of Net Position.  The SFRTA 
records capital assets in the Statement of Net Position at historical cost net of accumulated 
depreciation.  In accordance with the SFRTA’s policies and procedures, the SFRTA capitalizes all 
assets costing $1,000 or more with a useful life greater than one year, except for land and 
construction in progress, and depreciates assets over their useful life (Note 1. J of the Notes to the 
Financial Statements provides additional detail on depreciation). 
 
The SFRTA defines operating revenue and operating expenses as those revenue and expenses 
that can be attributable to the operations of its trains.  Operating revenue consists of fares and 
other services.  Fares are revenue collected from passengers.  Other services consist of revenue 
generated at train stations, such as vending machine revenue.  Operating expenses are those 
expenses, which are necessary for the daily operations of the trains and include train-operating 
costs, marketing costs, engineering costs, planning costs, legal costs, general and administrative 
costs and depreciation.  Depreciation is a non-funded expense.  The SFRTA classifies interest 
income, subsidies and grants as Non-Operating Revenue. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
• In fiscal year 2014, Broward, Miami-Dade and Palm Beach Counties contributed the 

eleventh $2.67 million contribution ($8.01 million in total) to the SFRTA.  Since fiscal year 
2004, Broward, Miami-Dade and Palm Beach Counties have contributed $8.01 million per 
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year to the SFRTA.  Total received to date is approximately $88.1 million. In fiscal year 
2007, the SFRTA used $7 million to leverage additional Federal and State funds for the 
Segment 5 project, and approximately $1.4 million of the Counties’ Contributions were used 
toward the purchase of commuter railcars in fiscal year 2008.  In fiscal year 2009 and fiscal 
year 2010, the SFRTA used approximately $1.4 million and $1.2 million, respectively, for 
various capital projects.  In addition, the entire 2010 contribution of $8.01 million was used 
to fund the SFRTA’s operations.  In fiscal year 2011, and fiscal year 2012, the SFRTA used 
approximately $1.9 and $11.5 million to fund various capital projects. In fiscal year 2013, the 
SFRTA used approximately $10.9 million to fund various capital projects. In fiscal year 
2014, the SFRTA used approximately $4.6 million to fund various capital projects. As of 
June 30, 2014, the remaining funds of approximately $40.1 million will be used to leverage 
funds for future capital projects. 

 
• In fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA’s total net position was approximately $592.1 million 

reflecting an increase of approximately $2.1 million or 0.4%.  Approximately $18.9 million 
or 3.2% of the net position are unrestricted.  The increase in total net position is due to the 
increase in net investment in capital assets of approximately $831,000 and a net increase in 
restricted position and unrestricted position of $1.3 million. In fiscal year 2013, the SFRTA’s 
total net position was approximately $589.9 million reflecting a decrease of approximately 
$5.9 million or 1.0%.  Approximately $21.0 million or 3.6% of the 2013 net position are 
unrestricted.  The decrease in total net position was due to a decrease in net investment in 
capital assets of approximately $3.8 million and a decrease in restricted and unrestricted 
position of approximately $2.0 million. 

 
• In fiscal year 2014, operating expenses, before depreciation, increased by approximately $5.4 

million or 7.7%. For fiscal year 2013, operating expenses, before depreciation, increased by 
approximately $4.9 million or 7.7%.  In fiscal year 2012, operating expenses, before 
depreciation, increased by approximately $5.2 million or 8.6% when compared to fiscal year 
2011. 

 
• Operating revenue in fiscal year 2014 increased by approximately $525,000 or 4.2%. In 

fiscal year 2013, operating revenue increased by approximately $303,000 or 2.5% while in 
fiscal 2012 operating revenue increased by approximately $1.0 million or 9.3%. 

 
II.       FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE SFRTA 
 
Summary of Net Position 
 
Current assets: 
 
Current assets in fiscal year 2014 increased by approximately by $4.3 million or 5.5%, compared 
to fiscal year 2013.  The increase in fiscal year 2014 is due to an increase of approximately $7.7 
million in accounts receivable from FDOT, FTA, Miami-Dade; an increase of approximately 
$15,000 in accounts receivable from the Broward Metropolitan Planning Organization “BMPO”; 
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and an increase of approximately $85,000 in prepaid expenses.  These increases were offset by 
the decrease of approximately $3.5 million in cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Current assets in fiscal year 2013 increased by approximately by $1.1million or 1.5% as 
compared to fiscal year 2012.  The increase in fiscal year 2013 was primarily due to an increase 
of approximately $9.4 million in accounts receivable from FDOT, FTA and Miami-Dade, an 
increase of approximately $259,000 in accounts receivable from the Broward Metropolitan 
Planning Organization “BMPO” and an increase of approximately $25,000 in prepaid expenses. 
These increases were offset by a decrease of approximately $8.5 million in cash and cash 
equivalents. 
 
Noncurrent assets: 
 
In fiscal year 2014, noncurrent assets net of accumulated depreciation increased by approximately 
$831,000 or 0.2%.  The increase in net capital assets of $831,000 in 2014 results from asset 
acquisitions of $31.9 million less depreciation of $31.1 million. For fiscal year 2013, noncurrent 
assets net of accumulated depreciation decreased by approximately $3.9 million or 0.7%.  The most 
significant decrease in noncurrent assets in fiscal year 2013 was attributable to the disposal and 
retirement of capital assets of approximately $31,000, while the most significant increase was the 
purchase of six trailer cars and eight cab cars for $7.8 million and $14.1 million, respectively. 
 
For a detailed discussion of capital assets, see “CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-
TERM DEBT” later on in this document, as well as Note 1.J, Note 3 and Note 7 in the Notes to 
the Financial Statements. 
 
Current liabilities: 
 
Current liabilities in fiscal year 2014 increased approximately $1.6 million or 11.5% compared 
to fiscal year 2013.  The increase in fiscal year 2014 is primarily due to an increase of 
approximately $1.6 million in accounts payable and accrued expenses. The current portion of 
compensated absences decreased by approximately $6,900 or 1.5%.   Unearned revenue 
increased by approximately $476,000 primarily due to an increase in Stored Value of 
approximately $457,000, and an increase of approximately $19,000 in tickets sale in the month 
of June for July 2014.  The due to other government units decreased by approximately $406,000 
which represents the amount paid to Miami-Dade County for their portion of the regional 
monthly pass train revenue.     
 
Current liabilities in fiscal year 2013 increased approximately $2.0 million or 15.9% compared 
to fiscal year 2012.  The increase in fiscal year 2013 is due to an increase of approximately 
$680,000 in accounts payable and accrued expenses, and an increase of approximately $678,000 
in other liabilities.  The current portion of compensated absences increased by approximately 
$97,000 or 27.2%.   Unearned revenue increased by approximately $595,000 due to an increase 
in Stored Value of approximately $614,000, and a decrease of approximately $19,000 in tickets 
sale in the month of June for July 2013.  Due to other government units increased by 
approximately $276,000 which represents the amount due to Miami-Dade County for their 
portion of the regional monthly pass train revenue. 
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Noncurrent liabilities: 
 
In fiscal year 2014, non-current liabilities increased by approximately $1.4 million or 34.5% 
which was primarily the result of the increase of approximately $1.4 million in deposits.  The 
noncurrent portion of compensated absences decreased by approximately $10,000 or 1.5%.  The 
SFRTA’s liability for deposits is approximately $2.8 million which is comprised primarily in funds 
from the City of Fort Lauderdale for the WAVE project. 
 
In fiscal year 2013, non-current liabilities increased by approximately $1.2 million or 43.9%, 
which was primarily the result of the increase of approximately $1.1 million in deposits. The 
noncurrent portion of compensated absences increased by approximately $146,000 or 27.2%.  
The SFRTA’s liability for deposits was approximately $1.4 million which was comprised of 
$300,000 in FDOT funds and $1.1 million in funds from the City of Fort Lauderdale for the 
WAVE project. 
 
In fiscal years 2014 and 2013, the SFRTA’s liability for Advances from FDOT represents 
approximately $2 million received when the SFRTA commenced operations and is to be repaid 
to the FDOT when and if the SFRTA ceases operations. 
 
Net position: 
 
The SFRTA’s total net position in fiscal year 2014 are comprised of net investments in capital 
assets totaling approximately $530.6 million, restricted net position for capital projects of 
approximately $42.6 million which included approximately $40.2 million in restricted funds 
from the counties and approximately $2.4 million from other funding sources; and unrestricted 
net position of approximately $18.9 million.  In fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA used approximately 
$4.6 million from the counties’ contributions to fund various capital projects mostly related to 
the purchase of railcars. 
 
The SFRTA’s total net position in fiscal year 2013 are comprised of net investments in capital 
assets totaling approximately $529.7 million, restricted net position for capital projects of 
approximately $39.1 million which included approximately $36.7 million in restricted funds 
from the counties and approximately $2.4 million from other funding sources; and unrestricted 
net position of approximately $20.9 million.  In fiscal year 2013, the SFRTA used approximately 
$10.9 million from the counties’ contributions to fund various capital projects mostly related to 
the purchase of railcars. 
 
In fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA acquired approximately $31.9 million of capital assets, an increase 
of approximately $5.6 million or 21.3 % over last year’s net addition of $26.3 million. The increase 
in capital assets additions was the result of an increase in new asset acquisitions for various projects 
in fiscal year 2014. 
 
In fiscal year 2013, the SFRTA acquired approximately $26.3 million of capital assets, a decrease of 
approximately $2.6 million or 9.1 % over last year’s net addition of $29.0 million. The decrease in 
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capital assets additions was the result of a decrease in new asset acquisitions for various projects in 
fiscal year 2013.  
 
To determine the overall performance of the SFRTA, the relative changes in net position must be 
considered.  By comparing assets and liabilities, the overall position of the SFRTA in fiscal year 
2014 resulted in an increase in net position of approximately $2.1 million or .4%.  In fiscal year 
2013, the decrease in net position was approximately $5.9 million or 1.0 %.  
 
Below is a summary of assets, liabilities and net position and the comparative summary graph for 
the past three fiscal years.  The more detailed Statement of Net Position can be found in the basic 
financial statements. 
 
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

 

 

2014 2013 2012
ASSETS

Total current and other assets $82,802,988 $78,468,160 $77,322,385
Total capital assets (net of depreciation) 530,601,966 529,771,415 533,622,790
          Total assets 613,404,954     608,239,575     610,945,175     

Total current liabilities 15,869,414       14,233,966       12,281,630       
Total noncurrent liabilities 5,489,606 4,081,934 2,836,128
          Total liabilities 21,359,020       18,315,900       15,117,758       

Net Investments in capital assets 530,601,966     529,771,415     533,622,790     
Restricted for:
    Capital Projects 42,573,001       39,163,096       42,051,728       
Unrestricted 18,870,967 20,989,164 20,152,899
Total net position (see narrative on net position above) $592,045,934 $589,923,675 $595,827,417

LIABILITIES

NET POSITION
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SUMMARY OF REVENUE 

 
Operating revenue: 
 
In fiscal year 2014, train revenue was approximately $12.8 million, an increase of 6.3 % over 
fiscal year 2013 train revenue. This increase in train revenue is the result of the growth in 
ridership.  For fiscal year 2013, train revenue was approximately $12.0 million, an increase of 
0.9% over fiscal year 2012 train revenue due to the increase in ridership. 
 
Non-operating revenue: 
Interest income, subsidies provided by the three counties within the SFRTA’s operating area 
(Broward, Miami-Dade and Palm Beach Counties) and non-capital grants provided by the State, 
Federal Government and Other Funding are revenue sources used by the SFRTA to fund its 
operating budget.  Even though the SFRTA uses these revenue sources to fund operations, for 
reporting purposes, the SFRTA considers these sources as non-operating revenue.  Federal and 
State grants that are restricted for capital purposes are not included in non-operating revenue, but 
rather are classified as contributions. 
 
Interest income: 
In fiscal year 2014, SFRTA’s earnings on investments were approximately $82,000 primarily 
due to the interest earned on the Counties’ contributions and other restricted funds of $42.6 
million. In addition, temporarily idle cash balances are transferred to the Local Government 
Surplus Funds Trust Fund (Florida Prime).  Interest income for fiscal year 2014 decreased by 
approximately $58,000 or 41.4% due to a decrease in the average interest rate earned. 
 
In fiscal year 2013, SFRTA’s earnings on investments were approximately $139,000 primarily 
due to the interest earned on the Counties’ contributions and other restricted funds of $39.1 
million. In addition, temporarily idle cash balances are transferred to the Local Government 
Surplus Funds Trust Fund (Florida Prime).  Interest income for fiscal year 2013 decreased by 
approximately $56,000 or 28.6% due to a decrease in the average interest rate earned.     
 
Federal grants:  
Federal grants (non-capital) consist of Preventive Maintenance grants and Planning grants 
received from the FTA and Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) grants. For fiscal year 
2014, Federal grants increased approximately $1.5 million or 6.3%.  For fiscal year 2013, 
Federal grants increased approximately $5.8 million or 43.3%.   The increase in Federal grants in 
fiscal years 2014 and 2013 was primarily due to increases in Planning grants and Preventive 
Maintenance grants.  
 
Preventive Maintenance grants (FTA). Although usually an operating expense, Preventive 
Maintenance which is defined as all maintenance costs, is an allowable capital expenditure under 
FTA guidelines.  Transit agencies that use Preventive Maintenance funds must follow General 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and expense those maintenance costs associated with 
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the current fiscal year.  Maintenance expenses that meet the SFRTA’s criteria for capital 
expenses are capitalized.  The FTA has no cap on the amount of formula funds a transit agency 
can use for preventive maintenance.  However, Preventive Maintenance funds can only be used 
to cover the cost of actual preventive maintenance expenses.  For fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA 
applied approximately $14.5 million as Preventive Maintenance, an increase of approximately 
$2.9 million from fiscal year 2013’s Preventive Maintenance of approximately $11.6 million. 
 
For fiscal year 2013, the SFRTA applied approximately $11.6 million as Preventive 
Maintenance, an increase of approximately $2.6 million from fiscal year 2012’s Preventive 
Maintenance of approximately $9.0 million. 
 
Planning grants (FTA).  Planning grants are grants received from the FTA.  These planning 
grants cover Planning Department-related activities, planning consultants, transit studies, 
Regional Transportation Organization activities and in-house administrative costs associated 
with planning and capital projects;  however, not all planning expenses are covered by Planning 
grants.   
 
During fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA used approximately $5.8 million of FTA capital 
contributions to fund operating projects. For fiscal year 2013, the SFRTA used approximately 
$7.2 million of FTA capital contributions to fund operating projects. 
 
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). The SFRTA receives FHWA funds as a pass-
through from FDOT. The SFRTA has received these funds since its inception in 1989 as part of a 
traffic mitigation project.  For fiscal years 2014 and 2013, the SFRTA received $4.0 million 
FHWA assistance. 
 
Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT):  
 
During fiscal year 2014, State grants (non-capital) decreased by approximately $14,000 or .05%, 
while in fiscal year 2013, State grants (non-capital) decreased by approximately $360,000 or 
1.2%.    In a special legislative session in December 2009, FDOT, per FL Statutes-Title XXVI 
Public Transportation Section 343.51, awarded the SFRTA a dedicated funding source from the 
State Transportation Trust Fund in the amount of approximately $13.3 million to support its 
operations and expansion.  In addition, FDOT provided to the SFRTA approximately $17.3 
million for fiscal year 2013-14 for operating assistance. 
 
Other Funding:  
 
Fiscal year 2014 other funding consists of approximately $100,000 received from private firms 
and approximately $85,000 related to other local funding sources.  
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County Contributions:   
 
Broward, Palm Beach and Miami-Dade counties contributed approximately $1.6 million each 
towards the SFRTA’s operating budget in fiscal years 2014 and 2013.   
 
The following is a summary of revenue for the past three fiscal years: 
 
REVENUE SUMMARY 

 
 

 
 
  

2014        
Total

Percent  
of     

Total
2013       
Total

Percent  
of     

Total
2012        
Total

Percent  
of      

Total
Revenue 
Operating Revenue $13,100,115 17.9% $12,575,652 17.6% $12,272,397 18.7%

     Interest Income 81,543 0.1% 139,080 0.2% 194,902 0.3%
     FTA 20,621,111 28.1% 19,163,234 26.8% 13,371,554 20.3%
     FHWA 4,000,000 5.4% 4,000,000 5.6% 4,000,000 6.1%
     State grants (FDOT) 30,600,000 41.8% 30,613,700 42.9% 30,974,156 47.1%
     County Contribution 4,695,000 6.4% 4,695,000 6.6% 4,695,000 7.1%
     Other 184,795 0.3% 184,795 0.3% 251,202 0.4%
Total Revenue $73,282,564 100.0% $71,371,461 100.0% $65,759,211 100.0%

Operating 
Revenue
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Interest Income
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FTA
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State grants 
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SUMMARY OF EXPENSES 
 
Operating expenses: 
 
Total operating expenses for fiscal year 2014, including depreciation expense, were 
approximately $106.5 million.  This was an increase of approximately $6.1 million or 6.2% 
when compared to fiscal year 2013.  Total operating expenses for fiscal year 2013, including 
depreciation expense, were approximately $100.2 million.  This was an increase of 
approximately $4.2 million or 4.4% compared to fiscal year 2012. 
 
Operations:  In fiscal year 2014, total Operations, which include train-operating costs, feeder 
service, train security, insurance costs, train fuel costs and train and station maintenance, 
increased by approximately $5.6 million or 10.7%.  Train operations increased by approximately 
$1.8 million or 12.3 % due to a slight increase in the train operation costs, train fuel expense 
increased by approximately $757,000 or 8.8%, due to increases in the market price for fuel. 
Feeder service increased by approximately $389,000 or 7.8%, security expense rose by 
approximately $386,000 or 7.4% due to an increase in security contract rates and insurance 
expense increased by approximately $96,000 or 4.9% due to an increase in insurance coverage.  
In fiscal year 2013, train and station maintenance increased by approximately $2.2 million or 
13.8 % due to increases in maintenance expenses on the trains and stations.   
 
In fiscal year 2013, total Operations, which include train-operating costs, feeder service, train 
security, insurance costs, train fuel costs and train and station maintenance increased by 
approximately $2.9 million or 5.9%.  Train operations increased by approximately $274,000 or 
1.9 % due to slight increase in the train operation costs; train fuel expense increased by 
approximately $332,000 or 4.0%, due to increases in the market price for fuel; feeder service 
increased by approximately $165,000 or 3.4%; and insurance expense increased by 
approximately $204,000 or 11.7% due to an increase in insurance coverage.  In fiscal year 2013, 
train and station maintenance increased by approximately $2.0 million or 14.6 % due to increases 
in maintenance expenses on the trains and stations.   
 
Planning: Planning expenses are comprised of planning related activities, including salaries and 
office expenses, planning consultants and planning studies.  For fiscal year 2014, planning 
expenses decreased by approximately $1.4 million or 20.0%.  The decrease in planning expenses 
is due to the decrease of approximately $1.6 million in capital planning expenses transferred into 
operating planning expenses. In addition, in fiscal year 2014 there was an increase of labor and 
fringe benefits expenses of approximately $141,000.  For fiscal year 2013, planning expenses 
increased by approximately $2.2 million or 46.1%.  The increase in planning expenses was a 
result of the increase of approximately of $2.4 million of capital planning expenses transferred 
into operating planning expenses. 
 
Engineering:  Engineering expenses in fiscal year 2014 increased approximately $35,000 or 
4.0% primarily due to an increase in labor and fringe benefits coupled with the decrease in Right 
of Way maintenance expense.  Engineering expenses in fiscal year 2013 increased approximately 
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$51,000 or 6.2% as a result of an increase in Right of Way maintenance expense and a decrease 
in professional fees. 
  
Legal: In fiscal year 2014, the legal department expenses were approximately $671,000, an 
increase of approximately $26,000 or 4.0% related to an increase in labor and fringe benefits and 
decreases in professional fees.  In fiscal year 2013, the legal department expenses were 
approximately $646,000, a decrease of approximately $16,000 or 2.5% related to decreases in 
professional fees.    
 
General and Administrative:  General and Administrative (G&A) expenses in fiscal year 2014 
increased approximately $1.1 million or 12.9%. General and Administrative (G&A) expenses in 
fiscal year 2013 increased approximately $1.0 million or 14.1% due to the transfer of the 
Corporate and Community Outreach expenses to G&A.   
 
Below is a summary of operating expenses for the past three fiscal years:  
 
EXPENSE SUMMARY 

 

2014

Percent 
of    

Total 2013

Percent 
of    

Total 2012

Percent 
of    

Total

Operations $58,463,863 54.9% $52,820,211 52.7% $49,900,229 52.0%
Corporate & Community Outreach -                  -           -                 -          1,291,259     1.3%
Planning 5,738,954     5.4% 7,178,082     7.2% 4,913,323     5.1%
Engineering 894,589        0.8% 859,774       0.9% 809,221       0.8%
Legal 671,479        0.6% 645,792       0.6% 662,184       0.7%
General and Administrative 9,631,877     9.1% 8,531,337     8.5% 7,474,248     7.8%
Depreciation 31,059,490    29.2% 30,214,462   30.1% 30,981,100   32.3%
Total Operating Expenses $106,460,252 100.0% $100,249,658 100.0% $96,031,564 100.0%
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Summary of Operations 
 
The SFRTA’s fiscal year 2014 operating loss, including depreciation, was $93.4 million.  This is 
a $5.7 million or 6.5% increase over fiscal year 2013’s loss of $87.7 million. The overall 
increase in operating loss was attributable to a $5.7 million increase in operations, an increase of 
approximately $1.1 million in general and administrative expenses and approximately $845,000 
increase in depreciation expense. These increases were offset by a $1.4 million decrease in 
planning expenses. 
 
The SFRTA’s net position increased by approximately $2.1 million in fiscal year 2014, a 64.1% 
increase over fiscal year’s 2013 decrease in net position of approximately $5.9 million. The 
positive increase was due to the $11.5 million increase in capital contributions along with the 
increase of $1.9 million in operating and non-operating revenue, offset by the increase of $6.2 
million in total operating expenses. 
 
The SFRTA’s fiscal year 2013 operating loss including depreciation was approximately $87.7 
million or 4.7%.  This is an approximate $3.9 million or 4.7% increase over fiscal year 2012’s 
loss of approximately $83.8 million. The increase in operating loss was attributable to 
approximately $2.9 million increase in operations; approximately $1.2 million decrease in 
Corporate and Community Outreach; approximately $2.2 million increase in planning expenses; 
an increase of approximately $1.1 million in general and administrative expenses; and 
approximately $767,000 decrease in depreciation expense. 
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The SFRTA’s change in net position for fiscal year 2013 was approximately negative $5.9 
million, a 33.1% decrease over fiscal year 2012’s change in net position of approximately 
negative $8.8 million.  The negative decrease was primarily due to an increase of approximately 
$4.2 million in operating expenses which was offset by an increase in operating and non-
operating revenue of approximately $5.6 million, a decrease of approximately $1.6 million in 
capital contributions, a decrease of approximately $3.2 million non-operating expenses due to the 
2012 loss on station disposals; and an increase of approximately $74,000 in special items related 
to a transfer to the Broward Metropolitan Planning Organization “BMPO” and payment to 
FDOT. 
 
On the following page is a summary of changes in net position for the past three fiscal years: 
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SUMMARY OF STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES  
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

 

 
III. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
Capital Assets: 
 
Capital assets include land, parts and rail equipment, furniture, fixtures and office equipment 
furniture, double tracking, buildings, bridges, automobiles, other equipment, and construction in 
progress, and are recorded at historical cost. 

2014 2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUE:

     Total Operating Revenue $13,100,115 $12,575,652 $12,272,397
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Operations 58,463,863 52,820,211 49,900,229
Corporate and Community Outreach -                     -                     1,291,259
Planning 5,738,954 7,178,082 4,913,323
Engineering 894,589 859,774 809,221
Legal 671,479 645,792 662,184
General and Administration 9,631,877 8,531,337 7,474,248
Depreciation 31,059,490        30,214,462        30,981,100        

Total Operating Expense 106,460,252      100,249,658      96,031,564        
     Operating Loss (93,360,137)       (87,674,006)       (83,759,167)       

NON-OPERATING REVENUE :
Interest Income 81,543 139,080 194,902
Federal Transit Administration 20,621,111 19,163,234 13,371,554
Federal Highway Administration 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
Florida Department of Transportation 30,600,000 30,613,700 30,974,156
Other Local Funding 184,795 184,795 251,202
Broward County 1,565,000 1,565,000 1,565,000
Miami-Dade County 1,565,000 1,565,000 1,565,000
Palm Beach County 1,565,000          1,565,000          1,565,000          

Total Non-Operating Revenue 60,182,449        58,795,809        53,486,814        
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES :

Loss on Disposals -                     -                     (3,240,268)         
     Loss Before Contributions (33,177,688)       (28,878,197)       (33,512,621)       
Total Capital Contributions 35,299,947 23,827,329 25,470,702
 (Loss) Before Special Items 2,122,259          (5,050,868)         (8,041,919)         

SPECIAL ITEMS:
Total Non-Operating Expenses -                     -                     -                     
Loss on Locomotives Retirement -                     -                     (778,444)            
Transfer to Broward Metropolitan Planning Organization -                     (500,000)            -                     
Payment to Florida Department of Transportation -                     (352,874)            -                     
     Total Special Items -                     (852,874)            (778,444)            
            Net Changes in Net Position 2,122,259          (5,903,742)         (8,820,363)         

Total Net Position Beginning 589,923,675      595,827,417      604,647,780      
Total Net Position Ending $592,045,934 $589,923,675 $595,827,417
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During fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA acquired and added in Construction in Progress approximately 
$31.9 million of capital assets, an increase of approximately $5.5 million or 21.0% over last year’s 
net addition of approximately $26.3 million. The increase in capital assets additions was the result 
of an increase in new assets for various projects.  The SFRTA transferred approximately $20.5 
million out of Construction in Progress into the following assets: approximately $17 million in Parts 
and equipment related to the purchase of the railcars; and approximately $345,000 of computers and 
office equipment classified under Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment. The SFRTA retired 
two automobiles for approximately $37,000. Depreciation for fiscal year 2014 was approximately 
$31.1 million.  Depreciation for fiscal year 2013 was approximately $30.2 million.  Accumulated 
depreciation as of June 30, 2014, was approximately $281.8 million. For a detailed discussion of 
capital assets, see Note 3 in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
Presented below is a summary of the Capital Assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014: 
 
Capital Assets: 

 
 
 

Balance 7/1/13 Additions
Deletions/ 

Reclassifications
Balance 

6/30/2014
Percent 
Change

Capital assets not being depreciated:
     Land $19,919,818 -$               -$                     $19,919,818 0.0%
     Construction in progress 48,432,165 31,890,045     (20,445,398)         59,876,812 23.6%
          Total capital assets not depreciated 68,351,983 31,890,045     (20,445,398)         79,796,630 16.7%

Capital assets, being depreciated:
     Parts and equipment 106,045,938 17,023,874     -                       123,069,812 16.1%
     Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 2,962,804 344,848          -                       3,307,652 11.6%
     Double tracking 237,821,832 -                 -                       237,821,832 0.0%
     Buildings 122,649,423 3,076,676       -                       125,726,099 2.5%
     Bridges 115,841,300 -                 -                       115,841,300 0.0%
     Automobiles 448,548 -                 (36,721)                411,827 -8.2%
     Other equipment 126,406,682 -                 -                       126,406,682 0.0%

          Total capital assets, being depreciated 712,176,527 20,445,398     (36,721)                732,585,200 2.9%
     Less accumulated depreciation for:
     Parts and equipment 27,795,056 5,167,422       -                       32,962,478 18.6%
     Furniture and fixtures 2,549,139 216,048          -                       2,765,187 8.5%
     Double tracking 68,380,229 7,950,689       -                       76,330,918 11.6%
     Buildings 73,814,045 6,818,656       -                       80,632,701 9.2%
     Bridge 17,067,324 2,557,115       -                       19,624,439 15.0%
     Automobiles 296,741 45,386            (36,721)                305,406 2.9%
     Other equipment 60,854,560 8,304,174       -                       69,158,734 13.6%

          Total accumulated depreciation 250,757,094 31,059,490     (36,721)                281,779,863 12.4%
Capital assets being depreciated, net 461,419,433       (10,614,092)   -                       450,805,337 -2.3%
Capital assets, net 529,771,415$     21,275,953$   (20,445,398)$       $530,601,966 0.16%
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Long-Term Debt: 
 
Long term debt increased from $4.1 million in fiscal year 2013 to $5.5 million in fiscal year 2014. 
Long-term debt consists of approximately $672,000 in compensated absences, approximately $2.8 
million in deposits, and approximately $2.0 million in advances from FDOT.  
 
For additional detailed information on long-term liabilities, see Note 7 in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 
 
IV. ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 
 
On May 23, 2014, the Governing Board of the South Florida Regional Transportation Authority 
(SFRTA) approved an operating budget of $96,443,111 and a capital budget of $93,695,214 for 
fiscal year 2014-2015. This is a balanced budget with revenues fully covering operating and capital 
expenses for the year. 
 
The budget serves as a source of information for the SFRTA Governing Board, management and 
staff, passengers and other stakeholders. The programs and services funded by this budget help to 
attain the vision and accomplish the Authority’s mission: 
 
“To coordinate, develop and implement, in cooperation with all appropriate  levels of 
government, private enterprise and citizens-at-large in the  community, a viable regional 
transportation system in South Florida that endeavors to meet the desires and needs for the 
movement of people,  goods and services.” 
 
The operating budget includes $22,000,000 in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds for the 
maintenance of SFRTA’s rail fleet and train stations. In January 2012, SFRTA entered into an 
agreement with the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) for SFRTA to expand its roll on 
the corridor by assuming responsibility for the dispatch and maintenance. This agreement will also 
allow SFRTA to provide more reliable service as they will have control of the movement of Amtrak 
trains and CSX freight trains on the corridor. $14,400,000 of this cost is funded by FDOT. 
 
Some noteworthy changes in the capital budget since last year are the inclusion of $2,500,000 of 
SFRTA funds for the Northwood and IRIS rail connections/crossover. This will allow for key east-
west rail connections between the CSX and FEC corridors, thus integrating freight and passenger 
rail network in south the Florida transportation system. SFRTA will begin construction of a new 
operations center across the street from the building they currently occupy.  $6,126,894 of the cost 
is funded through FTA grants and the remaining $25,228,800 will be funded through county gas tax 
funds. 
 
With the South Florida economic climate continuing to show improvement, we are seeing an 
increase in ridership due to the declining unemployment rate. During fiscal year 2014, Tri-Rail 
experienced its highest ridership ever, approximately 4.5 million passengers with another 1 million 
utilizing our free connecting shuttle bus service.  Fiscal year 2014 showed an overall ridership 
increase of 4.8%.  Weekend ridership has risen 18.4% in the second year since increasing service 
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from 16 to 30 trains a day on March 2, 2013.  We continue to operate 50 trains a day on weekdays. 
SFRTA fares and rates will remain constant for fiscal year 2015. 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the SFRTA’s finances for all 
those with an interest in the authority’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information 
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to 
Richard D. Chess, Director of Finance, South Florida Regional Transportation Authority, 800 NW 
33rd Street, Pompano Beach, Florida 33064. 
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2014 2013
ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 49,694,487$            53,173,708$      
Accounts receivable:
    State  grants 7,945,982                4,129,901          
    Federal grants 21,234,766              17,556,144        
    Miami Dade County 2,258,298                2,038,743          
    Other 923,665                   908,422             
Prepaid expenses 745,790 661,242
     Total current assets 82,802,988 78,468,160

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 530,601,966 529,771,415
     Total noncurrent assets 530,601,966 529,771,415
          Total assets 613,404,954$          608,239,575$    

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 11,354,249$            10,205,048$      
Accruals 2,123,573                1,700,838          
Compensated absences 447,762                   454,623             
Unearned revenue 1,814,363                1,338,241          
Due to other governmental units 129,467                   535,216             
     Total current liabilities 15,869,414 14,233,966

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 671,643                   681,934             
Deposits 2,817,963 1,400,000
Advances from FDOT 2,000,000 2,000,000
     Total noncurrent liabilities 5,489,606 4,081,934
          Total liabilities 21,359,020 18,315,900

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 530,601,966 529,771,415
Restricted for:
     Capital projects 42,573,001 39,163,096
Unrestricted 18,870,967 20,989,164
     Total net position 592,045,934 589,923,675
     Total liabilities and net position 613,404,954$          608,239,575$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2014 2013
OPERATING REVENUES

Passenger fares 12,799,800$      12,043,242$      
Other service 300,315             532,410             
     Total operating revenue 13,100,115        12,575,652        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations 58,463,863        52,820,211        
Planning 5,738,954          7,178,082          
Engineering 894,589             859,774             
Legal 671,479             645,792             
General and administration 9,631,877          8,531,337          
Depreciation 31,059,490        30,214,462        
     Total operating expenses 106,460,252      100,249,658      
                   Operating loss (93,360,137)      (87,674,006)       

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
Interest income 81,543               139,080             
Federal Transit Administration 20,621,111        19,163,234        
Federal Highway Administration 4,000,000          4,000,000          
Florida Department of Transportation 30,600,000        30,600,000        
Florida Department of Transportation -                    13,700               
Other local funding 184,795             184,795             
Broward County 1,565,000          1,565,000          
Miami-Dade County 1,565,000          1,565,000          
Palm Beach County 1,565,000          1,565,000          
     Total non-operating revenue 60,182,449        58,795,809        
                    Loss before non-operating expenses (33,177,688)      (28,878,197)       

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
       Total non-operating expenses -                    -                     
                    Loss before capital contributions (33,177,688)      (28,878,197)       

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital contributions - Federal Transit Administration 22,126,315        15,190,175        
Capital contributions - Florida Department of Transportation 4,775,791          627,154             
Capital contributions - City of Ft lauderdale 387,841             -                     
Capital contributions - Other 8,010,000          8,010,000          
       Total capital contributions 35,299,947        23,827,329        
                    Loss before special items 2,122,259          (5,050,868)         

SPECIAL ITEMS
Transfer to Broward Metropolitain Planning Organization -                    (500,000)            
Payment to Florida Department of Transportation -                    (352,874)            
      Total special items -                    (852,874)            

                   Net changes in net position 2,122,259          (5,903,742)         
Total net position - beginning 589,923,675      595,827,417      
Total net position - ending 592,045,934$    589,923,675$    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 13,041,127$         11,385,660$         
Payments to suppliers (70,827,892) (62,858,474)
Payments to employees (10,659,146) (9,087,560)
Other receipts 300,315 532,410
     Net cash used in operating activities (68,145,596) (60,027,964)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Florida Department of Transportation Subsidy 30,600,000 26,734,757
Federal Transit Administration Subsidy 16,150,729 15,690,234
Counties Subsidy 4,879,795 4,879,795
     Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 51,630,524 47,304,786

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
 FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Contributions from FDOT 2,373,058 2,344,150
Contributions from FTA 22,918,076 14,356,221
Contributions from City of Ft Lauderdale 387,841 -                        
Contributions - Other 8,010,000 5,121,371
Acquisition of Capital Assets (20,734,667) (17,727,722)
     Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities 12,954,308 4,094,020

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income 81,543 139,080
     Net cash provided by investing activities 81,543 139,080
          Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (3,479,221) (8,490,078)
Balances - beginning of the year 53,173,708 61,663,786
Balances - end of the year $49,694,487 $53,173,708

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used
in operating activities:
    Operating loss (93,360,137)$        (87,674,006)$        
     Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in  
      operating activities:
       Depreciation expense 31,059,490 30,214,462
     Changes in Assets and Liabilities
        Other receivables (234,796)               (1,556,967)            
        Prepaid (84,547)                 (25,292)                 
        Deposits (797)                      (2,241)                   
        Accounts payable (4,855,031)            (2,783,666)            
        Deferred revenue 476,123                899,385                
        Accrued expenses (salaries) (745,159)               624,229                
        Due to other governmental units (400,742)               276,132                
Net cash used in operating activities (68,145,596)$        (60,027,964)$        

NONCASH ACTIVITIES
Contributions of capital assets from FTA -$                      833,954$              
Contributions of capital assets from other -                        2,888,629

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
The Tri-County Commuter Rail Authority (TCRA) was created as an agency of the State of Florida 
pursuant to Chapter 343 of the Florida Statutes in 1988.  In June 2003, legislation was passed 
merging TCRA into the SFRTA.  The legislation calls for the South Florida Regional 
Transportation Authority (SFRTA) to be the successor and assignee of the TCRA and the SFRTA 
shall inherit all rights, assets, labor agreements, privileges and obligations of the TCRA. 
 
The Governing Board consists of ten members: one County Commissioner from each county (three 
appointments); one citizen appointee from each county commission (three appointments); a Florida 
Department of Transportation (FDOT) – District Secretary (one appointment); and one governor’s 
appointee from each of the three counties (three appointments).  
 
In 2006, the SFRTA/Tri-Rail operated 40 weekday trains, 16 Saturday trains and 14 Sunday trains 
along a 72-mile stretch of the South Florida Rail Corridor located within the tri-county area of 
Broward, Miami Dade and Palm Beach Counties.  As of June 4, 2006, the SFRTA began an 
enhanced Tri-Rail schedule.  The new schedule includes 50 trains a day, Monday through Friday, 
presenting passengers with an increase of 10 trains a day.  The enhanced service provided additional 
20 and 30-minute headways during peak travel times, Monday through Friday and standardizes the 
Saturday, Sunday and holiday schedule to 16 trains.  In March 2013, the SFRTA expanded its 
schedule from 16 to 30 trains on Saturday, Sunday and holidays. There were not schedule changes 
in 2014. 
 
In June 2004, the Governor signed legislation guaranteeing that, on an annual basis, the three 
counties would each provide, at a minimum, approximately $1.6 million in operating funds and 
approximately $2.67 million for future capital projects to the SFRTA.  
 
In a special legislative session in December 2009, FDOT, per FL Statutes-Title XXVI Public 
Transportation Section 343.51, awarded the SFRTA a dedicated funding source from the State 
Transportation Trust Fund for $13.3 million to support its operations and expansion.  In addition, 
FDOT provided the SFRTA $17.3 million for fiscal year 2013-14 for operating assistance.  
 

A.   Operating revenue, operating subsidies, and expenses defined: 
 
The SFRTA defines operating revenue and operating expenses as those revenue and expenses 
that can be directly attributable to the daily operations of its trains.  Operating revenue consists 
of fares and other services.  Fares are revenue collected from passengers, resulting from ticket 
sales.  Other services consist of revenue generated at train stations, such as vending machine 
revenue. 
 
Operating expenses are those expenses, which are necessary for the daily operations of the trains 
and include train-operating costs, engineering costs, planning costs, legal costs, general and 
administrative costs and depreciation.  Depreciation is a non-funded expense.  Per GASB 34, the 
SFRTA classifies operating subsidies as non-operating revenue. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
B.  Reporting Entity: 
 
The SFRTA is a legally separate component unit of FDOT based upon criteria set forth by 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 14, “The Financial Reporting 
Entity” and Statement 61 “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an Amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 14 and 34”.  For organizations that were previously required to be included as 
component units by meeting the fiscal dependency criterion, a financial benefit or burden 
relationship also would have to be present between the primary government and that 
organization for it to be included in the reporting entity as a component unit. 

FDOT includes the SFRTA as a component unit based on the special financing relationship and 
financial burden relationship that exist between the SFRTA and FDOT. 

C.  Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates, and the differences could be 
material.   

D.  Measurement Focus: 

All enterprise fund statements of Net Position, and Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  
All assets and all liabilities are recorded on the balance sheet.  The determination of net loss is 
measured by the matching of revenue earned with expenses incurred.  

E.  Basis of Accounting: 

The SFRTA operates as an enterprise fund and adheres to the accounting standards as set forth by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), including GASB Statements Nos. 33 and 
34 and all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements prior to 
November 30, 1989.  The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting.  Accordingly, revenue is recognized in the period in which it is earned and 
becomes measurable and expenses are recognized in the period in which they are incurred. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, 
generally are followed in the financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict 
with or contradict guidance of the GASB.  Governments also have the option of following 
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to 
this same limitation.  The SFRTA has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
 
Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
The United States Government and the State of Florida make capital grant funds available to the 
SFRTA to fund the purchase of certain assets or the construction of various projects.  Pursuant to 
GASB Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, 
capital contributions, including governmental grants, are required to be reported in the Statement 
of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position as a separate line item after non-operating 
revenue and expenses, rather than as direct additions to contributed capital, as under previous 
standards.  

F.  Reclassification: 

Certain amounts in the 2013 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2014 
classifications. 

G.  Budgets: 

The SFRTA's Governing Board adopts the SFRTA's budget on an annual basis.  The Governing 
Board must approve any required revisions that result in an increase to total expenses. 

Budget amendments are recommended by the Executive Director and are presented to the 
Governing Board for approval.  During the year, budget amendments have resulted in the utilization 
of contingency appropriations and transfers between budget line items. 

Budgetary control is established by function: Operations, Train & Station Maintenance, Personnel 
Expenses, General & Administrative Expenses, Corporate and Community Outreach, Professional 
Fees, Legal, Contingency and Expenses transferred from/to Capital.  Expenses cannot legally 
exceed the appropriated amount. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 

H.  Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits with banks and investments with the State 
Board of Administration with original maturities at the time of purchase of three months or less.  
Note 2 describes the SFRTA’s investment policy. 
  

FY 2013-14 FY 2013-14 FY 2013-14 FY 2013-14 FY 2013-14 FY 2013-14
O RIGINAL BUDGET AMENDED ACTUAL VARIANCE PERCENT

BUDGET AMENDMENTS BUDGET REVENUE O VER (UNDER) VARIANCE
REVENUE
Operating Revenue 12,614,106$ -$                     12,614,106$ 13,181,658$ 567,552$           4%
Federal Transit  Administration 23,211,562                         - 23,211,562 15,896,451   (7,315,111) -32%
Federal Highway Administration 4,000,000                         - 4,000,000 4,000,000     -                        0%
Fl. Dept. of Transportation 30,600,000                         - 30,600,000 30,600,000   -                        0%
Counties' Contribution 4,695,000                         - 4,695,000 4,695,000     -                        0%
Other Revenue 194,738                         - 194,738 184,795        (9,943) -5%

  Revenue 75,315,406   -                       75,315,406   68,557,904   (6,757,502)        -9%
Federal Transit  Administration Capital 
Contributions transferred to Operating ** 4,724,660                         - 4,724,660       4,724,660                          - 0%

  Total Revenue 80,040,066$ -$                     80,040,066$ 73,282,564$ (6,757,502)$      9%

FY 2013-14 FY 2013-14 FY 2013-14 FY 2013-14 FY 2013-14 FY 2013-14
O RIGINAL BUDGET AMENDED ACTUAL VARIANCE PERCENT

BUDGET AMENDMENTS BUDGET EXPENSES O VER (UNDER) VARIANCE
EXPENSES
Operations 41,042,063$ -$                     41,042,063$ 39,141,852$ (1,900,211)$      -5%
Train & Station Maintenance 20,800,300                           - 20,800,300   18,338,159   (2,462,141)        -12%
Personnel Expenses 10,322,506                         - 10,322,506 9,342,688     (979,818) -9%
General & Administrative 2,145,323                         - 2,145,323 2,095,951     (49,372) -2%
Corporate & Community Outreach 627,500                         - 627,500 586,720        (40,780) -6%
Professional Fees 609,500                         - 609,500 569,417        (40,083) -7%
Legal 843,214                         - 843,214 671,479        (171,735) -20%
Contingency 500,000                                - 500,000                             - (500,000) -100%
Expenses Transferred to Capital * (1,575,000)                         - (1,575,000)          (70,164) 1,504,836 -96%

  Expense 75,315,406   -                       75,315,406   70,676,102   (4,639,304)        7%
Expenses Transferred from Capital *** 4,724,660                         - 4,724,660 4,724,660     -                        0%

  Total Expenses 80,040,066$ -$                     $80,040,066 $75,400,762 ($4,639,304) 6%

* Expenses Transferred to capital represent the direct allocation of  personnel expenses to capital projects 
** Federal Transit Administration capital contributions transferred to operating represent budgeted capital contributions
      used to fund planning operating expenses.
*** Expenses Transferred from capital represent budgeted planning capital expenses transferred to operating expenses.
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

I.  Receivables: 

Accounts receivable includes all receivables due to the SFRTA from individuals, organizations, or 
intergovernmental grants.  Intergovernmental grant receivables are adjusted to reflect actual 
operating assistance receivable at June 30, 2014.  Pursuant to the accrual basis of accounting, any 
unbilled receivables are accrued at year-end. 

J.  Capitalizing Assets: 

Capital assets include land, rail track, equipment, buildings, furniture, fixtures and equipment, 
repairable parts, automobiles and construction in progress and are recorded at historical cost.  The 
criteria for capitalizing an asset are that the asset has a useful life greater than one year and an 
acquisition cost equal to, or greater than, $1,000.   

Expenses for maintenance and repairs, which add to the value or life of an asset, are capitalized.  
Other maintenance and repair expenses that do not extend the life of the asset are expensed as 
incurred.   

Depreciation and amortization are determined based on the estimated useful lives of the assets 
using the straight-line method.  All depreciation and amortization calculated on assets purchased 
with grant funds are transferred to reduce contributions. 

Presented on the next page are the estimated useful lives of recorded fixed assets: 
 

 ESTIMATED USEFUL LIFE 
Equipment:  
  Rail Track 30 years 
  Rolling Stock 25 years * 
  Ticket Vending Machines  15 years 
Buildings: 
   Stations 
   Hialeah Yard 
   Leasehold Improvements 

 
15 years 
5 years 
15 years 

Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment  5 years 
Bridges 45 years 
Repairable Parts 5 years 
Automobiles 5 years 
Other Fixed Assets 5 years 
Computer /Equipment/Software 3 years 

* 10 years for fiscal years ended through June 30, 2008 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

J.  Capitalizing Assets: 

Other capital assets used in operations that are not reported in the enterprise fund include 
equipment, constructed buildings and track right of way rights procured during the initial start-up 
phase.  These expenses, totaling $414 million, have been reported by the State of Florida in the year 
of purchase. 

K.  Construction in Progress: 
 
Construction in progress represents the continued investment in capital improvement projects, 
which are in various stages of completion.  Major improvements or projects currently in progress 
of approximately $59.9 million include various Rolling Stock at approximately $38.6 million, 
various Station Improvements projects, at approximately $15.1 million and various other projects 
at approximately $6.1 million. 
 
L.  Compensated Absences: 

The SFRTA grants vacation time to employees based on length of service.  Accrued vacation time 
is a vested right of employees and is paid when used or upon termination of employment.  As of 
June 30, 2014, the SFRTA accrued approximately $529,000 in vacation time based on salary rates.  
The SFRTA estimates that approximately 25% of accrued vacation would not be utilized in fiscal 
year 2015. 
 
Employees are compensated for sick leave at the rate of 12 days per year.  Compensation for sick 
leave is expensed as incurred.  In fiscal year 2009, the SFRTA revised its sick leave policy, which 
is, under certain circumstances, a vested right upon termination.  After 5 years of service, an 
employee who has accumulated 80 hours or 10 days of sick time will be eligible, upon leaving 
employment, to receive 50% of their accumulated sick hours over and above the first 80 hours.  
This percent will increase each year by 2% until it reaches 100%.  The maximum amount of 
payout will be 960 hours or 120 days; however, employees can accumulate up to 2080 hours or 
260 days of sick time.  The sick leave accrual for fiscal year 2014 is approximately $591,000, 
which includes FICA and Medicare. 

M.  Unearned Revenue: 

The SFRTA reports unearned revenue on its balance sheet.  Unearned revenue arise when resources 
are received by the SFRTA before it has a legal claim to them, or when revenue is received prior to 
meeting the revenue recognition criteria, as when monthly train tickets are sold in the month prior to 
them being used.  In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when 
the SFRTA has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the 
balance sheet and revenue is recognized. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

N. New Accounting Pronouncements: 
 
During fiscal year 2013, the SFRTA implemented GASB Statement No. 60 “Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements (Issued 11/10).”  The objective of this 
Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to service concession  
arrangements (SCAs), which are a type of public-private or public-public partnership. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2011. The provisions of this Statement are generally required to be applied 
retroactively for all periods presented.  This Statement did not have an impact on the SFRTA’s 
financial statements, including required disclosures. 
 
During fiscal year 2013, the SFRTA implemented GASB Statement No. 61,  
“The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 
34 (Issued 11/10).”  The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting for a 
governmental financial reporting entity. The requirements of Statement No. 14, The Financial 
Reporting Entity, and the related financial reporting requirements of Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statements—and Management’s Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local 
Governments, were amended to better meet user needs and to address reporting entity issues that 
have arisen since the issuance of those Statements. This Statement modifies certain requirements for 
inclusion of component units in the financial reporting entity. The provisions of this Statement are 
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2012.  This Statement did not 
have an impact on the SFRTA’s financial statements, including required disclosures. 
 
During fiscal year 2013, the SFRTA implemented Statement No. 62 “Codification of Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA 
Pronouncements (Issued 12/10).”  The objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s 
authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the 
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements.  This Statement also supersedes Statement No. 20, Accounting 
and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use 
Proprietary Fund Accounting, thereby eliminating the election provided in paragraph 7 of that 
Statement for enterprise funds and business-type activities to apply post-November 30, 1989 FASB 
Statements and Interpretations that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. This 
Statement did not have an impact on the SFRTA’s financial statements, including required 
disclosures. 

During fiscal year 2013, the SFRTA implemented Statement No. 63 “Financial Reporting of 
Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position (Issued 06/11).”   
This Statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources. Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, 
introduced and defined those elements as, a consumption of and an acquisition of, net assets by the 
government that is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. 
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Previous financial reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial 
statement elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities. The provisions of this Statement 
are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The SFRTA 
adopted the provisions of this statement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The adoption of this  
statement resulted in a change in the presentation of the Statements of Net Assets to what is now 
referred to as the Statements of Net Position and the term “net assets” is changed to “net position” 
throughout the financial statements. 
 
During fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA implemented GASB Statement No. 65 “Items Previously 
Reported as Assets and Liabilities.”  The objective of this Statement is to establish accounting and 
financial reporting standards that reclassify certain items previously reported as assets and liabilities, 
and to recognize, as outflows of resources and inflows of resources, certain items that were 
previously reported as assets and liabilities.   This Statement amends the financial statement element 
classification of certain items previously reported as assets and liabilities to be consistent with the 
definitions in Concepts Statement 4.  This Statement also provides other financial reporting 
guidance related to the impact of the financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources, such as changes in the determination of the major fund 
calculations and limiting the use of the term deferred in financial statement presentations. The 
provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after 
December 15, 2012. The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by 
clarifying the appropriate use of the financial statement elements deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources to ensure consistency of financial reporting.  This Statement did not 
have an impact on the SFRTA’s financial statements, including required disclosures. 
 
During fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA implemented GASB Statement No. 66 “Technical Corrections-
2012-An amendment of GASB Statements No. 10 and No. 62.” This Statement amends Statement 
No. 10, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, by 
removing the provision that limits fund-based reporting of an entity’s risk financing activities to the 
general fund and the internal service fund type. This Statement also amends Statement 62 by 
modifying the specific guidance on accounting for (1) operating lease payments that vary from a 
straight-line basis, (2) the difference between the initial investment (purchase price) and the 
principal amount of a purchased loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related to mortgage 
loans that are sold when the stated service fee rate differs significantly from a current (normal) 
servicing fee rate. These changes clarify how to apply Statement No. 13, Accounting for Operating 
Leases with Scheduled Rent Increases, and result in guidance that is consistent with the 
requirements in Statement No. 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-
Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues, respectively. This Statement did not have an 
impact on the SFRTA’s financial statements, including required disclosures. 
 
During fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA implemented GASB Statement No. 67 “Financial Reporting 
for Pension Plans—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25.” The objective of this Statement is 
to improve financial reporting by state and local governmental pension plans. This Statement results 
from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial  
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Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments 
of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. This Statement  
replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension 
Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as 
they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements 
(hereafter jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The requirements of Statements 25  
and 50 remain applicable to pension plans that are not administered through trusts covered by the 
scope of this Statement and to defined contribution plans that provide postemployment benefits 
other than pensions. This Statement did not have an impact on the SFRTA’s financial statements, 
including required disclosures. 
 
During fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA implemented GASB Statement No. 69 “Government 
Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations.”  This Statement establishes accounting 
and financial reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of government 
operations.  The term government combinations, as used in this Statement, include a variety of 
transactions referred to as mergers, acquisitions and transfers of operations.  This Statement requires 
the use of carrying values to measure the assets and liabilities in a government merger and requires 
measurements of assets acquired and liabilities assumed generally be based upon their acquisition 
values.  This Statement provides accounting and financial reporting guidance for disposals of 
government operations that have been transferred or sold.  The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for government combinations and disposals of government operations occurring in 
financial reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2013 and should be applied on a 
prospective basis.    This Statement did not have an impact on the SFRTA’s financial statements, 
including required disclosures. 
 
During fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA implemented GASB Statement No. 70 “Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees.” This Statement establishes accounting 
and financial reporting standards for situations where a state or local government, as guarantor, 
agrees to indemnify a third-party obligation holder under specified conditions (i.e., nonexchange 
financial guarantees).  The issuer of the guaranteed obligation can be a legally separate entity or 
individual, including a blended or discretely presented component unit.  Guidance is provided for 
situations where a state or local government extends or receives a nonexchange financial guarantee.  
The requirements of this Statement will enhance comparability of financial statements among 
governments by requiring consistent reporting by those governments that extend and that receive 
nonexchange financial guarantees.  This Statement will also enhance the information disclosed 
about a government’s obligation and risk exposure from extending nonexchange financial 
guarantees. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for reporting 
periods beginning after June 15, 2013. This Statement did not have an impact on the SFRTA’s 
financial statements, including required disclosures. 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
 
Note 2 – Cash and Cash Equivalents  

A.  Deposits: 

All cash deposits are held in qualified public depositories pursuant to State of Florida Statutes 
Chapter 280, “Florida Security for Public Deposits Act.”  Under the Act, all qualified public 
depositories are required to pledge eligible collateral having a market value equal to, or greater than, 
the average daily or monthly balance of all public deposits times the depositories’ collateral pledge 
level.  The pledging level may range from 50% to 125% depending upon the depositories’ financial 
condition and establishment period.  All collateral must be deposited with an approved financial 
institution.   

Any losses to public depositors are covered by applicable deposit insurance, sale of securities 
pledged as collateral and, if necessary, assessments against other qualified public depositories of the 
same type as the depository in default.  For this reason, all deposits are considered insured. 

B.  Investments: 

Chapter 218.415 of the Florida Statutes governs the SFRTA’s investment practices, “Special 
Districts investments.”  The SFRTA is authorized to invest in: 
 
(1) The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund; 
(2) Negotiable direct obligations of, or obligations by which the principal and interest are 

unconditionally guaranteed by the United States government at the prevailing market price for 
such securities; 

(3) Interest-bearing time deposits; 
(4) Saving accounts in banks organized under the laws of this state and/or federal laws; and  

During fiscal years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the SFRTA held all investments in the Local 
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund.  The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund is 
composed of local government surplus funds deposited by local governments and administered by 
the State Board of Administration (SBA).   

The SFRTA invested the Counties’ Contributions as well as most of its excess operating monies 
in the Florida SBA Investment Pool.  On December 6, 2007, the SBA restructured its Pool into 
Pool A and B, which have different asset types and different withdrawal restrictions applicable to 
them.   At the time of the restructuring, all current pool participants had their existing balances 
proportionately allocated into Florida Prime and Fund B Surplus Funds Trust Fund.  As of June 
30, 2014, the SFRTA had approximately $47.0 million in Florida Prime and approximately 
$77,000 in Fund B Surplus Funds Trust Fund.  Additional information can be obtained from the 
State Board of Administration. 

Under Florida Statutes 215.47, investment in the pool is not evidenced by securities; therefore, the 
investment is not categorized by level of credit risk and the fair value of our external investment is 
the same as the value of the pool shares.   In addition, the Florida Prime is rated by Standard and 
Poor’s.  The current rating is AAAm.  The Florida Prime weighted average days to maturity 
(WAM) at June 30, 2014, were 40 days. 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
 
Note 2 – Cash and Cash Equivalents (Continued)  

GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures requires that state and local 
governments communicate key information about common deposit and investment risks related to 
credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.  It requires 
certain disclosures of investments that have fair values that are highly sensitive to changes in 
interest rates.  The SFRTA does not believe GASB No. 40 has a material impact on its financial 
statement because all its investments are held by the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund. 

Note 3 – Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets include land, parts and rail equipment, furniture, fixtures and office equipment, 
double tracking, buildings, bridges, automobiles, other equipment, and construction in progress, and 
are recorded at historical cost.  For fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA acquired and added in Construction 
in Progress approximately $31.9 million of capital assets, an increase of approximately $5.6 million 
or 21.0% over last year’s net addition of approximately $26.3 million. The increase in capital assets 
Additions was the result of an increase in the acquisition of new assets for various projects. 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
 
Note 3 – Capital Assets (Continued) 

In fiscal year 2014, the SFRTA transferred approximately $20.5 million out of Construction in 
Progress into the following assets: approximately $17.0 million in Parts and equipment related to 
the purchase of the railcars; approximately $3.1 million of various projects related to Station 
improvements; and approximately $345,000 of computers and office equipment classified under 
Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment. The SFRTA retired two automobiles for approximately 
$37,000. 
  
Depreciation for fiscal year 2014 was approximately $31.0 million.  Depreciation for fiscal year 
2013 was approximately $30.2 million.  Accumulated depreciation as of June 30, 2014, was 
approximately $281.8 million.  
 
Presented below is a summary of the Capital Assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014: 
 

 
Note 4 –Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue for fiscal year 2014 consists of approximately $75,000 in ticket sales collected in 
June 2014 for train service to be provided in July 2014; and approximately $1.7 million related to 
stored value, which will be recognized as revenue when used.  

 

Balance 7/1/13 Additions
Deletions/ 

Reclassifications
Balance 

6/30/2014
Percent 
Change

Capital assets not being depreciated:
     Land $19,919,818 -$               -$                      $19,919,818 0.0%
     Construction in progress 48,432,165 31,890,045     (20,445,398)          59,876,812 23.6%
          Total capital assets not depreciated 68,351,983 31,890,045     (20,445,398)          79,796,630 16.7%

Capital assets, being depreciated:
     Parts and equipment 106,045,938 17,023,874     -                        123,069,812 16.1%
     Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 2,962,804 344,848          -                        3,307,652 11.6%
     Double tracking 237,821,832 -                 -                        237,821,832 0.0%
     Buildings 122,649,423 3,076,676       -                        125,726,099 2.5%
     Bridges 115,841,300 -                 -                        115,841,300 0.0%
     Automobiles 448,548 -                 (36,721)                 411,827 -8.2%
     Other equipment 126,406,682 -                 -                        126,406,682 0.0%

          Total capital assets, being depreciated 712,176,527 20,445,398     (36,721)                 732,585,200 2.9%
     Less accumulated depreciation for:
     Parts and equipment 27,795,056 5,167,422       -                        32,962,478 18.6%
     Furniture and fixtures 2,549,139 216,048          -                        2,765,187 8.5%
     Double tracking 68,380,229 7,950,689       -                        76,330,918 11.6%
     Buildings 73,814,045 6,818,656       -                        80,632,701 9.2%
     Bridge 17,067,324 2,557,115       -                        19,624,439 15.0%
     Automobiles 296,741 45,386            (36,721)                 305,406 2.9%
     Other equipment 60,854,560 8,304,174       -                        69,158,734 13.6%

          Total accumulated depreciation 250,757,094 31,059,490     (36,721)                 281,779,863 12.4%
Capital assets being depreciated, net 461,419,433       (10,614,092)   -                        450,805,337 -2.3%
Capital assets, net 529,771,415$     21,275,953$   (20,445,398)$        $530,601,966 0.16%
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
 
Note 5 – Deposits 
 
The SFRTA’s liability for deposits consists of $2.8 million from the City of Fort Lauderdale for 
“The Wave” Project. 

Note 6 – Advances from FDOT 

Advances from FDOT represent approximately $2 million received when the SFRTA commenced 
operations and is to be repaid to FDOT when and if the SFRTA ceases operations. 

Note 7 – Changes in Long-Term Liabilities: 

Long-term liabilities balances and activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows:  

Note 8 – Retirement Plan 

The SFRTA participates in the Florida Retirement System (FRS), a multiple- employer cost sharing 
Public Retirement System (PERS).  The SFRTA contributes to the plan based on the rate and 
criteria established by the FRS. As of July 1, 2011, employees are required to contribute 3% to their 
pension or investment plan. Employees must be employed on a regular status basis to be covered by 
the System.  Employees enrolled in the FRS before July 1, 2011 are vested in the Pension Plan after 
six years of service. Employees enrolled in the FRS on or after July 1, 2011 are vested in the 
Pension Plan after eight years of service.  SFRTA employees are eligible for normal retirement, if 
they were enrolled in the FRS before July 1, 2011, vested and are age 62 or have at least 30 years of 
creditable service.  If employees enrolled in the FRS on or after July 1, 2011, they qualify for 
normal retirement when vested, and are age 65 or have 33 years of creditable service.  
 
Retired employees are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an 
amount equal to their average final compensation multiplied by the total percentage value of their 
service time.  Average final compensation is the average annual earnings of each employee’s length 
of service and membership class. The System also provides for death and disability benefits. These 
benefit provisions and State Statutes establish all other requirements.  
 
Under the System, the SFRTA was required to contribute, as of the start of fiscal year 2014, 6.95% 
of the salary of Regular Class employees, and 18.31% of the salary of Senior Management Class 
employees.   

Beginning 
Balance  
7/01/13 Additions Deductions

Ending 
Balance 
6/30/14

Amounts  
Due 

within 
One Year

Compensated Absences $1,136,557 -$              (17,151)$      $1,119,406 $447,762
Deposits 1,400,000 2,105,803 (687,840) 2,817,963 -             
Advances from FDOT 2,000,000 -                -                   2,000,000 -             
Total Long-Term Liabilities $4,536,557 $2,105,803 ($704,991) $5,937,369 $447,762
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
 
Note 8 – Retirement Plan (Continued) 
 
The actual contributions made by the SFRTA for fiscal year ended 2014 totaled approximately 
$581,000, which equals the annual required contribution for the current period.   
 
Senior Management Class employees contribution rates for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 were 6.3% 
and 6.27%, respectively Regular Class employees contribution rates were for 2013 and 2012 were 
5.18% and 4.9%, respectively.  Actual contributions for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 were 
approximately $320,000 and $338,000, respectively, equaling the annual required contribution. 
The Florida Division of Retirement issues the FRS Annual Report.  This Report is available each 
year and can be obtained by sending a written request to: 
 

Division of Retirement 
Cedars Executive Center, Building C 

2639 North Monroe Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1560 

Note 9 – Leases 
 
The SFRTA leases its office facilities under a cancelable lease agreement through April 2016.  In 
the event the SFRTA fails to appropriate or budget sufficient funds or is unable to appropriate or 
budget sufficient funds to meet its obligations under the Agreement, then the SFRTA, at its 
discretion, may terminate the Agreement upon 30-days’ notice.  Rent expense for the fiscal years 
2014 and 2013 were approximately $673,000 and $635,000, respectively. 
 
Note 10 – Contingencies and Commitments 
 
Grants: 
 
The SFRTA receives significant financial assistance from federal, state and local governmental 
agencies in the form of grants.  The disbursement of funds received under these programs 
generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreement and are 
subject to audit by the SFRTA’s independent auditors and other governmental auditors.  Any 
disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the SFRTA.  Based on 
prior experience, the SFRTA’s Management believes such disallowance, if any, would be 
immaterial. 
 
Commitments:  
 
The SFRTA’s commitment related to major improvements or projects currently in progress 
approximated $50.9 million as of June 30, 2014. 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 AND 2013 
 
 
Note 10 – Contingencies and Commitments (Continued) 
 
Presented below is a summary of the SFRTA’s commitments for the year ended June 30, 2014: 
 

 
Risk Management:  
 
The SFRTA’s risk of loss includes exposure from passengers and the public due to accidents or 
other incidents resulting in liability issues for the SFRTA.  The State of Florida insures the 
SFRTA for general liability up to $5 million.  The SFRTA purchases additional general liability 
coverage, amounting to $120 million; the SFRTA has had no settlement claims that exceed the 
$5 million insurance coverage since its inception. 
 
Note 11 – Subsequent Events  
 
The SFRTA Management evaluated subsequent events through December 18, 2014, the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. Events or transactions occurring after June 30, 
2014, but prior to December 18, 2014, that provided additional evidence about conditions that 
existed at June 30, 2014, have been recognized in the financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2014.  Events or transactions that provided evidence about conditions that did not exist 
at June 30, 2014, but arose before the financial statements were available to be issued, have not 
been recognized in the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014. 

 
 

Contractor Name
Contract 
Inception

Contract 
Term  Amount Purpose

Hyundai Rotem September 2006 10 years 44,710,372$      Commuter Railcars
Veolia Transportation Services January 2007 10 years 105,916,013      Trains Operations
Bombardier Mass Transit Corporation March 2007 10 years 151,484,954      Train Maintenance
BV Oil Company January 2013 5 years 49,000,000        Train fuel
Keolis Transit Services January 2009 7 years 22,909,542        Feeder Bus service
Meridian Management Corporation August 2010 5 years 10,630,193        Station Maintenance
G4S Secure Solutions USA Inc November 2010 5 years 27,587,088        Trains Security
Total 412,238,162$    
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

General and Total
Operations Planning Engineering Legal Administrative Expense

LABOR AND FRINGE BENEFITS 2,410,182$      959,526$         505,871$         524,011$         5,396,945$      9,796,535$      

SERVICES:
     Train Operations 15,299,352      -                 381,581          -                 1,069,406        16,750,339      
     Train Fuel 9,366,326        -                 -                 -                 -                 9,366,326        
     Feeder Service 5,376,118        -                 -                 -                 -                 5,376,118        
     Security Expense 5,599,596        -                 -                 -                 -                 5,599,596        
     Insurance 2,049,473        -                 -                 -                 -                 2,049,473        

37,690,865      -                 381,581          -                 1,069,406        39,141,852      

TRAIN AND STATION MAINTENANCE 18,338,159      -                 -                 -                 -                 18,338,159      

CORPORATE & COMMUNITY OUTREACH -                 -                 -                 -                 586,720          586,720          

PROFESSIONAL FEES -                 4,724,660        -                 128,929          569,417          5,423,006        

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE 
     Office Business Expense 24,657            54,768            7,137              18,539            1,336,647        1,441,748        
     Lease and Rentals -                 -                 -                 -                 672,742          672,742          

24,657            54,768            7,137              18,539            2,009,389        2,114,490        
  TOTAL 58,463,863$    5,738,954$      894,589$         671,479$         9,631,877$      75,400,762$    
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

General and Total
Operations Planning Engineering Legal Administrative Expense

LABOR AND FRINGE BENEFITS 2,219,739$      818,860$         430,648$         445,797$         4,863,011$      8,778,055$      

SERVICES:
     Train Operations 13,687,773      -                 419,738          -                 806,361          14,913,872      
     Train Fuel 8,608,997        -                 -                 -                 -                 8,608,997        
     Feeder Service 4,987,387        -                 -                 -                 -                 4,987,387        
     Security Expense 5,214,099        -                 -                 -                 -                 5,214,099        
     Insurance 1,953,916        -                 -                 -                 -                 1,953,916        

34,452,172      -                 419,738          -                 806,361          35,678,271      

TRAIN AND STATION MAINTENANCE 16,120,623      -                 -                 -                 -                 16,120,623      

CORPORATE & COMMUNITY OUTREACH -                 -                 -                 -                 583,550          583,550          

PROFESSIONAL FEES -                 6,297,318        -                 187,985          523,853          7,009,156        

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE 
     Office Business Expense 27,677            61,904            9,388              12,010            1,119,539        1,230,518        
     Lease and Rentals -                 -                 -                 -                 635,023          635,023          

27,677            61,904            9,388              12,010            1,754,562        1,865,541        
  TOTAL 52,820,211$    7,178,082$      859,774$         645,792$         8,531,337$      70,035,196$    
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
STATISTICAL SECTION 

 
 

This part of SFRTA’s CAFR presents detailed information as a context for understanding what 
the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 
information says about SFRTA’s overall financial health. 
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These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how 
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These schedules contain information to help the reader assess SFRTA’s most 
significant local revenue consideration, namely ridership. 
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These schedules offer demographic and economic data to help the reader  
understand how the environment within which SFRTA’s financial activities 
take place.  
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These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in SFRTA’s financial report relates to the 
services the SFRTA provides and the activities it performs.  
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SO UTH FLO RIDA REGIO NAL TRANSPO RTATIO N AUTHO RITY
NET PO SITIO N AND CHANGES IN FINANCIAL PO SITIO N

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

                           FISCAL YEARS 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

O PERATING REVENUE 
Train revenue $12,799,800 $12,043,242 $11,940,427 $10,902,136 $10,294,670 $9,744,718 $8,699,831 $7,263,465 $5,897,172 $6,089,370
Other 300,315           532,410           331,970           328,942           212,409           300,677           455,842            148,876           139,858             111,835           
   Total Operating Revenue $13,100,115 $12,575,652 $12,272,397 $11,231,078 $10,507,079 $10,045,395 $9,155,673 7,412,341        6,037,029          6,201,205        

NO N-O PERATING REVENUE 
Interest income 81,543             139,080           194,902           176,514           167,459           517,571           1,215,814         1,776,313        1,285,912          178,216           
Lease / Rental income -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  -                   -                   -                     -                   
Federal Transit  Administration 20,621,111      19,163,234      13,371,554      9,119,944        11,896,620      16,146,204      15,628,544       5,426,252        9,113,203          6,836,021        
Federal Highway Administration 4,000,000        4,000,000        4,000,000        4,000,000        4,000,000        4,000,000        2,149,879         5,850,121        4,000,000          4,000,000        
Florida Dept. of Transportation 30,600,000      30,600,000      30,600,000      2,494,587        18,130,233      18,577,351      19,806,654       14,854,675      8,624,000          9,141,564        
Florida Dept. of Transportation -                      13,700             374,156           30,600,000      -                   -                  -                   -                   -                     -                   
Regional Transportation Marketing -                      -                      -                      -                  -                   -                  -                   -                   241,000             157,021           
Other Funding 184,795           184,795           251,202           477,771           488,971           100,000           100,000            100,000           270,905             163,331           
Broward County Feeder -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       312,242           624,483            645,115           526,671             488,278           
Broward County 1,565,000        1,565,000        1,565,000        1,565,000        4,235,000        4,135,298        4,366,953         4,182,089        2,273,000          2,206,334        
Dade County 1,565,000        1,565,000        1,565,000        1,565,000        4,235,000        4,135,298        4,366,950         4,159,000        2,273,000          2,206,333        
Palm Beach County 1,565,000        1,565,000        1,565,000        1,565,000        4,235,000        4,135,297        4,375,718         4,276,776        2,273,000          2,206,333        
Feeder Service Grant Pass-Through -                  -                  -                  -                  -                   -                  -                   -                   -                     -                   
  Total non-operating Revenue 60,182,449      58,795,809      53,486,814      51,563,816      47,388,283      52,059,261      52,634,995       41,270,341      30,880,691        27,583,431      
     TO TAL REVENUE 73,282,564      71,371,461      65,759,211      62,794,894      57,895,362      62,104,656      61,790,668       48,682,682      36,917,720        33,784,636      

O PERATING EXPENSES
Operating 58,463,863      52,820,211      49,900,229      45,274,303      41,553,969      41,419,340      43,602,003       36,654,660      27,694,480        24,968,027      
Marketing -                  -                  1,291,259        2,034,691        2,326,435        2,005,204        2,152,162         2,144,770        2,106,318          1,805,776        
Planning 5,738,954        7,178,082        4,913,323        3,709,187        2,676,621        5,305,758        4,201,053         1,119,345        1,202,842          1,047,895        
Engineering 894,589           859,774           809,221           1,101,199        752,663           815,946           656,692            707,820           404,144             357,517           
Legal 671,479           645,792           662,184           -                  -                   -                  -                   -                       -                         -                       
Administrative 9,631,877        8,531,337        7,474,248        7,765,896        7,204,108        7,827,025        6,490,508         6,136,983        5,034,013          5,105,421        
Depreciation 31,059,490      30,214,462      30,981,100      34,035,858      32,418,169      14,657,549      32,228,595       27,834,939      11,999,837        9,631,582        
      TO TAL EXPENSES 106,460,252    100,249,658    96,031,564      93,921,134      86,931,965      72,030,822      89,331,013       74,598,517      48,441,634        42,916,218      

Contributions 35,299,947      23,827,329      25,470,702      24,905,184      19,027,689      14,746,127      23,289,207       64,846,465      99,732,858        110,301,750    
Other Income (Expense) -                  -                  (3,240,268)      -                  -                   -                  (164,493)          -                   -                     -                   
Special Items -                      (852,874)         (778,444)         -                      -                       -                      (7,647,992)       -                       -                         -                       
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET PO SITIO N 2,122,259        (5,903,742)      (8,820,363)      (6,221,056)      (10,008,914)     4,819,961        (12,063,623)     38,930,630      88,208,944        101,170,168    

NET PO SITIO N AT YEAR-END
Net Investment in capital assets 530,601,966    529,771,415    533,622,790    539,600,511    555,770,437    569,559,753    576,093,336     599,792,013    563,790,487      484,067,466    
Restricted 42,573,001      39,163,096      42,051,728      45,603,117      38,563,865      38,165,029      31,647,664       25,040,000      24,030,000        16,020,000      
Unrestricted 18,870,967      20,989,164      20,152,899      19,444,152      16,534,534      13,152,968      8,316,789         3,289,399        1,370,295          894,372           
      TO TAL  NET PO SITIO N $592,045,934 $589,923,675 $595,827,417 $604,647,780 $610,868,836 $620,877,750 $616,057,789 $628,121,412 $589,190,782 $500,981,838 (1)

(1) Restatement of Net Position due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 46.
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
STATISTICAL AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
 

For The Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 
 

Date the Authority Began Operations ……….…………. January 9, 1989 
 
Form of Governance……………………………………..  Governing Board with an Executive Director   
                     and Deputy Executive Director 
 
Number of Board Members……………………………..  Ten 

 
Employees ……………………………..………..………  114 
 
Service Areas…………………………………………….. Broward, Miami-Dade, and Palm Beach Counties 
 
Tri-County Area in Square Miles………………………..  5,128 Square Miles 
 
Population of Service Area………………………………  Approximately 5.8 Million 
 
Annual Operating Budget………………………………..  $75.3 Million 
 
Supporting Subsidies ……………………………………  Florida Department of Transportation 
        Federal Transit Administration 
        Federal Highway Administration 
        Broward, Miami-Dade and Palm Beach Counties 
 
Track Miles………………………………………………  71.7 Miles 
 
Passengers Served……………………………………….. 4,401,318 Annually 
 
Service Levels ………………………………………… . Weekday – 50 Trains 
        Saturday – 30 Trains 
        Sunday – 30 Trains 
 
Holiday Service………………………………………….. Tri-Rail operates a Sunday schedule on New   
        Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor  
        Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. 
Hours of Operation 
  Weekday…………………………………. 4:00 a.m. - 11:35 p.m. 
  Saturday………………………………….. 5:20 a.m. – 11:45 p.m. 
  Sunday………………………………….... 5:20 a.m. – 11:45 p.m. 
 
Bus and Metrorail Service ……………………………….. Convenient transfers to county transit buses that pass  
        within 1/4 mile of a Tri-Rail Station and convenient  
        transfers onto Metrorail/Metromover. 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
FARE STRUCTURE 

 
As part of the South Florida Regional Transportation Authority (SFRTA), Tri-Rail has a zone 
fare system, which consists of six zones. Ticket prices are determined by the number of zones 
through which a passenger travels, with the exception of the monthly and special event tickets, 
which are at a flat fare. This fare policy is valid for weekday travel Monday through Friday. 
 
Since Tri-Rail’s core ridership primarily consists of commuters to and from work and/or school, 
a weekend fare policy was designed to encourage increased ridership on Saturday and Sunday. 
Weekend tickets are sold at a flat fare of $5 and are valid for the entire day. 
 
The SFRTA/Tri-rail offers several ticket types to meet the needs of every passenger.  Frequent 
riders can take advantage of multi-trip, cost saving packages by purchasing a Monthly, 12-Trip 
tickets or Monthly Regional Passes.  Other passengers can purchase daily One-Way or Roundtrip 
tickets.  Discount tickets are also available for children ages 5 – 12, full-time students, and senior 
citizens ages 65 years and over, persons with disabilities and Medicare recipients  
 
Tickets are sold at all Tri-Rail stations from Tri-Rail’s ticket vending machines (TVMs) and 
supplemented by Ticket Agents at Tri-Rail’s busiest stations.  No ticket sales are available on the 
train. 
 

                  Discount  
  One Discount   Discount 12  Discount Regional Regional 

Zones Way One 
Way 

Round-
trip 

Roundtrip Trip Monthly Monthly Monthly Monthly 

1 $2.50  $1.25  $4.40  $2.50  $21.25  $100.00  $50.00  $140.00  $70.00  
2 $3.75  $1.90  $6.25  $3.75  $31.25  $100.00  $50.00  $140.00  $70.00  
3 $5.00  $2.50  $8.45  $5.00  $41.90  $100.00  $50.00  $140.00  $70.00  
4 $5.65  $2.80  $9.70  $5.65  $47.50  $100.00  $50.00  $140.00  $70.00  
5 $6.25  $3.15  $10.65  $6.25  $52.50  $100.00  $50.00  $140.00  $70.00  
6 $6.90  $3.45  $11.55  $6.90  $57.50  $100.00  $50.00  $140.00  $70.00  

 
Ticket purchases can also be made through special discount programs offered by SFRTA/Tri-
Rail.  The Employer Discount Program (EDP) offers a 25% discount on Monthly tickets, 
Monthly Regional Passes or 12-Trip tickets as a benefit program for employees whose employer 
has registered with the Program.  The SFRTA/Tri-Rail also offers a Group Discount Program, 
which offers a discounted rate to groups of 25 or more passengers.  
 
Special train services to certain events are occasionally provided by the SFRTA/Tri-Rail 
throughout the year. Most special event trains have a fare which is different from the regularly 
published fare; therefore, passengers are expected to select the appropriate special event when 
purchasing tickets from the TVMs. 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
RIDERSHIP AND SALES ANALYSIS 

 
 
Ridership during fiscal year 2014, increased by 202,562 riders or 4.82% from fiscal year 2013.  
The following table illustrates passenger ridership for fiscal years 2013 and 2014. 
 
Passenger Ridership – FY 2014 and FY 2013 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

    
 FY 2014 FY 2013 YTD 
 Ridership to Date Ridership to Date Ridership 14 vs. 13 

% 

Monday to Friday 3,726,040 3,615,561 3.06% 

    

Saturday 344,290 297,646 15.67% 

    

Sunday 298,011 258,073 15.48% 

    

Holidays 32,877 27,376 20.09% 

    

Totals 4,401,218 4,198,656 4.82% 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY  
RIDERSHIP AND SALES ANALYSIS (Continued) 

Passenger fares collected for fiscal year 2014 were $12,733,071, an increase of $689,829 from 
fiscal year 2013. Tickets are sold at the train stations or from the administrative office by means 
of direct billing or through a specially designed ticket discount program.  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
GRAPH KEY: 
TVM – Ticket Vending Machines 
EDP – Employee Discount Program 
Agent Sales – Tickets sold at Kiosks 
School Districts – Palm Beach School District 
  

 

EDP
13%

Agent Sales
15%

School Districts 
2%

TVM Sales
70%

Total Agency Ticket Sales - FY 2014
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
POPULATION TRENDS 

 
                     Density Per Square Mile 

 Total 
Square Miles 

Population 
Density Per Square Mile 

   
Florida 53,937 361 
   
Broward County 1,209 1,484 
   
Miami-Dade County 1,945 1,341 
   
Palm Beach County 1,974 688 

Annual Population 

 
Annual Population 2014 

(Thousands) 
Annual Population 2013 

(Thousands) 
Annual Percent 

Change 
       
Florida 19,485,270 19,259,543 1.17% 
     
Broward County 1,794,147 1,784,715 0.53% 
     

Miami-Dade County 2,608,966 2,582,375 
                                                           

1.03% 
     

Palm Beach County 1,358,670 1,345,652 
 

0.97% 
 
Projected Population State of Florida & Southeast Counties, 2015-2030 

Source: http://www.edr.state.fl.us/Content/population-demographics/data/CountyPopulation.pdf updated 2/14 
 
 

 

Projection Population                 
Year 

2015            
(Thousands)   

2020            
(Thousands)   

2030           
(Thousands)   

Percent Change 
2015-2030 

  
      

  
Florida 19,747,233  

 
21,149,697  

 
23,608,972  

 
19.56% 

  
      

  
Broward County 1,802,981  

 
1,855,922  

 
1,947,695  

 
8.03% 

  
      

  
Miami-Dade County 2,635,261  

 
2,788,075  

 
3,056,689  

 
15.99% 

  
      

  
Palm Beach County 1,374,312    1,459,489    1,605,718    16.84% 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
PASSENGER RIDERSHIP – FY 2005 thru 2014 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Source: SFRTA – Tri-Rail 

 
POPULATION TRENDS – FY 2005 thru 2014 

 

 
Source: http://www.edr.state.fl.us/Content/population-demographics/data/CountyPopulation.pdf updated 2/14 

  

      
      

Year Totals Monday to 
Friday 

Saturday Sunday Holidays 

2005 2,800,414 2,408,661 204,998 172,371 14,384 

2006 2,673,947 2,287,812 199,745 157,200 29,190 

2007 3,392,894 2,889,313 256,322 210,943 36,316 

2008 3,862,450 3,363,349 245,617 220,797 32,687 

2009 4,222,850 3,666,535 275,578 241,548 39,189 

2010 3,606,055 3,088,102 261,168 231,816 24,969 

2011 3,810,590 3,304,729 256,732 227,714 21,415 

2012 3,990,857 3,456,558 276,504 228,704 29,091 

2013 4,198,656 3,615,561 297,646 258,073 27,376 

2014 4,401,218 3,726,040 344,290 298,011 32,877 

      

 Florida 
Broward 
County 

Miami-Dade 
County 

 
Palm Beach 

County 

 
Tri-County 

Total 

 
Annual % 

Change 
2005 17,778,156 1,742,157 2,395,071 1,273,752 5,410,980 1.42% 
2006 18,154,475 1,747,655 2,420,242 1,291,426 5,459,323 0.89% 
2007 18,446,768 1,741,657 2,448,806 1,302,451 5,492,914 0.62% 
2008 18,613,905 1,739,708 2,472,387 1,307,784 5,519,879 0.49% 
2009 18,687,425 1,738,093 2,480,537 1,312,016 5,530,646 0.20% 
2010 18,801,310 1,748,066 2,496,435 1,320,134 5,564,635 0.62% 
2011 18,905,048 1,753,162 2,516,515 1,325,758 5,595,435 0.55% 
2012 19,074,434 1,771,099 2,551,290 1,335,415 5,657,804 1.12% 
2013 19,259,543 1,784,715 2,582,375 1,345,652 5,708,429 0.90% 
2014 19,485,270 1,794,147 2,608,966 1,358,670 5,761,783 0.94% 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

Principal Employers by County  
Last Fiscal Year & Ten Years Ago 

 
BROWARD COUNTY 

 
2013 
Rank 

 
 

Employer 

 
 

Employees 

% of Total 
County 

Employment 

  
2004 
Rank 

 
 

Employer 

 
 

Employees 

% of Total 
County 

Employment 
1 Broward County School Board 26,000 2.50% 1 Broward County School Board 36,853 4.08% 
2 Broward County Government 11,360 1.09% 2 Broward County Government 13,914 1.54% 
3 Memorial Healthcare System 10,900 1.05% 3 Memorial Healthcare System 8,500 0.94% 
4 Broward Health 8,190 0.79% 4 Broward Health 7,722 0.85% 
5 Nova Southeastern University 4,013 0.39% 5 American Express 6,000 0.66% 
6 American Express 3,000 0.29% 6 Motorola 3,800 0.42% 
7 The Answer Group 2,800 0.27% 7 JM Family Enterprises, Inc. 3,500 0.39% 
8 Kaplan Higher Education 3,500 0.24% 8 Nova Southeastern University 2,529 0.28% 
9 City of Fort Lauderdale 2,425 0.23% 9 City of Fort Lauderdale 2,250 0.25% 

10 BrandsMart USA 2,000 0.19% 10 City of Pembroke Pines 1,895 0.21% 
Source: http://www.broward.org/Accounting/Documents/2013CAFR.pdf 

 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 

 
2013 
Rank 

 
 

Employer 

 
 

Employees 

% of Total 
County 

Employment 

  
2004 
Rank 

 
 

Employer 

 
 

Employees 

% of Total 
County 

Employment 
1 Miami-Dade County Public Schools 33,477 2.58% 1 Miami-Dade County Public Schools 54,387 5.02% 
2 Miami-Dade County 25,502 1.97% 2 Miami-Dade County 32,265 2.98% 
3 U.S. Federal Government 19,600 1.51% 3 U.S. Federal Government 20,100 1.86% 
4 Florida State Government 18,300 1.41% 4 Florida State Government 18,900 1.74% 
5 University of Miami 12,720 0.98% 5 Jackson Health System 11,700 1.08% 
6 Baptist Health South Florida 10,793 0.83% 6 Baptist Health South Florida 10,300 0.95% 
7 American Airlines 9,850 0.76% 7 University of Miami 9,367 0.86% 
8 Jackson Health System 8,208 0.63% 8 American Airlines 9,000 0.83% 
9 Publix Super Market 4,604 0.36% 9 Miami Dade College 7,500 0.69% 

10 City of Miami 3,656 0.28% 10 Florida International University 5,000 - 
Source: http://www.miamidade.gov/finance/library/CAFR/2012/CAFR2013-complete.pdf 

 
PALM BEACH COUNTY 

 
2013 
Rank 

 
 

Employer 

 
 

Employees 

% of Total 
County 

Employment 

  
2004 
Rank 

 
 

Employer 

 
 

Employees 

% of Total 
County 

Employment 
1 Palm Beach County School Board 20,810 3.25% 1 Palm Beach County School Board 18,672 3.12% 
2 Palm Beach County Government 11,000 1.72% 2 Palm Beach County Government 9,000 1.50% 
3 Tenet Healthcare Corporation 6,100 0.95% 3 Tenet Healthcare Corporation 4,705 0.79% 
4 NextEra Energy (FPL) 3,804 0.59% 4 Hospital Corporation of America 4,000 0.67% 
5 G4S (Wackenhut Corp) 3,000 0.47% 5 NextEra Energy (FPL) 2,800 0.47% 
6 Florida Atlantic University 2,980 0.47% 6 Boca Raton Resort & Club 2,380 0.40% 
7 Hospital Corporation of America 2,714 0.42% 7 U.S. Sugar Corporation 2,200 0.37% 
8 Veterans Health Administration 2,700 0.42% 8 The Breakers Hotel 2,000 0.33% 
9 Bethesda Memorial Hospital 2,643 0.41% 8 Florida Crystals 2,000 0.33% 

10 Boca Raton Regional Hospital 2,250 0.35% 9 Boca Raton Regional Hospital 1,700 0.28% 
Source: http://www.mypalmbeachclerk.com/uploadedFiles/Public_Funds/County_Financial_Reports/cafr_fy2013.pdf 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

Last Fiscal Year & Ten Years Ago 

Source: http://www.myfloridacfo.com/aadir/statewide_financial_reporting/1entirecafr13.pdf 
 

 
 

Source:http://www.mypalmbeachclerk.com/uploadedFiles/Public_Funds/County_Financial_Reports/cafr_fy2013.pdf 

  
 
 

POPULATION 
 

 
 

PERSONAL INCOME 
(in millions) 

 

 
PER CAPITA  
PERSONAL 

INCOME 
 

 
 

UNEMPLOYMENT 
RATE 

 
 

Year 

 
 

Florida 

% Change 
from Prior 

Year 

 
 

U.S. 

% Change 
from Prior 

Year 

 
 

Florida 

 
 

U.S. 

 
 

Florida 

 
 

U.S. 

 
 

Florida 

 
              

U.S. 
2004 17,374,824 2.33% 292,805,298 0.93% 593,302 10,049,200 34,147 34,320 4.7% 5.5% 
2005 17,778,156 2.32% 295,516,599 0.93% 647,195 10,610,270 36,404 35,904 3.8% 5.1% 
2006 18,154,475 2.12% 298,379,912 0.97% 703,288 11,389,840 38,739 38,172 3.3% 4.6% 
2007 18,446,768 1.61% 301,231,207 0.96% 731,746 11,995,740 39,668 39,822 4.0% 4.6% 
2008 18,613,905 0.91% 304,093,966 0.95% 736,198 12,430,568 39,551 40,877 6.3% 5.8% 
2009 18,687,425 0.39% 306,771,529 0.88% 696,487 12,082,091 37,270 39,385 10.4% 9.4% 
2010 18,801,332 0.61% 309,330,219 0.83% 725,436 12,435,193 38,584 40,200 11.3% 9.6% 
2011 18,905,070 0.55% 311,587,816 0.73% 761,303 13,191,317 40,270 42,336 10.3% 8.9% 
2012 19,074,434 0.90% 313,873,675 0.73% 792,255 13,743,772 41,535 43,788 8.6% 8.1% 
2013 19,259,543 0.97% 316,128,839 0.72% 813,904 14,126,650 42,364 44,686 7.2% 7.4% 

 
Broward County 

 
 
 
 

Year 

 
 
 

Population 

 
Total 

Personal 
Income 

 
Per Capita 
Personal 
Income 

 
 

Unemployment 
Rate 

2004 1,723,131 $63,266,735 $36,716 4.3% 
2005 1,740,987 $69,375,144 $39,848 3.5% 
2006 1,753,162 $73,075,813 $41,682 3.1% 
2007 1,765,707 $75,286,103 $42,638 3.8% 
2008 1,758,494 $74,588,165 $42,416 6.1% 
2009 1,744,922 $70,090,397 $40,168 9.8% 
2010 1,748,066 $72,712,604 $41,596 9.7% 
2011 1,753,142 $75,315,293 $42,960 9.3% 
2012 1,771,099 $78,687,822 $44,429 7.5% 
2013 1,784,636 N/A N/A 5.6% 

 
Miami-Dade County 

 
 
 
 

Year 

 
 
 

Population 

 
Total 

Personal 
Income 

 
Per Capita 
Personal 
Income 

 
 
Unemployment 

Rate 
2004 2,338,382 $69,724,010 $29,817 5.4% 
2005 2,356,378 $75,090,488 $31,867 4.3% 
2006 2,376,343 $82,481,222 $34,709 3.8% 
2007 2,402,208 $85,978,571 $35,791 3.6% 
2008 2,387,170 $88,954,732 $37,264 5.3% 
2009 2,398,245 $90,915,774 $37,909 8.9% 
2010 2,563,885 $92,227,399 $35,972 12.0% 
2011 2,516,515 $97,815,794 $38,870 12.7% 
2012 2,551,255 $100,688,604 $39,466 9.7% 
2013 2,565,685 N/A N/A 8.9% 

Palm Beach County 
 

 
 
 

Year 

 
 
 

Population 

 
Total 

Personal 
Income 

 
Per Capita 
Personal 
Income 

 
 

Unemployment 
Rate 

2004 1,242,270 $60,761,948 $48,523 5.7% 
2005 1,265,900 $65,286,449 $51,070 4.1% 
2006 1,287,987 $71,720,669 $55,836 3.7% 
2007 1,295,033 $75,585,800 $58,749 4.8% 
2008 1,294,654 $76,712,607 $59,240 7.3% 
2009 1,287,344 $67,866,247 $51,910 11.7% 
2010 1,320,134 $69,488,201 $52,526 12.4% 
2011 1,325,758 $72,053,531 $53,871 10.9% 
2012 1,335,415 $75,461,490 $55,628 9.2% 
2013 1,345,652 N/A N/A 7.1% 

Source: http://www.broward.org./Accounting/Division/Documents/2013CAFR.pdff 
 

Source: http://www.miamidade.gov/finance/library/CAFR/2013/CAFR2013-complete.pdf 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORTY 

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS 

 
ASSET 

 

 
2014 

 
2013 

 
2012 

 
2011 

 
2010 

 
2009 

 

 
2008 

 
2007 

 
2006 

 
2005 

Stations 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 
Administration/Buildings 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 3 4 

                                                              

  
Commuter Rail 

 

 
2014 

 
2013 

 
2012 

 
2011 

 
2010 

 
2009 

 
Weekday Trips Daily   50 50 50 50 50 50 
Saturday Trips Daily 30 30 16 16 16 16 
Sunday Trips Daily 30 30 16 16 16 16 

Holiday Trips Annually 180 180 96 96 96 96 
Total Trips Annually 16,050 16,050 14,476 14,476 14,510 14,510 
Boarding Annually 4,401,318 4,198,656 4,005,967 3,810,832 3,606,055 4,222,850 

Train Revenue Hours Annually  33,956 33,956 32,960 34,900 34,630 31,060 

 
 Note:  Information for fiscal years 2005 - 2008 was not available. 
 

EMPLOYEES BY DEPARTMENT 
LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS 

 

 
 

DEPARTMENT 
 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 
 

2014 
 

2013 
 

2012 
 

2011 
 

2010 
 

2009 
 

2008 
 

2007 

Executive 17 18 17 12 13 14 12 12 
Finance & IT 24 23 24 23 21 22 23 23 

Planning 11 9 10 10 9 9 8 8 
Engineering 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 6 

Human Resources 3 2 2 3 2 3 3 3 
Contracts & Procurement 9 9 8 9 8 8 7 8 

Marketing 0 0 0 24 19 21 23 23 
Operations 42 42 44 27 26 27 24 25 

Legal 3 2 2 2 2 N/A N/A N/A 
TOTAL 114 109 111 114 104 108 104 108 

 

Note:  Information for fiscal years 2005 - 2006 was not available. 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORTY 
TRAIN SCHEDULE 

  

 

63  



 

SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORTY 
TRAIN SCHEDULE 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORTY 
TIMELINE 

 
1983 

 
 

1985 
 
 
 

1986 
 
 
 

1988 
 
 

1989 
 
 

1990 
 
 
 

1991 
 
 

1992 
 
 

1993 
 
 

1994 
 
 
 

1995 
 
 
 
 

1996 
 
 
 

1997 
 
 

Tri-County Subcommittee on Regional Transit recommends that a commuter rail line 
be established and developed in South Florida. 

Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT)  begins  planning  regional  commuter  rail  service. 

Tri-County Commuter Rail Organization (TCRO) begins building the system. Appropriation of 
$59.5 million made for capital expenses. 

 

Tri-Rail adds six weekday and 10 Sunday trains with Federal Emergency Management 
Agency funding as a result of Hurricane Andrew. 

 FDOT purchases 81-mile piece of the South Florida 
Rail Corridor (SFRC) from CSXT for $264 million. 

 TCRO becomes the Tri-County 
Commuter Rail Authority (Tri-Rail).   

 

 One millionth Tri-Rail rider.  First midday service train offered.  Started Saturday service.    
 

 State investment of $85 million for five 
year (1991-95) capital program. 

  Opening of new Delray Beach Station. 
  
 

 X2000 makes first appearance in 
South Florida. 

 Tri-Rail receives Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
Capital Discretionary Grant for $4,639,838.   

 
 Tri-Rail receives FTA Capital 

Discretionary Grant for $9,925,000. 
 Tri-Rail signs Interlocal Agreement with FDOT and 

Miami-Dade, Broward and Palm Beach counties.   
 

 Highest ridership 
day ever 
- 15,921 riders. 

 Tri-Rail hosts Annual North 
American Commuter Rail 
Conference. 

 Zone Fare 
Program 
implemented. 

 Begins Double Track Corridor 
Improvement Program (DTCIP) and 
signal system replacement project.     

 

 Tri-Rail completes installation of 
ticket vending machines at stations. 

 Opening of Sheridan Street Station and      Opa- 
Locka Station.   

 

 Tri-Rail completes eight miles of double 
track in Ft. Lauderdale as part of the DTCIP. 

 Tri-Rail launches their website 
at www.tri-rail.com.   
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORTY 
TIMELINE 

 
 

1998 
 
 
 

1999 
 
 
 
 

2000 
 
 
 

2001 
 
 
 

2002 
 
 
 

2003 
 
 
 

2004 
 

2005 
 
 

2006 
 
 
 
 

2007 
 
 
 
 
 

2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Boynton Beach Station dedicated; first station
completed as part of the Segment 5 Project. 

Major progress continues with Segment 5 Project track work and station renovations. 

The American Public Transportation Association 
(APTA) announces Tri-Rail as the fastest growing 
commuter rail system in the country for 2006. 

New River
Bridge (NRB)
completed. 

The SFRTA implements 
   full schedule of 50 
Tri-Rail trains a day. 

The SFRTA and Miami-
Dade Transit (MDT) co-
host the 2007

 

 Tri-Rail initiates Zero Tolerance Fare 
Evasion  Policy  to reduce  fare evasion. 

 Tri-Rail opens new Miami Airport Station, completing 
1.5 double track extension to the south.   

 

 Completed three 
miles of double track 
in Pompano Beach. 

 Relocated administrative 
headquarters to Pompano 
Beach (adjacent to SFRC). 

 Reduced standard train set from 
four cars to three cars and leased 
surplus equipment.    

 
 $327 million Full Funding Grant 

Agreement with FTA is signed, financing 
Double Track Corridor Improvement 
Program and station refurbishments. 

 New “Clock-Face” Train 
Schedule introduced, 
increasing ridership by 
almost 20%. 

 New Fort Lauderdale/ 
Hollywood International 
Airport Station at Dania 
Beach opens. 

  
Award winning 
tropical train 
wrap unveiled.     

 
 Deerfield Beach 

Station rededicated. 
 Segment 5 Project Design/Build 

Contract awarded for $205 million.   
 

 Opa-locka Station Renovation ceremony 
celebrated with community job fair that 
attracts more than 2,000 people. 

 Florida House and Senate pass legislation 
transforming Tri-Rail into the South Florida 
Regional Transportation Authority (SFRTA).   

 

 Double Track Corridor 
Improvement Program, Segment 5 
Project completed. 

 Miami Heat Victory Parade leads 
to highest passenger count in a 
single day – 18,452. 

 Ridership tops more than 3,000,000 
passengers for first time in a calendar 
year.    

 

  
The SFRTA wins the first-ever 
Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA), Region 4 “Megastar 
Award” for Excellence. 

  
Relocation of the NRB 
dispatching system to 
SFRTA headquarters. 

  
Ridership surpasses 50-million 
passengers since beginning of 
operations in 1989. 

  
The SFRTA announces Tri-
Rail’s  initial transition to 
biodiesel fuel.  
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORTY 
TIMELINE 

 
 

2009 
 
 
 

2010 
 
 
 

2011 
 
 
 
 

2012 
 
 
 

2013 
 
 
 

2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

In a December special session, the Florida legislature passed a bill
establishing a dedicated funding source for the SFRTA. 

 Tri-Rail carries record number of passengers in one 
calendar year – more than 4.3 million. 

 Tri-Rail celebrates 
20th Anniversary. 

 Tri-Rail implements first fare 
increase in more than 14 years.    

 

   SFRTA reveals plan to operate 
passenger rail on the FEC corridor. 

 Dump the Pump leads to highest passenger 
count in a single day – 19,731 Easy Card is launched. 

   
  

 New Hyundai Rotem cars 
begin arriving 

 TIGER grant awarded for Design and Construction of the Wave, 
downtown Fort Lauderdale’s streetcar system   

 

 Agreement reached for SFRTA to assume 
maintenance and dispatch of SFRC. 

 Last of new cab and 
coaches arrive 

 Plans progress of Tri-Rail Coastal Link 
service on their FEC    

 

 Tri-Rail receives its first 
GFOA Budget Award 

 11 New Brookville locomotives delivered  SFRTA announces plans for a new 
Operations/Administrative Center    
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORTY 
 

AGENCY TAKES NATIONAL, REGIONAL AND STATEWIDE HONORS 
 
The accolades continued to flow to the South Florida Regional Transportation Authority, with 
multiple departments scoring honors and awards this past year. The SFRTA received the 
following awards: 

 
PROCUREMENT 

 
• National Procurement Institute - Achievement of Excellence in Procurement 
•  Florida Association of Public Procurement- Award of Excellence in Public Procurement 

 
SAFETY AND SECURITY 
 

•  Transportation Security Administration - Gold Standard Award 
 
MARKETING 
 

•  Florida Public Transportation Association- 1st Place Award and Best of the Best in Class  
• Special Events and Campaigns - 25th Anniversary Luncheon 
• Florida Public Transportation Association - 1st Place Award Print Collateral/Advertising 

“Ride Tri-Rail to Ultra Music Festival” 
 

FINANCE 
 

• Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence  in 
Financial Reporting for the Fiscal Year Ended 2013 

• Government Finance Officers Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for the Fiscal Year 
beginning July 1, 2013 

 

 

 
 

 
 

The SFRTA has been 
awarded the Certificate 

of Achievement in 
Financial Reporting for 
every CAFR submitted 
over the past 20 years. 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORTY 
SYSTEM MAP 
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MINUTES 
SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

PLANNING TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (PTAC) MEETING  
DECEMBER 10, 2014 

 
 
The Planning Technical Advisory Committee (PTAC) meeting was held at 10:30 A.M. on Wednesday, 
December 10, 2014 in the South Florida Regional Transportation Authority Board Room, located at 
800 NW 33rd Street Pompano Beach, Florida 33064. 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS/ALTERNATES PRESENT: 
 
Ms. Nilia Cartaya, Miami-Dade Transit (MDT) 
Ms. Lisa Colmenares, Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) District 6 
Mr. William Cross, SFRTA 
Ms. Kim DeLaney, Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council (RPC), Committee Chair 
Mr. Paul Flavien, Broward Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 
Ms. Amie Goddeau, (FDOT) District 4 
Mr. James Murley, South Florida RPC  
Mr. Joseph Quinty, SFRTA, Committee Vice-Chair  
Mr. Jonathan Roberson, Broward County Transit (BCT)  
Ms. Arlene Tanis, FDOT District 4 
Mr. Nick Uhren, Palm Beach MPO 
  
ALSO PRESENT: 

   
  Mr. Steve Anderson, SFRTA  
  Ms. Loraine Cargill, SFRTA 
  Ms. Jessica Dimmick, Renaissance Planning Group 
  Mr. Clarence Eng, Kimley-Hornf 
  Ms. Erin Gentile, Kimley-Horn 
  Mr. John Lafferty, Parsons Brinckenhoff 
  Mr. Luke Lambert, Palm Beach MPO 
  Ms. Deborah Castranovo, SFRTA  
  Mr. Lee Taylor, SFRTA 
  Ms. Jessica Vargas, SFRTA 
  Ms. Lynda Westin, SFRTA 
  Mr. Joe Yesbeck, T.Y.Lin 
  Ms. Natalie Yesbeck-Pustizzi, SFRTA 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

  Chairperson Delaney called the meeting to order at 10:44 A.M. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
The Chair requested the roll call. 
 

   



 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

AGENDA APPROVAL – Additions, Deletions, Revisions 
 
Mr. Paul Flavien made a motion to approve the agenda.  The motion was seconded by Ms.     .  The 
motion was called to a vote and carried unanimously. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS:   
 
MATTERS BY THE PUBLIC – None 
  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Those matters included under the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are not expected to require 
review or discussion.  Items will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. If discussion is 
desired by any Committee Member, however, that item may be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered separately. 
  
C1 – MOTION TO APPROVE:  Minutes of Planning Technical Advisory Committee Meeting of     
               September 16, 2014 

 
Mr. Paul Flavien made a motion to approve the meeting minutes.  The motion was seconded by Ms.                         
The motion was called to a vote and carried unanimously. 

      
REGULAR AGENDA 
Those matters included under the Regular Agenda differ from the Consent Agenda in that items will be 
voted on individually.  In addition, presentations will be made on each motion, if so desired. 

 
No items. 
 

INFORMATION / PRESENTATION ITEMS 
Action not required, provided for information purposes only. 

 
I1. -  INFORMATION: Boca Center Shuttle Bus  (Route BR-1) Enhanced Service 
 
Mr. Stephen Anderson of SFRTA staff informed the committee members that a new inter-local agreement 
was approved by the SFRTA Governing Board on December 5, 2014 that allows for enhancement of the 
current service on the Boca Center Shuttle (a.k.a. Route BR-1). 

The City of Boca Raton was recently awarded a Transit Service Development Grant from the Florida 
Department of Transportation (FDOT) in the amount of $221,468 for additional peak period service on the 
Boca Center Shuttle.  Using its existing shuttle bus contractor to operate the buses, SFRTA has entered 
into a two-year inter-local agreement with the City. The SFRTA will be reimbursed 100% by the City for 
this service using the new FDOT grant funds.  The agreement will allow operation of enhanced service to 

2 
 



 
 
begin on January 5, 2015 and expire January 4, 2017. Mr. Anderson commended FDOT and The City of 
Boca Raton for making this possible. 

The Boca Center Shuttle averages between 15-16 passengers per hour, well surpassing SFRTA’s 
minimum standards and has a ridership of 31,565 passengers over the past twelve months.  The new 
agreement will allow existing peak headways to be reduced from 40 minutes to 20 minutes, which will 
alleviate some crowding on the buses, especially in the morning.  The Boca Center Shuttle services the 
Boca Raton Tri-Rail Station, Boca Town Center, as well as numerous educational and employment 
destinations in the Boca Town Center area. Mr. Anderson stated that currently it is approximately a 25% 
to75% student to employee ridership.  

 
I2. -  INFORMATION:  Downtown Fort Lauderdale Management Association (DFLTMA) Riverwalk 
                                          Water Trolley and Sun Trolley Services 
 
 
Ms. Robyn Chiarelli, DFLTMA Executive Director, gave a presentation of the Downtown Fort Lauderdale 
Transportation Management Association (DFLTMA) which is a nonprofit 501(C)3 organization that 
manages the Sun Trolley and the Riverwalk Water Trolley. Ms. Chiarelli explained the Water Trolley is a 
Free service that runs from the Broward Center for the Performing Arts to the Stranahan House and it runs 
seven (7) days per week. The DFLTMA operates eight routes connecting over 40,000 residents, tourists 
and working professionals per month from Fort Lauderdale’s neighborhoods to Broward County Transit 
and Tri-Rail, as well as destinations such as Fort Lauderdale-Hollywood International Airport, Fort 
Lauderdale Beach, Broward County Courthouse and the Galleria Mall.   
 
Robyn Chiarelli provided an update to the PTAC regarding all of the routes, with a special emphasis on 
the new Riverwalk Water Trolley service and the Sun Trolley routes that connect to Tri-Rail. 
Robyn also expressed DFLTMA’s interest in expanding their partnership with Tri Rail.   
 
 
I3. -  INFORMATION: Lake Worth Tri-Rail Station Parking Expansion   
 
Ms. Jessica Vargas of SFRTA staff gave a presentation on the Lake Worth parking underneath Interstate 
95.  Currently that lot is at capacity. On October 24, 2014, the SFRTA Governing Board approved a new 
Lease Agreement with FDOT which added 90 new Tri-Rail customer parking spaces for a total of 249 
spaces available for Tri-Rail patrons. 
 
Jessica continued to explain that between 2010 and 2013 there has been a 20% increase of ridership at this 
station.  Joe Quinty agreed that ridership is booming there.  FDOT and SFRTA have been working 
together on a Lake Worth Parking Purchase.  FDOT is willing to sell to SFRTA as surplus property the 
parking lot on Lake Worth Road and Erie Street.  This lot, located west of the Lake Worth Tri-Rail station, 
is currently used as an overflow parking lot for Tri-Rail patrons.  FDOT purchased this property in 2003 to 
serve as a temporary parking lot for Tri-Rail riders while FDOT rebuilt Interstate 95 over the existing 
parking lot.  In 2004, FDOT paid for improvements to the property (paving, lighting, landscaping, 
irrigation, etc.). SFRTA is interested in purchasing this property to continue to serve as an additional 
parking lot as well as for future development opportunities near the Tri-Rail Lake Worth Station.  SFRTA 
and FDOT are working together to obtain all the necessary permits and closing documents for the 
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purchase of this property, pending approval by the SFRTA Governing Board. FDOT will be providing 
SFRTA a grant to purchase this property. 
 
 
I4. -  INFORMATION: Tri-Rail Station Pedestrian Access Plan 
 
Ms. Lynda Westin of SFRTA staff informed the committee members that SFRTA initiated a Tri-Rail 
Station Pedestrian Access Plan for improving walkability at and around its existing Tri-Rail stations.  
Together with the region’s three MPOs and two FDOT districts, SFRTA has visited the Tri-Rail stations 
in all three counties and developed draft plan recommendations.  SFRTA is now reviewing the draft 
improvements with local governments and requesting comments, additional suggestions, and input on 
project priorities.  At the end of the process, SFRTA hopes to work with each City, MPO, and FDOT 
District to fund the suggested projects.   Ms. Westin anticipates the final draft to be completed sometime 
in March. It will be internally circulated so that projects will not overlap. It has been a group effort and 
Ms. Westin has commended all involved.   
 
 
I3. -  INFORMATION: Update on Job Access Reverse Commute (JARC) and New Freedom (NF)       

Grant Program.  
 
Ms. Natalie Yesbeck of SFRTA staff informed the committee members that the most recent selection 
process, to distribute FY 2012 funds, resulted in the selection of eight JARC and seven NF projects.  The 
list of selected projects for the FY 2012 funds has been approved by the SFRTA Governing Board and 
FTA. The SFRTA then held a Grant Workshop for new and existing sub-recipients on November 5, 2014. 
As part of the workshop, SFRTA staff presented information regarding grant lifecycles, procurement 
process, monitoring, and reporting requirements.  
 
Moving forward, SFRTA staff is ramping up efforts to monitor grant programmatic and fiscal activities. 
The review consists of a site visit to interview with the program/project manager.   
 
OTHER BUSINESS: Mr. Joseph Quinty of SFRTA staff proposed to committee members that the 2015 
PTAC meetings begin at 10:00 a.m. as we will be meeting every other month.   
 
PTAC MEMBER COMMENTS:  Mr. James Murley questioned when the opening date would be for the 
MIC. Ms. Lisa Colmenares explained that she expressed Mr. Murley’s concerns to her superiors and he is 
more than welcome to meet with FDOT District 6 to discuss same.    
 
Mr. Murley then expressed an interest in the Miami’s All Aboard and Tri Rail System and what its current 
status is. Joseph Quinty explained that they want us to be in that station the day it opens and to date that is 
still a work in progress, but it can happen. Their target date is 12/2016.  The early part of next year is 
better suited for a presentation to this committee.  The IRIS connection should be in place in the next year 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE:  Tentative next meeting date was identified as February 18, 2015. 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 12:11 pm 

4 
 



 

      AGENDA ITEM NO. C1  
 
 

MINUTES 
 

USOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
RTA MARKETING COMMITTEE MEETING OF JANUARY 21, 2015 

 
The RTA Marketing Committee Meeting was held at 2:00 p.m. on Wednesday, January 21, 
2015, at the SFRTA’s Administrative Offices, 800 NW 33rd Street, Pompano Beach, FL  33064.   
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT  
Jordan Rockwell, Florida Department of Transportation 
 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS NOT PRESENT    
Bobbie Crichton, (Chair) Miami-Dade Transit 
Paula Girard, Palm Tran  
Diane Hernandez Del Calvo, (Vice Chair) SFRTA/Tri-Rail 
Mary Shaffer, Broward County Transit 
 
ALSO PRESENT  
Irene Ferradaz, Miami-Dade Transit (alternate voting member) 
Victor Garcia, SFRTA/Tri-Rail (alternate voting member) 
Steve Rosenberg, SFRTA/Tri-Rail 
Jim Udvardy, South Florida Commuter Services (alternate voting member for FDOT) 
Roseann Voils, Palm Tran (alternate voting member) 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Chair called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.     
 
AGENDA APPROVAL – Additions, Deletions, Revisions 
 
Mr. Garcia moved for approval of the Agenda.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Ferradaz. 
 
The Chair moved the discussion to the next item on the Agenda.  
 
MATTERS BY THE PUBLIC – Persons wishing to address the Committee are requested to 
complete an “Appearance Card” and will be limited to three (3) minutes. Please see the Minutes 
Clerk prior to the meeting. 
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 
None. 



 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Those matters included under the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are not expected to 
require review or discussion.  Items will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. If 
discussion is desired by any Committee Member however, that item may be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and considered separately. 
  
C1 – MOTION TO APPROVE:  Minutes of Marketing Committee Meeting of November 

19, 2014. 
 

Mr. Garcia moved for approval of the Minutes of the July 17, 2013 Meeting.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Rockwell. 
  
The Chair called for any discussions and/or opposition to the motion.  Upon hearing none, the 
Chair declared Item C1 approved. 
 
The Chair moved the discussion to the next item on the Agenda.  
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
Those matters included under the Regular Agenda differ from the Consent Agenda in that items 
will be voted on individually.  In addition, presentations will be made on each motion, if so 
desired. 
 
 
INFORMATION / PRESENTATION ITEMS 
Action not required, provided for information purposes only. 
 
I1 – INFORMATION ITEM:  REGIONAL FARE INTEROPERABILITY  

• Mr. Rockwell stated that he had recently spoken with Curt Johnson of BCT and was informed 
that BCT will be going out for an RFP again as they did not get the expected response.   They 
may work with a consultant to fine-tune the requirements of the project. 

• The schedule may be pushed back until spring/summer 2016, but mobile ticketing may be able to 
adhere to its original schedule.  Mr. Rockwell stated that he will advise this Committee as to 
whether this RFP has gone out at this point. 

• It is expected that a pilot test will be done on several routes. 
 
I2 – INFORMATION ITEM:  STAND UP 4 TRANSPORTATION DAY 

• Mr. Garcia stated that Stand Up 4 Transportation Day is a directive from APTA in which 
this promotion will stress maintaining funding for the infrastructure needed to support 
public transportation.  It is hoped that the South Florida agencies can arrive at a 
coordinated effort for this April 9 event. 

• Ms. Silverstein stated she was unaware of this event and would discuss it with Ms. 
Shaffer for her input. 



 

• Mr. Garcia stated that he will take the lead and will keep the other agencies in the 
information loop as he envisions this as a “transportation” day.  He will advise the 
Committee when an APTA “tool kit” is available and will advise developments via email. 

• Mr. Udvardy suggested that this promotion be considered from the viewpoint of the 
passenger and perhaps a passenger survey could be adopted. 

 
I3 – COMMITTEE CHAIR FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015/2016 

• Mr. Garcia stated that this item does not require discussion today but was introduced as a 
standing item to prepare the Committee for the next fiscal year which will begin on July 1.   He 
noted that Ms. Crichton has graciously served as the chair for three years and with new members, 
it would be right to have a new chair.   

 
REPORTS 
Action not required, provided for information purposes only. 
 
None.  
 
OTHER BUSINESS  
 
AGENCY REPORTS 
 
BROWARD MPO 
No representation at this meeting. 
 
BROWARD COUNTY TRANSIT\ 

• Ms. Silverstein stated that tomorrow, BCT is taking part in the Safe Street promotion which 
encourages drivers to be aware of pedestrians and bicycle riders. 

• BCT started a Leadership Training Program to train currents employees from all departments and 
of different levels0 who want to become managers of the future.   Mr. Garcia stated that there is a 
possibility to involve COMTO and would contact Ms. Silverstein to discuss. 

• Doris Williams’ last day will be on Friday as she retires. 
• Ms. Silverstein will be the alternate voting member for BCT on this Committee. 

 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

• Mr. Rockwell sated that FDOT is initiating a longer term Park and Ride Express Bus transit plan 
as well as adopting a standard of service. 

• Toll revenue from I-95 can be used for replacing buses, which generally have a 10-year bus life. 
• I-75 Express buses are expected to be initiated in 2018. 
• A new FDOT District Secretary will be announced as Jim Wolfe retires in March. 

. 
MIAMI-DADE TRANSIT 

• Ms. Ferradaz stated that MDT had a busy holiday season with late night service on December 31. 
• The Citizen’s Independent Transportation Trust (CITT) is hosting tomorrow’s Transportation 

Summit.  MDT will be present to answer transportation questions.  Mr. Garcia stated that Vince 
Sciullo, new to the SFRTA, will be at the Summit staffing the SFRTA booth. 

• Real time information is being incorporated so that the public can track buses. 
• Facebook and Twitter are up and running.  



 

 
PALM TRAN 

• Ms. Voils stated that Marketing is working with the South Florida Fair which goes on until 
February 1. 

• Palm Tran just had the unveiling of its pink bus for the Komen Race for the Cure. 
 
SOUTH FLORIDA COMMUTER SERVICES 

• Mr. Udvardy stated that a Roundtable is coming up next Thursday at the Civic Center in Miami at 
which many state entities as well as employers will be present to discuss how to make transit 
more successful. 

• He further stated that SFCS is assisting on 95-Express, as well as awareness of Phase 2, as well as 
working with FDOT on Express Bus.   

• He stated that it has been shown to be more cost-effective to use digital billboard along I-95.  
They are run throughout the day and on weekends, 24/7.   They are available to all the agencies 
for their use in getting various messages across.    

 
SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY/ TRI-RAIL 

• Mr. Garcia stated that the APTA Marketing Workshop is coming up in West Palm Beach in late 
February.  He is hopeful for social media sessions as SFRTA is at the point of entering the social 
media platform.  He further stated that he is working with the event coordinators for a host booth 
which will be shared with Palm Tran to dispense transportation information to attendees. 

• The MIC opening date is yet to be decided.  Testing is still being performed and some safety 
issues need to be worked out. 

• Partnering with the Lake Worth Street Painting Festival will take place again as has been the case 
in the past few years.   A shuttle bus will take people from the Tri-Rail station to the event site. 

• Mr. Garcia further stated that partnering with Sun Fest will happen again.  They are hopeful for 
late night trains for Saturday and Sunday.  The train will depart approximately one hour after 
their event is over and will only be a southbound train.  An existing trolley will take the people 
from Sun Fest to the Tri-Rail Lake Worth Station. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The next meeting will take place on March 18, 2015 at SFRTA’s headquarters. 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 2:50 pm.  



DRAFT MINUTES 
SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

OPERATIONS TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEETING 
JANUARY 22, 2015 Thursday, CRM 102, @ 10:00 A.M. 

 
The regular Meeting of the South Florida Operations Technical Committee meeting held on Thursday, 
January 22, 2015 at 10:00 A.M., SFRTA  CRM 102, located at 800 NW 33 Street, Pompano, FL 33064. 

 
Committee Members Present: 
Brad Barkman, SFRTA, Chair 
 
Present via Media Communication Access  
Chuck Cohen, Palm Tran 
Ernest Nastari, NSU 
Eric Zahn, MDT 
David Wells, BCT 
 
Committee Members /Alternates Absent: 
Jordan Rockwell, FDOT, Vice Chair 
Jim Udvardy, SFCS 
Rob Surgeoner, CSX 
Jared Fried, BCT 
Anthony Iovino, NSU 
Jim Udvardy, SFCS 
Cheryl Boehm, CSX 
Fred Schenke, AMTRAK 
Scott Aronson, Delray Beach 
 
Others present: 
Margaret Ferrara, SFRTA  (minutes) 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
The Chair, Brad Barkman, called the meeting to order at 10 A.M.  
 
MATTERS BY THE PUBLIC  
Persons wishing to address the Committee are requested to complete an “Appearance Card” and will 
be limited to three (3) minutes. Please see the Minutes Clerk prior to the meeting. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA 
Brad opened with September 2014 minutes, but we did not have a quorum; minutes will be on next 
agenda in March. 
 
C1-  REGULAR AGENDA 
Matters included under the Regular Agenda differ from the Consent Agenda will be voted on 
individually.  In addition, presentations will be made on each motion, if desired.   
 
INFORMATION/PRESENTATION ITEMS 
Action not required, provided for information purposes only.  
 

 UPDATES/PRESENTATIONS 
 
1. Smart Card - FDOT will report next meeting 

 
2. AVL System – On time performance measures – Palm Tran 

- After six years, AVL on all vehicles 
- 80% on time performance for Palm Tran 
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- Other Counties On time performance (OTP) 
- Palm Tran operating 83% on time 
- Could be cutting service (on one bus routes) to achieve 80% OTP   
- David – BCT 75% - criteria is 1” early -5” late 
- Palm Tran 83% - 3” early  7” late 
- Eric  - Miami Dade 78% OTP 
- How do you rate OTP: time schedule points or end to end? 
- Palm Tran uses time points per trip  
- Palm Tran would like to discuss better connections with last trips with Tri-Rail 
- Perhaps SFRTA could clone AVL screens for other locations 
 

3. SFRTA Executive Building  
- Three story structure building 
- Parking building next to it 
- New Station improvements full length canopies 
- Station will be generating electricity  
- Notice to Proceed is issued 
- Target date could be 2016 or before (estimated) 
- Aggressive schedule – end of SFRTA’s lease here is 2016 
- Design / Building contract 
- Will distribute renderings/photos via email  
 

4. Dispatch Center /Positive Train Control / PTC - SFRTA 
- Target date March 29, 2015 to begin full dispatch 
- Notice to proceed sent to Maintenance of way contractor 
- Crews are being qualified 
- Cutover date 3/29 turnover from CSX dispatch to Amtrak  
- Dispatch will operate to FEC South and west of the airport 
- Dispatch will operate to North of Mangonia, south end of Dyer 
- Radio frequencies for voice communication 
- Four tower locations for dispatch 
- Primary in Pompano, secondary in West Palm Beach 
- Dispatch is located next to customer service center in Pompano 
- Tape load date – CSX will tape load SFRTA out of their system  
- Manually connect our dispatch control / signals and communications  
 

5. Positive Train Control 
- Mandatory by Federal Rail Administration 
- 15 months to get it up and running 
- Redundant service with cellular backup 
- Upgraded 900Mhz system – no backup except overlap 
- Radio to each tower to trains to communicate any speed restrictions, work authorities or 

blockage on the track 
- Some equipment is partially ready  
- Target date is end of Dec 2015 

 
6. MIC 

- MIC is not operational yet, waiting for completion of crossroad construction 
- Operating contractor requires two weeks advanced notice 
- Crews and trainset manipulations will differ slightly 
- Test trains operating for signals and switches, no issues 
- Waiting for final delivery date 
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Updates: 
BCT  

- Next pick March 29th, some minor changes on routes – 595 express to Civic Center 
- Manage lanes is set for later on 

 
Miami Dade  

-  Send Eric current train schedule to the MIC  
-  SFRTA requesting Route 133 bus continue to operate for two weeks after MIC opening as a 
-  Northbound trains departing out of MIC 3 minutes earlier – so we do not leave passengers 
behind due to an old schedule 
-  Express service from Broward and Sheridan to Civic Center (delayed – possible June date) 
- New June lineup focus on capacity and OTP 

  
PALM TRAN – Chuck Cohen 

- Route 1 changed – improvements from 68 to 90% OTP 
- May date no changes 
- No new service planned at this time 
- Limited express service on Route 1 will be tweaked 

 
 NOVA SE – Ernest – nothing new to report 
 
 SFRTA  

- WiFi - Equipping all trains 
- Test trains working well – no capacity issues 
- Full implementation on every train by June 2015 
- Working on internal and external signal equipment  
- Immediate opportunity to track trains 

   
Meeting Adjourned, so moved - next OTC meeting scheduled on March 26, 2015. 
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 AGENDA ITEM NO.  A 
 

Engineering & Construction  
Monthly Progress Report 

January 2015 
 

Pompano Beach Station Improvements and SFRTA’s Operations Center: 

These two projects have been combined and procured together due to the location, common 
infrastructure, and construction schedule.  The Pompano Beach Station Improvements Project 
(Station) and the Operations Center Project (Ops Center) are both located in the same property, 
within limits that overlap each other. The Station project area is approximately 5.79 acres, and 
it includes both the Tri-Rail Station and the east parking lot; the Ops Center is 3.47 acres, and is 
located within the Station’s east parking lot.  The Station design is 100% complete, while the 
Ops Center is in the preliminary design stage, and impacts the design that has been completed 
for the Station.  30% Plans are expected to be completed early February 2015.  As the final 
design of the Ops Center progresses it will, incorporate all features and infrastructure that will 
support both projects within the same site.  The figure below shows the limits of the Station 
project and the Ops Center project. 

 

Limits of Station Project    Limits of OC Project 

 



 AGENDA ITEM NO.  A 
 

Engineering & Construction  
Monthly Progress Report 

January 2015 
 

The Station will be upgraded to Segment 5 station standards, and it features Tri-Rail’s first 
green, LEED certified, sustainable station, which will generate more than 100 percent of the 
station’s energy demand though solar panels.  Other improvements consist of widening existing 
platforms to a 25’ width, new full-length canopies, pedestrian overpass with stairs and 
elevators, and bus circulation improvements. 

The Ops Center includes a 79,000 square-foot operations building and 450-space parking 
garage located within the Station’s east parking lot.  Both structures for the Ops Center have a 
height that will range between 37-42 feet from the ground. The Station platform canopy height 
will range between 14.5-16.5 feet from the ground.  This means that the OC Project structures 
will be taller than the Station Project platform canopy by over 20 feet, and shade will impede 
the solar panels from getting the required sunlight to meet the energy demand if installed on 
the platform canopy.  To support the energy demand of the Station, solar panels will be 
installed on the top floor of the parking garage.  The solar panels will also provide shaded 
parking, which was originally included in the parking improvements of the Station project. 

Additional features that will be provided in the parking garage of the Ops Center include 
electric vehicle charging stations, passenger drop-off area, and additional passenger parking, 
which were  improvements originally included on the Station project.   

The procurement package for both projects was completed, and advertised on August 26, 2014.  
A pre-bid meeting was held on September 11, 2014, and bids were due October 17, 2014.  
Three (3) proposals were submitted and distributed to the Evaluation and Selection Committee 
for review.  The Committee met on October 29, 2014 to discuss their evaluation and score the 
proposals.  The SFRTA Board approved the selected contractor (Gulf Building, LLC.) on 
December 5, 2014.  A Kick-off meeting was held on January 6, 2015.   The team is meeting 
weekly to coordinate all station construction and Operations Center design aspects.  Project is 
currently going through the Development Review Committee and Architectural Committee 
process at the City of Pompano Beach.  The Design Build contractor has submitted a schedule 
and construction is expected to start early Summer of 2015. 

 

 

 



 AGENDA ITEM NO.  A 
 

Engineering & Construction  
Monthly Progress Report 

January 2015 
 

 

Opa-Locka Station Parking Expansion: 

Expand parking at Tri-Rail's Opa-Locka Station, inclusive of adding about forty five (45) new 
parking spaces to the south of the station; increase bus bay areas in the existing parking lot; 
install a continuous pedestrian canopy over the bus waiting areas with solar panels; and 
improve landscape and hardscape.  

 A Work Order was executed for HNTB to provide site geotechnical investigation, site survey, 
environmental services as required for a Categorical Exclusion per NEPA requirements; and the 
preparation of 30% design plans. Geotechnical investigation, survey, and 30% design plans have 
been completed.  The NEPA documentation has been completed and approved by FDOT and 
the FTA.   

SFRTA has executed a work order for the final 100% design plans, permitting and bidding phase 
assistance for the project.  The design kick-off meeting was held on August 21, 2013 and the 
final 100% design is complete.  SFRTA submitted the 100% design plans to the City of Opa-Locka 
for review and comments. The City of Opa-Locka Building Department has reviewed and 
approved the final design plans and has issued a master building permit.  Once the project has 
gone through the SFRTA procurement process and a Contractor is selected, the Contractor will 
have to pull the individual discipline permits from the City prior to beginning construction.  
Estimated construction start is Summer of 2015. 

 

Wave Modern Streetcar: 

Design, Construction and Management of a 2.7 mile modern streetcar in Downtown Fort 
Lauderdale with passenger, solar powered stations, which will operate in mixed traffic with 
signal priority.  Project includes the procurement of five (5) vehicles and the construction of a 
storage and maintenance yard.  Project Partners include The Federal Transit Administration 
(FTA), Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), Broward County, Broward Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (MPO), City of Fort Lauderdale, Fort Lauderdale Downtown Development 
Authority (DDA) and SFRTA.  An Interlocal Partnership Agreement has been executed by all 
parties on April 26, 2013.  The Project Management Consultant (PMC) contract was awarded to 
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HDR Engineering, Inc. to provide services throughout the project.  The NTP was issued on May 
9, 2013 for the 1.47-mile starter line (Phase 1A).   

A Small Starts application rating of Medium-High was received, with a recommendation for 
funding.  Preliminary plans were submitted by the PMC on December 20, 2013,  comments by 
all the Partners have been addressed on the preliminary alignment, utility investigations, 
survey, geotechnical investigation, design criteria; documents control plan, quality 
management plan, project schedule, vehicle parameters analysis, and community awareness 
plan discussions.   

On March 10th 2014, the Notice to Proceed was given to the PMC Team to proceed with 
professional services including 30% plans on the Phase 1B of the project – Small Starts 
extension. 

Coordination activities include interaction with all the Project Partners.  The contract for Final 
Design Services was finalized with Parsons Transportation Group (PTG) and approved by the 
Board on August 22, 1014.  The Notice to Proceed for Final Design-Phase IA to PTG was 
executed on September 13, 2014.  Site K will be the place for the Vehicle Storage Maintenance 
Facility, and the 30% plans for the south portion of Phase 1B were submitted on December, 19, 
2014. 

On the December 5, 2015 the SFRTA’s Board approved the Amendment No. 1 to the Contract 
with HDR Engineering, Inc. to perform preliminary engineering and project management 
services on the Phase 1C of the project, that extends from Andrews Ave. and 17th Street to the 
new Vehicle Storage and Maintenance Facility (VMSF) located on 1801 SW 1st Avenue, Fort 
Lauderdale, FL (33301). 

 

South Florida Rail Corridor Dispatch System: 

The project includes the engineering, furnishing and installation necessary to provide a 
complete and fully functional Dispatch System.  Currently, CSXT is responsible for dispatch and 
maintenance of the South Florida Rail Corridor (SFRC).  At this time, in accordance with the 
South Florida Operating and Management Agreement (SFOMA), SFRTA shall assume 
responsibility for dispatch and maintenance of the SFRC no later than March 31, 2015.  
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 The Notice to Proceed for the Dispatch System was issued on April 16, 2014.  The project has 
been divided into two phases: Phase 1: Limited Dispatch System which has a completion date of 
August 15, 2014 and Phase 2: Full Dispatch System which has a completion date of March 31, 
2015.  Project Final acceptance completion date is March 31, 2015.  

A Site survey was conducted by Ansaldo and subcontractors the week of April 21-25, after the 
NTP was issued.  The site survey included access to the CSXT Radio Antenna sites and 
Bungalows, MIC Signal designs, bungalow designs, drawings of facilities and system track 
charts.  Several conceptual design items submitted by Ansaldo on May 15, 2014 were discussed 
during their visit to SFRTA headquarters on May 21-23, 2014 as well as several RFI’s.  SFRTA is 
continuing to work in conjunction with FDOT and their subcontractor to coordinate the 
integration of the MIC with the Pompano Beach headquarter Dispatch center.     

A detailed design review (DDR) meeting was held in Pittsburgh, PA from June 18-20, 2014.  
SFRTA reviewed and approved Phase 1 Detailed Design Documentation as well as the Site 
Acceptance Procedures during this meeting.  All materials & equipment for SFRTA HQ were 
ordered and received.  

The electrical subcontractor began installing electrical outlets and network ports at Pompano 
HQ and at the WPB back up Dispatch Center.  Most of the phase 1 computers were received in 
Pittsburgh for assembly, configuration and testing. 

Ansaldo finalized testing for Phase 1 and completed the tabling.  After all the detailed design 
review activities were done, the Factory Acceptance Test meeting was held in Pittsburgh from 
July 22-25, 2014.  SFRTA/PB reviewed and approved the Software and Hardware Factory 
Acceptance Test.  Software and Hardware (Computers and Servers) are ready to be shipped to 
SFRTA Pompano and WPB.   

As part of Phase 1, the installation of all workstations, computers, radios consoles and servers 
for the Pompano Beach HQ was completed by August 18, 2014.  In addition dispatcher and 
Avtec radio console user training was completed by August 11, 2014. 

The Radio and Ground Base Network installation was completed at NW 79 Street and at the 
MIC Control Points.  All activities were needed to perform the CSX cutover.  The MIC Cutover 
took place on August 18, 2014 and was successful.   
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 Ansaldo also completed the 7 day Burn-in period based upon the successful cutover of the 
Phase 1 Dispatch System, as well as, the Phase 1 Final acceptance.  Ansaldo/CWA is continuing 
with the field installation of the Ground Base Network (GBN) as well as the Radio installation in 
the SFRC needed for Phase 2 completion.   

Ansaldo/CWA reported that all 4 channels have been operational from 79th St. to Pompano 
from the Avtec console since September 4, 2014.  Additionally, the Avtec tech validated good 
coverage from the MIC including the passenger station under canopy. Ansaldo/Dagostino 
Electronic confirmed that on September 10, 2014, all access control and communication works 
programmed for the Hialeah Ops Center were completed satisfactorily, as well as, Avtec 
console installation.  By September 17th, a total of eight (8) wall monitors were replaced and 
connected to the Dispatch server.  Six (6) were replaced on the call center and two (2) in the 
supervisors office.  Ansaldo/CWA continues with the installation of Router, internet protocol 
converter and the Verizon wireless modem inside the Control Point bungalows along the 
corridor.  On September 30th, Ansaldo sent the Communication System Detailed Design for 
Phase 2 to SFRTA for review.  

Avtec finished the Hialeah Yard radio console installation as well as West Palm Beach back up 
Dispatch Operation Center. On October 2, 2014, four (4) dedicated fax lines were installed at 
both Dispatch Centers modems (two each).  Ansaldo delivered the WPB server racks and 
completed the installation of the Dispatch workstation.  Meanwhile CWA is continuing with the 
power supply installation, router/ CNA 2000 and Verizon wireless modem configuration.  
Control Point testing is scheduled to start the second week of November.    

During the first week of November, CWA finished with all the power supply installations as well 
as CNA 2000 and Verizon wireless air card at every control point. Ansaldo, in conjunction with 
CSX support, began the Control Point Testing.  

Control Point Testing consist of disconnecting the 900 Mhz frequency from the vital processor 
and connecting the CAN/router taking the entire control of the CP from the Pompano Beach HQ 
Dispatch system.  Between November and December, 15 of the 27 Control Points were 
successfully tested.  This activity will continue during January.  At this point, the fit out for the 
Full Dispatch System at West Palm Beach Operation facility has been completed.  
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On January 4, 2015 the antenna at N.E. Whalen was successfully installed.  Three (3) out of 
eight (8) voice radio base stations were running with the incorrect software version, so 
CWA/Ansaldo removed these three (3) units and sent them to the manufacturer for the latest 
software versions to be downloaded. On January 19th the three (3) factory re-programmed 
voice radio base stations were re-installed at 79st, Whalen and Mockingbird. The Radio 
coverage test is schedule for the first week on February. 

On January 17-18 and January 24-25 Ansaldo continued with Control Point testing, finishing the 
80% of the CP testing; however there are six (6) Control Points that need to be revisited for 
remaining bit testing.  
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Total monthly ridership for January has decreased 3.2 % when compared to January of  last year.
Weekday ridership has decreased by 6.8 %, while the average weekday ridership in
January 2014 was 14,991 per day versus 14,632 per day for 2015.  Total weekend ridership
for the fiscal year has decreased by 6.8% when compared to last year.  Total fiscal year
ridership is up by 0.3% over the prior year.

Revenue is shown in Chart 3. Chart 2 shows ridership month-to-month and Chart 1 combines
revenue and ridership month-to-month.

Actual Actual January FY  '15 FY  '14 FYTD
January January  '15 vs.'14 Rider ship Rider ship  '15 vs '14

Riders 2015 2014 % To   Date To   Date %

M-F 307,282 329,809 -6.8% 2,122,928 2,135,475 -0.6%
Saturday 35,453 26,714 32.7% 206,552 189,369 9.1%
Sunday 23,931 22,052 8.5% 169,383 168,063 0.8%
Holidays 4,937 5,495 -10.2% 26,359 24,290 8.5%

371,603 384,070 -3.2% 2,525,222 2,517,197 0.3%

Note: Ridership figures are based on daily reports from Veolia.

JANUARY RIDERSHIP

AGENDA REPORT
SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING
February 27, 2015
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Chart 1 - SFRTA  Riders  and  Revenue Trends 
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JANUARY 2015 ON TIME PERFORMANCE - CAUSAL ANALYSIS SUMMARY
OTP End To End 83.2%
OTP Station To Station 86.7%

NUMBER OF 
DELAY CAUSES LATE TRAINS
 PD/FD Activity 4 6 0.4%
SUB-TOTAL 4 6 0.4%

 CSX AGREEMENT
RULE COMPLIANCE 1 1 0.1%
FREIGHT 2 2 0.1%
LOCAL SWITCHER 1 1 0.1%
JAX DISPATCHER 11 19 1.4%
 MOW 5 9 0.7%
SUB-TOTAL 20 32 2.4%

 OUTSIDE CSX  
COMMUNICATIONS 0 0 0.0%
  SIGNALS-COMP. 8 17 1.3%
SUB-TOTAL 8 17 1.3%

 BOMBARDIER MECHANICAL 8 27 2.0%
TRANSDEV TRANSPORTATION 1 2 0.1%
 AMTRAK 3 3 0.2%
FEC IRIS 0 0 0.0%
FEC TRAIN 7 9 0.7%
 WEATHER 0 0 0.0%
 ROW FOUL 6 17 1.3%
SFRTA TRANSPORTATION 8 15 1.1%
 OTHER 10 14 1.0%
3rd PARTY GATE MALFUNCTION 8 21 1.6%
3RD PARTY -FATALITIES/VEHICLE 0 0 0.0%
ROTEM MECHANICAL 0 0 0.0%
BROOKVILLE MECHANICAL 2 2 0.1%
SENSO TECH 0 0 0.0%
BRIDGE SIGNAL 1 1 0.1%
NBC MOW 0 0 0.0%
NBC DISPATCHER 0 0 0.0%
VANDALISM 0 0 0.0%
ADA 5 5 0.4%
EFFICIENCY TESTING 1 3 0.2%
SUB-TOTAL 60 119 8.8%

TRAINS LATE  174 12.9%
TERMINATED 7 0.5%
TERMINATED/RECOVERED 0 0.0%
ANNULLED  4 0.3%
 TRAINS ON TIME 1165 86.3%
TOTAL 1350 100.0%

NUMBER OF 
INCIDENTS

PERCENT OF TOTAL 
TRAINS



 
CSXT JAX Dispatcher & Freight 

Delays -  2015 
 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Tr
ai

n 
D

el
ay

s 

Freight Dispatcher



On-Time Performance 
Calendar Year  2015 

83 86
.3

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

100

Pe
rc

en
t

END-TO-END STA-TO-STA



 
TRAIN DELAYS- 2015 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

N
U

M
B

ER
 O

F 
TR

A
IN

S
 D

EL
A

Y
ED

 



0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

 
 

ON TIME PERFORMANCE 
END TO END JAN - 2015 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



38
4,

07
0 

36
4,

29
5 

38
6,

09
2 

38
8,

07
7 

37
3,

87
6 

33
9,

37
0 

34
4,

06
4 35
6,

50
8 

35
7,

34
6 

39
0,

68
9 

34
8,

13
7 

35
6,

99
6  3

71
,6

03
  

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

To
ta

l R
id

er
s 

fo
r M

on
th

 

2014 2015

SFRTA Tri-Rail Monthly Ridership 
2015 

 



AGENDA ITEM D 
 

SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY OUTREACH OFFICE  

MONTHLY SUMMARY FOR JANUARY 2015 
GOVERNING BOARD MEETING  

 
 

EMPLOYER DISCOUNT PROGRAM 
 

The Employer Discount Program (EDP) added 21 new employers and 162 new employees 
during the month of January. 
 
The total number of EDP tickets recorded as sold was 2,324 and the total revenue generated was 
reported as $133,572.25 in January. 
 

 
NEW EDP COMPANIES 

 

Employer Enrollment Date City 
1ST Choice Tech Support 1/14/2015 Boynton Beach 
Advanced Quality Company, LLC 1/30/2015 Pompano  
Advanced Restoration & Company, Inc.  01/06/2015 Deerfield Beach 
Atlas Packaging & Displays 1/19/2015 Opa-locka 
Baron USA, LLC 1/21/2015 Miami 
Chasqui Express 1/21/2015 Indiantown 
Elegant Parties 1/15/2015 Pompano Beach 
Florida Fluid System Technologies, Inc. 1/4/2015 Oakland Park 
Florida Tax Specialist 1/14/2015 Margate 
Fox Restoration & Company, Inc. 1/9/2015 West Palm Beach 
Global Heavy Equipment Appraisal Service, Inc. 1/20/2015 Boca Raton 
Global Parts Supports, Inc. 1/19/2015 Fort Lauderdale 
Greenfield Law Group, P.A. 1/12/2015 Boca Raton 
Insurance Care Direct 1/26/2015 Deerfield Beach 
Jetro Cash & Carry 1/21/2015 Miami 
Ohio National Financial Services 1/6/2015 Fort Lauderdale 
One Blood, Inc. 1/9/2015 Coral Springs 
Ovation Food Services 1/29/2015 West Palm Beach 
Proliant, Inc. 1/22/2015 Fort Lauderdale 
The Logistic Marketing Group 1/29/2015 Doral  
Thornton Tomasetti, Inc. 1/26/2015 Fort Lauderdale 

 
 
 



EDP SALES MISSIONS 
 

Employer City 

1st Choice Tech Support Boynton Beach 
Advanced Quality Company, LLC Pompano 
Advanced Restoration & Company, Inc. Deerfield Beach 
Atlas Packaging & Displays Opa-locka 
Baron USA, LLC Miami 
Catholic Health Services Fort Lauderdale 
Chasqui Express Indiantown 
Circlebeback Lending Boca Raton 
DLA, Inc. Doral 
Elegant Parties Pompano Beach 
FL Department of Highway Safety & Motor Vehicles Deerfield Beach 
Florida Fluid System Technologies Oakland Park 
Florida Tax Specialist Margate  
Fox, Rothschild, LLP West Palm Beach 
G A Food Services Inc Fort Lauderdale  
Global Heavy Equipment Appraisal Service, Inc. Fort Lauderdale 
Global Parts Support, Inc. Fort Lauderdale 
Greenfield Law Group, P.A. Boca Raton 
Health Insurance Plan Administrators, (HIP) Hollywood 
Hoover Canvas Products West Palm Beach 
Invicta Watch Company Hollywood 
ISA Graphic Delray Beach 
Jetro Cash & Carry Miami 
Merit Floors, Inc. Pompano Beach 
Ohio National Financial Service Fort Lauderdale 
Oneblood, Inc. Coral Springs 
Ovation Food Services West Palm Beach 
Palm Beach County School District West Palm Beach 
Proliant, Inc.  Fort Lauderdale 
QMed Corporation Fort Lauderdale 
Renegade Club, Inc. Fort Lauderdale 
The Logistic Marketing Group Doral 
Thornton Tomasetti, Inc. Fort Lauderdale 
Unity Automotive, LLC Boynton Beach 

 
 



CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY OUTREACH OFFICE –  
JANUARY ACTIVITIES: 

 
 

CAREER DAY  
 
 The South Florida Regional Transportation Authority (SFRTA) Corporate and 
Community Outreach (CCO) staff took part in the annual career day for Virginia Shuman Young 
Montessori School in Fort Lauderdale. Four presentations were provided to 2nd and 3rd graders 
on the importance of using public transportation, train safety information from Operation 
Lifesaver and career opportunities available in the transit industry.  
 

 
FAU ORIENTATION 

 
SFRTA CCO staff worked in conjunction with Broward County Transit (BCT) to attend 

the Florida Atlantic University (FAU) Orientation Marketplace at its Davie Campus. New 
students were provided information on student transit discounts, as well as the free South Florida 
Education Center Shuttle Bus that provides service between the campus and Tri-Rail. 

 
 

MPO SUMMITS 
 

The SFRTA Corporate and Community Relations Liaisons staffed booths at summits 
held by both the Broward and Miami-Dade County’s Metropolitan Planning Organization 
(MPO). The Broward MPO hosted its annual Safe Streets Summit, which focused on creating 
accessible and danger-free streets for the public with an emphasis on transit. Participants were 
encouraged to ride Tri-Rail to the event. The Miami-Dade MPO brought together stakeholders, 
agencies, national experts and the community, to contribute to a conversation about the next 
major transportation projects in the county during its 2015 Transportation Summit. SFRTA 
Executive Director Jack Stephens was part of the closing session presentation. 

 
 

RAIL FUN DAY 
 

Hundreds of children and families came out to Tri-Rail’s annual “Rail Fun Day” on 
January 24 at the Fort Lauderdale/Hollywood International Airport Station at Dania Beach. The 
free day of family fun featured interactive games, giveaways, arts and crafts, food trucks, a kids’ 
talent show and more. Many families took the train to the event, which extended free rides to 
children 12 and under for the day. 

 
 

SOCIAL MEDIA 
 

 In preparation for the launch of Tri-Rail’s first social media pages, members of the CCO 
office participated in several social media workshops and prepared a plan to launch the agency’s 
first pages. A records retention system, service update posting and a plan for replying to follower 
comments were among the strategies implemented to ensure for a successful endeavor. 
 
 
 
  

 



WHOLE FOODS PRESENTATION 
 

 SFRTA outreach staff in conjunction with representatives from Miami-Dade Transit 
(MDT) and South Florida Commuter Services (SFCS), were invited to conduct a presentation on 
transit benefits at the Whole Foods Corporate Office in Fort Lauderdale. The attendees were 
comprised of Human Resource Generalists who oversee numerous stores in the South Florida 
region. Information on Tri-Rail’s Employer Discount Program (EDP), MDT’s Corporate 
Discount Program and SFCS’s Emergency Ride Home Program.  

 
 

YATC PARTNERSHIP 
 

 The SFRTA Manager of Planning & Capital Development/EEO and the CCO Manager, 
visited the Youth Automotive Training Center (YATC) in Deerfield Beach and met with the 
Executive Director and Community Relations Manager to discuss a partnership opportunity. 
Through the Conference of Minority Transportation Officials (COMTO), and with the 
coordination of SFRTA Operations, a field trip is being planned for the YATC students to visit 
the SFRTA Headquarters and Hialeah Rail Yard. 

 
 

ONGOING COMMUNITY OUTREACH ACTIVITIES 
 

• APTA Stand Up 4 Transportation Webinar 
• COMTO Scholarship Committee and Coaching Webinar 
• Greater Boca Raton Chamber of Commerce / Economic Development Committee 
• Greater Fort Lauderdale Chamber of Commerce / Biz to Biz Leads Group 
• SFRTA Marketing Committee / Bi-monthly Meeting 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY    

BUDGETED INCOME STATEMENT 
 

January 2015 
 
Revenue:   
 
Train Revenue 
For January 2015 year-to-date (YTD) actual revenue decreased $71,075 or 1% when 
compared to fiscal year (FY) 2015 YTD budgeted revenue. Actual revenue for FY 2015 
YTD increased by $16,254 or remained even when compared to FY 2014 YTD actual 
revenue. This increase is attributed to an increase in ridership. 
 
 
Expenses: 
As of January 2015, the SFRTA FY 2015 YTD actual expenses are $15,326,928 or 27% 
below budget when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budgeted expense. All expenses are 
well within budget.  
 
Train operations for FY 2015 YTD actual are $11,482,185 or 32% below budget when 
compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $720,873 or 3% when compared to 
FY 2014 YTD actual. This increase in FY 2015 can be mostly attributed to an increase in 
Train Fuel and Insurance expense.  
 
The major categories within Train Operations include Train Fuel, Security, Insurance and 
Feeder Service: 
  

• Train fuel expense for FY 2015 YTD actual is $934,038 or 15% below budget 
when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget, and increased $147,563 or 3% when 
compared to FY 2014 YTD actual fuel expense. Fuel prices have begun to decline 
which should decease the expense as well.   

 
• Security expense for FY 2015 YTD actual is $578,148 or 15% below budget 

when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget, and increased $135,829 or 4% when 
compared to FY 2014 YTD actual. This increase can be attributed to changes in 
the rates per the contract.  
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Expenses (Contd.) 
 

• Feeder bus expense for FY 2015 YTD actual is $229,402 or 7% below budget 
when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and decreased $483,853 or 13% 
when compared to FY 2014 YTD actual. In October of FY 2014 SFRTA received 
the full year invoice for Palm Beach as opposed to this year were haven’t as of 
yet. This is the reason for the decrease in FY 2015. 

 
• Insurance expense for FY 2015 YTD actual is $178,131 or 7% below budget 

when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $379,046 or 19% 
when compared to the FY 2014 actual.  This increase in FY 2015 can be 
attributed to the timing differences in the recording of the expense. 

 
Train and Station Maintenance for FY 2015 YTD actual is $1,853,625 or 15% below 
budget when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $445,639 or 4% when 
compared to the FY 2014 actual. This increase can be attributed to an increase in Train 
and Station Maintenance expenses for the current month. 
 

• Train Maintenance for FY 2015 YTD actual is $1,440,224 or 13% below budget 
when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $430,633 or 5% when 
compared to FY 2014 YTD actual. This increase in FY 2015 can be attributed to a 
higher amount of expenses monthly with our fleet maintenance contract.     
 

• Station Maintenance for FY 2015 YTD actual is $413,401 or 27% below budget 
when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $15,006 or 1% when 
compared to FY 2014 YTD actual. This increase in FY 2015 can be attributed to a 
higher amount of expenses associated with the contract. 

 
Personnel Expenses for FY 2015 YTD actual are $765,299 or 12% below budget when 
compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $474,151 or 9% when  compared to 
the FY 2014 actual. 
 
Professional Services for FY 2015 YTD actual are $298,428 or 44% below budget when 
compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $18,235 or 5% when compared to 
FY 2014 actual.  
 
Legal Departmental expenses for FY 2015 YTD actual are $150,141 or 31% below 
budget when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $3,864 or 1% when 
compared to FY 2014 actual. This increase can be attributed to slightly higher personnel 
expense in the current year. 
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Expenses (Contd.) 
 
General and Administrative Expenses for FY 2015 YTD are $190,440 or 13% below 
budget when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $116,791 or 11% 
when compared to FY 2014 actual. Some categories within General and Administrative 
expenses are Business Travel, Office Supplies, and Dues and Subscriptions. 
 

• Business Travel expense for FY 2015 YTD actual is $44,648 or 31% below 
budget when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $25,640 or 
36% when compared to FY 2014 actual.  

 
• Materials and Supplies expense for FY 2015 YTD actual is $4,393or 4% below 

budget when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $5,041 or 5% 
when compared to FY 2014 actual. This increase in FY 2015 can be attributed to 
a greater amount of purchases throughout the year.  
 

• Telecommunications expense for FY 2015 YTD actual is approximately $2,225 
or 1% below budget when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased 
approximately $68,434 or 29% when compared to the FY 2014 YTD actual due to 
an increase in monthly charges, usages as well as new phone lines. 

 
• Office Rent for FY 2015 YTD actual is $3,766 or 1% below budget when 

compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased $28,376 or 8% when 
compared to the FY 2014 actual. This is attributed to the base rent increase per 
our agreement. 

 
Corporate & Community Outreach expenses for FY 2015 YTD actual are $70,726 or 
19% below budget when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased 
approximately $3,813 or 1% when compared to the FY 2014 YTD actual.  
 

• Marketing Contract for FY 2015 YTD actual is $30,382 or 10% below budget 
when compared to the FY 2015 YTD budget and increased approximately $1,210 
or remained even when compared to the FY 2014 actual. This increase is 
attributed to slightly higher expenses associated with the contract in January. 
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
BUDGETED INCOME STATEMENT

1/01/15 TO 1/31/15

JANUARY 2015 YTD YTD OVER 2014-15
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED (UNDER) ANNUAL BUDGET

REVENUE REVENUES REVENUES REVENUES BUDGET BUDGET AVAILABLE

Train Revenue $1,154,002 $7,655,889 $7,726,964 ($71,075) $13,064,845 $5,408,956
Interest Income / Other Income 77,512 298,765 189,581 109,184 325,000 26,235
TOTAL TRAIN REVENUE $1,231,514 $7,954,654 $7,916,545 $38,109 $13,389,845 $5,435,191

OPERATING ASSISTANCE
Statutory Operating Assistance -                             8,650,002            10,091,669    (1,441,667)          17,300,000            8,649,998               
Statutory Dedicated Funding -                             6,649,998            7,758,331      (1,108,333)          13,300,000            6,650,002               
Statutory Maintenance of Way 3,010,704                   3,010,704            7,640,000      (4,629,296)          14,400,000            11,389,296             
FHWA -                             1,697,170            2,333,331      (636,161)             4,000,000              2,302,830               
FTA Assistance -                             8,818,091            13,129,255    (4,311,164)          23,100,000            14,281,909             
FTA-Designated Recipient Fees -                             120,750               175,000         (54,250)               300,000                 179,250                  
FTA-JARC/New Freedom Program Fee -                             19,070                 29,169           (10,099)               50,000                   30,930                    
FTA-JARC/New Freedom Program Match -                             211,833               279,268         (67,435)               375,890                 164,057                  
Statutory Counties Contribution 1,565,000                   4,695,000            4,695,000      -                          4,695,000              -                          
Gas Tax Transfer -                             -                       816,669         (816,669)             1,400,000              1,400,000               
SFRTA Reserves -                             -                       2,238,623      (2,238,623)          3,837,636              3,837,636               
Other Local Funding -                             120,593               171,933         (51,340)               294,740                 174,147                  
TOTAL ASSISTANCE 4,575,704                   33,993,211          49,358,248    (15,365,037)        83,053,266            49,060,055             

TOTAL REVENUE $5,807,218 $41,947,865 $57,274,793 ($15,326,928) $96,443,111 $54,495,246

JANUARY 2015 YTD YTD (OVER) 2014-15
ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGETED UNDER ANNUAL BUDGET

EXPENSES EXPENSES EXPENSES EXPENSES BUDGET BUDGET AVAILABLE

Train Operations 3,130,107                   24,247,816          35,730,001    11,482,185          59,293,030            35,045,214             
Train and Station Maintenance 1,619,306                   10,895,261          12,748,886    1,853,625            22,151,447            11,256,186             
Personnel Expenses 795,313                      5,702,634            6,467,933      765,299               11,081,154            5,378,520               
Professional Fees 37,500                        387,199               685,627         298,428               1,187,400              800,201                  
Legal 47,934                        340,084               490,225         150,141               838,244                 498,160                  
General & Administrative Expenses 281,383                      1,222,133            1,412,573      190,440               2,338,337              1,116,204               
Corporate & Community Outreach 35,130                        295,903               366,629         70,726                 628,500                 332,597                  
Reserve -                             -                       291,669         291,669               499,999                 499,999                  
Expenses Transferred to Capital (139,455)                     (1,143,165)           (918,750)        224,415               (1,575,000)             (431,835)                 

TOTAL EXPENSES 5,807,218$                 41,947,865$         57,274,793$  15,326,928$        96,443,111$          54,495,246$           

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



January 2015 January 2015   FY 2015 YTD  YTD FY 2014 YTD 
Actual Budget Variances Actual Budget Variances % Actual Variances %

Revenues:
       Train Revenue $1,154,002 $1,194,285 (40,283)                 $7,655,889 $7,726,964 -$71,075 -1% $7,639,635 $16,254 0%
       Interest/Dividend Income 77,512                  27,083                50,429                  298,765                  189,581                  109,184                 58% 242,823                  55,942            23%

Total Train Revenue 1,231,514             1,221,368          10,146                 7,954,654              7,916,545               38,109                  0% 7,882,458              72,196           1%

Operating Assistance:
       Statutory Operating Assistance -                        1,441,667           (1,441,667)            8,650,002               10,091,669              (1,441,667)             -14% 8,213,117               436,885          5%
       Statutory Dedicated Funding -                        1,108,333           (1,108,333)            6,649,998               7,758,331                (1,108,333)             -14% 7,086,883               (436,885)         -6%
       Statutory Maintenance of Way 3,010,704              3,200,000           (189,296)               3,010,704               7,640,000                (4,629,296)             -61% -                         3,010,704       0%
       FHWA -                        475,000              (475,000)               1,697,170               2,333,331                (636,161)                -27% 2,148,366               (451,196)         0%
       FTA Assistance -                        59,001                (59,001)                 8,818,091               13,129,255              (4,311,164)             -33% 9,753,769               (935,678)         0%
       FTA-Designated Recipient Fees -                        45,000                (45,000)                 120,750                  175,000                  (54,250)                  -31% 358,966                  (238,216)         -66%
       FTA-JARC/New Freedom Program Fee -                        14,167                (14,167)                 19,070                    29,169                    (10,099)                  -35% 26,726                    (7,656)             -29%
       FTA-JARC/New Freedom Program Match -                        105,324              (105,324)               211,833                  279,268                  (67,435)                  -24% 279,384                  (67,551)           -24%
       Statutory Counties Contribution 1,565,000              1,565,000           -                        4,695,000               4,695,000                -                         0% 4,695,000               -                  0%
       Gas Tax Transfer -                        116,667              (116,667)               -                         816,669                  (816,669)                -100% -                         -                  0%
       SFRTA Reserves -                        319,803              (319,803)               -                         2,238,623                (2,238,623)             -100% -                         -                  0%
       Other Local Funding -                        44,562                (44,562)                 120,593                  171,933                  (51,340)                  -30% 111,170                  9,423              8%

Total Operating Assistance 4,575,704             8,494,524          (3,918,820)           33,993,211            49,358,248             (15,365,037)          -31% 32,673,381            1,319,830      4%

Total Revenue $5,807,218 $9,715,892 ($3,908,674) 41,947,865            $57,274,793 (15,326,928)          -27% 40,555,839            1,392,026      3%

 SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ACTUAL VS BUDGET REPORT

JANUARY 31, 2015 & 2014

Curent Year Prior Year Comparison



January 2015 January 2015   FY 2015 YTD  YTD FY 2014 YTD 
Actual Budget Variances Actual Budget Variances % Actual Variances %

 SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ACTUAL VS BUDGET REPORT

JANUARY 31, 2015 & 2014

Curent Year Prior Year Comparison

Expenses:

Train Operations
       Train Operations Contract $906,764 $1,253,963 (347,199)               $6,766,498 $6,872,849 (106,351)                -2% $6,581,261 185,237          3%
       Train Operation - Fuel 594,049                1,081,875           (487,826)               5,414,087               6,348,125                (934,038)                -15% 5,266,524               147,563          3%
       Emergency Bus Service 1,864                    14,983                (13,119)                 28,886                    32,083                    (3,197)                    -10% 18,498                    10,388            0%
       Security Contract 459,679                585,062              (125,383)               3,237,286               3,815,434                (578,148)                -15% 3,101,457               135,829          4%
       Feeder Bus  500,340                681,778              (181,438)               3,178,044               3,407,446                (229,402)                -7% 3,661,897               (483,853)         -13%
       Station Utilities 94,948                  150,000              (55,052)                 392,113                  628,572                  (236,459)                -38% 335,717                  56,396            17%
       EMS Boards 36,417                  45,167                (8,750)                   108,547                  114,811                  (6,264)                    -5% 48,561                    59,986            124%
       Revenue Collection 1,299                    43,583                (42,284)                 216,949                  317,583                  (100,634)                -32% 425,210                  (208,261)         0%
       Insurance 103,815                181,947              (78,132)                 2,421,869               2,600,000                (178,131)                -7% 2,042,823               379,046          19%
       APTA Dues -                        1,583                  (1,583)                   -                         11,083                    (11,083)                  -100% -                         -                  0%
       ROW Maintenance 99,923                  1,306,250           (1,206,327)            232,456                  9,143,194                (8,910,738)             -97% 174,752                  57,704            0%
       TVM Maintenance 3,475                    34,333                (30,858)                 29,354                    100,333                  (70,979)                  -71% 88,465                    (59,111)           -67%
       Smart Card 752                       16,500                (15,748)                 26,582                    45,500                    (18,918)                  -42% 1,042                      25,540            0%
       Dispatch  326,782                493,284              (166,502)               2,195,145               2,292,988                (97,843)                  -4% 1,780,736               414,409          23%

Total Train Operations 3,130,107             5,890,308          (2,760,201)           24,247,816            35,730,001             (11,482,185)          -32% 23,526,943            720,873         3%

Train and Station Maintenance
       Train Maintenance 1,463,660              1,794,155           (330,495)               9,756,070               11,196,294              (1,440,224)             -13% 9,325,437               430,633          5%
       Station Maintenance 155,646                321,799              (166,153)               1,139,191               1,552,592                (413,401)                -27% 1,124,185               15,006            1%

Total Train and Station Maintenance 1,619,306             2,115,954          (496,648)              10,895,261            12,748,886             (1,853,625)            -15% 10,449,622            445,639         4%

Personnel Expenses
       Salaries and Wages 570,043                875,926              (305,883)               4,116,652               4,731,034                (614,382)                -13% 3,850,893               265,759          7%
       Taxes 45,459                  69,522                (24,063)                 314,988                  416,654                  (101,666)                -24% 295,278                  19,710            7%
       Group Insurance 122,773                135,775              (13,002)                 857,963                  891,792                  (33,829)                  -4% 728,858                  129,105          18%
       Pension 57,038                  91,773                (34,735)                 413,031                  428,453                  (15,422)                  -4% 353,454                  59,577            17%

Total Personnel Expenses 795,313                1,172,996          (377,683)              5,702,634              6,467,933               (765,299)               -12% 5,228,483              474,151         9%

Professional Services
       Auditing Services 5,000                    5,000                  -                        72,500                    73,500                    (1,000)                    0% 72,500                    -                  0%
       Professional Services 32,500                  91,927                (59,427)                 314,699                  612,127                  (297,428)                -49% 296,464                  18,235            6%

Total Professional Services 37,500                  96,927               (59,427)                387,199                 685,627                  (298,428)               -44% 368,964                 18,235           5%

Legal
       Salaries and Wages 32,820                  50,138                (17,318)                 240,790                  253,299                  (12,509)                  -5% 212,154                  28,636            13%
       Taxes 2,691                    2,740                  (49)                        10,500                    19,180                    (8,680)                    -45% 9,355                      1,145              12%
       Group Insurance 3,810                    5,250                  (1,440)                   23,539                    23,583                    (44)                         0% 18,484                    5,055              27%
       Pension 4,510                    8,632                  (4,122)                   33,045                    33,310                    (265)                       -1% 26,800                    6,245              23%
       Business Travel 2,452                    3,750                  (1,298)                   2,631                     5,250                      (2,619)                    -50% 3,471                      (840)                -24%
       Membership/Dues/Subscriptions 449                       2,543                  (2,094)                   2,789                     3,802                      (1,013)                    -27% 2,724                      65                   0%
       Seminars and Training -                        1,333                  (1,333)                   75                          2,333                      (2,258)                    -97% 735                         (660)                0%
       Legal Services 1,202                    21,667                (20,465)                 26,715                    149,468                  (122,753)                -82% 62,497                    (35,782)           0%

Total Legal 47,934                  96,053               (48,119)                340,084                 490,225                  (150,141)               -31% 336,220                 3,864             1%



January 2015 January 2015   FY 2015 YTD  YTD FY 2014 YTD 
Actual Budget Variances Actual Budget Variances % Actual Variances %

 SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ACTUAL VS BUDGET REPORT

JANUARY 31, 2015 & 2014

Curent Year Prior Year Comparison

General and Administrative Expenses
       Bank & Credits Cards Fees 8,226                    13,833                (5,607)                   80,246                    85,333                    (5,087)                    -6% 69,120                    11,126            16%
       Building Maintenance 10,001                  15,875                (5,874)                   53,006                    73,125                    (20,119)                  -28% 64,151                    (11,145)           -17%
       Business Travel 43,606                  50,350                (6,744)                   97,802                    142,450                  (44,648)                  -31% 72,162                    25,640            36%
       Materials & Supplies 43,817                  53,333                (9,516)                   109,356                  113,749                  (4,393)                    -4% 104,315                  5,041              5%
       Membership/Dues/Subscriptions 5,129                    30,171                (25,042)                 93,185                    95,197                    (2,012)                    -2% 107,432                  (14,247)           -13%
       Office Rent 57,772                  59,491                (1,719)                   398,671                  402,437                  (3,766)                    -1% 370,295                  28,376            8%
       Printing & Advertising 7,322                    9,496                  (2,174)                   12,568                    31,472                    (18,904)                  -60% 15,457                    (2,889)             -19%
       Seminars and Training 7,306                    13,212                (5,906)                   22,055                    92,484                    (70,429)                  -76% 21,598                    457                 2%
       Telecommunications 89,705                  100,583              (10,878)                 307,483                  309,708                  (2,225)                    -1% 239,049                  68,434            29%
       Vehicle Operations & Maintenance 8,232                    10,750                (2,518)                   33,567                    47,250                    (13,683)                  -29% 38,482                    (4,915)             -13%
       Miscellaneous Personnel Expenses 267                       11,767                (11,500)                 14,194                    19,368                    (5,174)                    -27% 3,281                      10,913            0%

Total General and Administrative Exp 281,383                368,861             (87,478)                1,222,133              1,412,573               (190,440)               -13% 1,105,342              116,791         11%

Corporate & Community Outreach Expenses
       Special Programs -                        1,000                  (1,000)                   -                         7,000                      (7,000)                    -100% -                         -                  0%
       Customer Service/Information 2,780                    9,292                  (6,512)                   32,390                    65,043                    (32,653)                  -50% 29,999                    2,391              8%
       Corporate & Community Outreach Contract 32,165                  50,667                (18,502)                 261,286                  291,668                  (30,382)                  -10% 260,076                  1,210              0%
       Promotional Materials 185                       3,417                  (3,232)                   2,227                     2,918                      (691)                       -24% 2,015                      212                 0%

Total Corporate & Community Outreach Expenses 35,130                  64,376               (29,246)                295,903                 366,629                  (70,726)                 -19% 292,090                 3,813             1%

Reserves and Transfers
       Reserve -                        41,667                (41,667)                 -                         291,669                  (291,669)                -100% -                         -                  0%
       Expenses Transferred to Capital (139,455)               (131,250)             (8,205)                   (1,143,165)              (918,750)                 (224,415)                24% (751,825)                 (391,340)         0%

-                          
Total Reserves and Transfers (139,455)              (89,583)              (49,872)                (1,143,165)            (627,081)                (516,084)               82% (751,825)                (391,340)        0%

Total Expenses 5,807,218             9,715,892          (3,908,674)           41,947,865            57,274,793             (15,326,928)          -27% 40,555,839            1,392,026      3%

Net Income -                       -                     -                       -                         -                         -                        0% -                         -                 
-                        -                      -                        -                         -                          -                         0% -                         -                  

-                          -                         



SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS

JANUARY 31, 2015

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 70,941,996$           
Accounts receivable:
    State Grants 4,096,442
    Federal Grants 27,483,307
    Counties 1,785,626
    Other 1,420,787
Prepaid expenses 488,260
     Total current assets 106,216,418

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 549,769,218
     Total noncurrent assets 549,769,218
          Total assets 655,985,636$         

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,693,416$             
Accruals 6,503,737               
Compensated absences 447,762                  
Deferred revenue 1,787,170
Due to other governmental units 117,732
     Total current liabilities 10,549,817

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 671,643                  
Deposits 8,214,060
Advances from FDOT 2,000,000
     Total noncurrent liabilities 10,885,703
          Total liabilities 21,435,520$           

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets 549,769,218           
Reserved for Capital Projects 50,583,001             
Unrestricted 34,197,897
     Total net assets 634,550,116
     Total liabilities and net assets 655,985,636$         



                                                                                                           AGENDA ITEM NO. F 

 
 

FINANCE & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 
INVOICES OVER $2,500  
 
During January 2015, the SFRTA’s Accounts Payable division processed 387 
invoices totaling $6,939,262.37 and disbursed 206 checks, excluding payroll, 
totaling $12,195,821.13. 
 
Invoices over $2,500 represent 30.6% (63checks) of all invoices processed in 
the month of January, and represent 99.4% of the value ($12,118,935.29) of 
all checks processed in January 2015. 
 
Accounts Payable processed 50.8 (32 checks) of the checks over $2,500 
within the 21-25 days, with 61.9% (39 checks) of the checks over $2,500 
processed within 30 days. 
 



SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
PAYMENT CYCLE REPORT - JANUARY 2015

FOR INVOICES $2,500 AND OVER

AGENDA ITEM NO. F

INVOICE          % INVOICE           %
CYCLE OF TOTAL CYCLE OF TOTAL

0 -10 Days 19.6% 0 -10 Days 14.2%
11-20 Days 43.9% 11-20 Days 42.5%
21-25 Days 11.6% 21-25 Days 12.8%
26-30 Days 9.7% 26-30 Days 15.3%
31-35 Days 6.5% 31-35 Days 6.5%
36-40 Days 4.0% 36-40 Days 4.4%
41-45 Days 4.2% 41-45 Days 4.1%

Over 45 Days 0.4% Over 45 Days 0.3%

MONTHLY AVERAGEMONTHLY AVERAGE
JULY 2013 TO JUNE 2014JULY 2014 TO JUNE 2015
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SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
GOVERNING BOARD MEETING: FEBRUARY 27, 2015
INFORMATION  ITEM: 
SUMMARY  OF  PAYMENTS  OVER  $2,500
JANUARY 1, 2015 TO JANUARY 31, 2015

PERCENT
INVOICE NO. OF ACCUM
CYCLE CHECKS TOTAL  %
 
0-10 days 9 14.3% 14.3%

11-20 days 16 25.4% 39.7%

21-25 days 7 11.1% 50.8%

26-30 days 7 11.1% 61.9%

31-35 days 8 12.7% 74.6%

36-40 days 10 15.9% 90.5%

41-45 days 6 9.5% 100.0%

Over 45 days 0 0.0% 100.0%

TOTAL CHECKS 63 100.0%



SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
GOVERNING BOARD MEETING:  FEBRUARY 27, 2015
INFORMATION ITEM: PAYMENTS OVER $2,500
JANUARY 1 TO JANUARY 31, 2015

RCVD APPRVD CHECK MAILED DAYS
DATE DATE DATE CHECK PROCESS VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

 
12/5/2014 12/19/2014 1/5/2015 1/6/2015 32 CSX TRANSPORTATION Bridge tender and utilities -10/11-11/17/14 22,685.16                             
12/9/2014 12/29/2014 1/5/2015 1/13/2015 35 G4S SECURE SOLUTIONS USA Cust# 006038 - w/e 12/01-12/07/14 220,852.27                           

12/11/2014 12/19/2014 1/5/2015 1/6/2015 26 MINUTEMAN PRESS Shuttle Bus 4,069.00                               
12/1/2014 12/22/2014 1/5/2015 1/6/2015 36 THOMPSON COBURN LLP File #42401/26734 2,748.94                               

1/7/2015 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 1/9/2015 2 AON RISK SERVICES INC Policy #we1400724-02 85,758.00                             
1/5/2015 1/5/2015 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 8 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT Dec Invoices 5,073.84                               

12/23/2014 12/29/2014 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 21 G4S SECURE SOLUTIONS USA Cust# 006038 -12/15-12/21/14 107,560.01                           
12/1/2014 12/11/2014 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 43 BOMBARDIER MASS TRANSIT CORPOR Contract #06-113 camera insp july, aug, sept 11,130.00                             

12/31/2014 1/7/2015 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 13 COMTO Comto ft lauderdale - fy2015 7,050.00                               
12/15/2014 12/23/2014 1/12/2015 1/12/2015 28 BV OIL COMPANY Jan. Invoices 341,319.80                           

1/13/2015 1/15/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 8 AON RISK SERVICES INC Policy# PD1060700  Term: 12/31/14-12/31/15 468,554.97                           
1/8/2015 1/13/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 13 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT Jan Invoices 8,575.14                               
1/6/2015 1/9/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 15 G4S SECURE SOLUTIONS USA 2900 Sheridan Street Meter #KNL7440 12/09/14-01/09/15 228,991.91                           

12/18/2014 12/31/2014 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 34 HDR ENGINEERING INC Contract #10-017g wo #2 inv #19 27,983.32                             
1/14/2015 1/6/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 7 TRANSDEV SERVICES, INC. Credit against inv 209 1,892,385.13                        

1/8/2015 1/9/2015 1/16/2015 1/16/2015 8 BANK OF AMERICA BOA 01/04/15 11,567.01                             
1/2/2015 1/5/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 19 ERICKS CONSULTANTS Consulting services - Dec 2014 20,500.00                             

12/15/2014 12/31/2014 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 37 MERIDIAN MANAGEMENT CORPORATIO 11/01-11/30/14 Station maintenance 150,881.28                           
12/23/2014 1/8/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 29 MIAMI DADE Oct 2014 mou fees, it recurring chgs, cc proc fees 55,557.65                             
12/19/2014 1/12/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 33 RAIL TECH CONSULTANTS INC 12/18/14 Blanket Purchase Order for Parts 3,248.00                               
12/18/2014 12/25/2014 1/26/2015 1/26/2015 39 BOMBARDIER MASS TRANSIT CORPOR Cable Replacement & Bumping Post 27,892.70                             

1/12/2015 1/20/2015 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 15 AT&T Acct #vp07jn-12/14 65,532.45                             
1/9/2015 1/20/2015 1/26/2015 1/27/2015 18 AT&T Acct #8003-000-2788 billing #cqsz893801002 25,716.64                             

1/12/2015 1/22/2015 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 18 CSX TRANSPORTATION Bridge tender and utilities -10/31-12/31/14 40,452.41                             
1/20/2015 1/22/2015 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 10 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT Acct# 66253-69530 9,149.27                               
1/20/2015 1/21/2015 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 10 G4S SECURE SOLUTIONS USA 12/29/14-01/04/15 ARMED SECURITY 216,814.99                           

1/6/2015 1/14/2015 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 24 KEOLIS TRANSIT SERVICES, LLC 12/16-12/31/14 Keolis Base Bus Service. 164,917.25                           
1/20/2015 1/21/2015 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 10 GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS FTI CONSULTING LLC Contract #13-007 matter #435679.0001 12/14 12,000.00                             
1/28/2015 1/28/2015 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 2 PROLOGIS TRUST February 2015 rent 55,680.79                             

12/23/2014 12/31/2014 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 38 ROADMASTER ENGINEERING, INC. Draw id r14-4688 6,312.00                               
12/23/2014 1/2/2015 1/29/2015 1/29/2015 37 BV OIL COMPANY Jan. Invoices 328,154.33                           

1/6/2015 1/14/2015 1/29/2015 1/29/2015 23 NATIONAL RAILROAD PASSENGER Dec 2014  Amtrak Dispatch / Incentive Contract. 286,320.00                           
1/5/2015 1/29/2015 1/30/2015 2/3/2015 29 GOODMAN PUBLIC RELATIONS INC. Fall 2014 Marketing Events -  Rail Fun Day 12,165.00                             

12/22/2014 1/26/2015 1/30/2015 2/3/2015 43 COMMUNICATIONS SPECIALIST LEVERAGE INFORMATION SYSTEMS LED Panels for VMS Signs 32,768.40                             
1/12/2015 1/27/2015 1/30/2015 2/3/2015 22 RESPECT OF FLORIDA Cust# 90-Cobrera 5,122.77                               

35 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES 4,965,490.43                        



SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
GOVERNING BOARD MEETING:  FEBRUARY 27, 2015
INFORMATION ITEM: PAYMENTS OVER $2,500
JANUARY 1 TO JANUARY 31, 2015

RCVD APPRVD CHECK MAILED DAYS
DATE DATE DATE CHECK PROCESS VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

 

12/17/2014 12/17/2014 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 21 ANSALDO STS USA, INC. Installation of voice workstations 4,007,510.08                        
12/1/2014 12/19/2014 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 37 CH2M HILL, INC. Contract #10-018-b wo #3 inv #40 82,614.67                             

12/24/2014 12/30/2014 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 14 CITY OF WEST PALM BEACH Reimb under jarc grant 052 10/27-11/23/14 18,275.40                             
12/17/2014 12/18/2014 1/5/2015 1/6/2015 20 HDR ENGINEERING INC Add funds for project manager for the Wave Modern Streetcar. 1,279,054.58                        
11/24/2014 12/19/2014 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 44 KIMLEY HORN AND ASSOCIATES Agreement# 09-007(d) work order 30 invoice 9 17,372.83                             
12/18/2014 12/25/2014 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 20 MAE VOLEN SENIOR CENTER Reimb under NF grant for month of Nov 2014 129,319.83                           
11/30/2014 12/19/2014 1/5/2015 1/7/2015 38 PARSONS BRINCKERHOFF, INC. Contract 10-017(a) work order #8 invoice #5 58,419.67                             

12/8/2014 12/19/2014 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 36 GOVERNMENT SERVICES GROUP, INC Purchase Order issued to Government Services Group, Inc. 12,951.78                             
12/11/2014 12/23/2014 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 33 HDR ENGINEERING INC Contract #09-007a wo #11 inv #1 5,582.63                               
11/30/2014 12/23/2014 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 44 KIMLEY HORN AND ASSOCIATES Contract #09-007d wo #23 inv #25 27,912.55                             

12/8/2014 12/23/2014 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 36 PARSONS BRINCKERHOFF, INC. Project 10-017(a) wo# 5 inv# 12 67,193.49                             
12/19/2014 12/23/2014 1/9/2015 1/13/2015 25 PARSONS TRANSPORTATION GROUP Contract 14-006-wave 318,160.24                           
12/10/2014 12/16/2014 1/12/2015 1/12/2015 33 BROOKVILLE EQUIPMENT CORP. Milestone SF 16-6 Rev NS U/M each 209,890.00                           
12/22/2014 12/23/2014 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 30 CH2M HILL, INC. Agreement# 10-018(b)  wo #8 inv #16 11,741.15                             
12/10/2014 12/31/2014 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 42 GANNETT FLEMING INC Contract# 10-017 (b) wo#10 inv #8 51,955.67                             
12/18/2014 12/29/2014 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 34 HDR ENGINEERING INC Contract #10-017-g work order #5 invoice #9 22,835.22                             
12/15/2014 12/31/2014 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 37 JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. Contract# 09-007c work order #14 invoice #10 6,556.82                               
12/23/2014 1/7/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 29 KIMLEY HORN AND ASSOCIATES Agreement# 09-007(d) work order 30 invoice 10 11,296.84                             
12/19/2014 1/5/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 33 PARSONS BRINCKERHOFF, INC. Project 10-017(a) wo# 5 inv# 13 43,993.33                             

1/6/2015 1/9/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 15 PEARL TRANSIT CORP Reimb of nf grant 050.  10/18-12/26/14 32,627.86                             
12/23/2014 1/14/2015 1/16/2015 1/21/2015 29 T.Y. LIN INTERNATIONAL Contract 10-017-c work order #4 invoice #3 3,189.77                               

1/16/2015 1/20/2015 1/28/2015 1/29/2015 13 CITY OF FORT LAUDERDALE Reimb of nf grant 082.09/01-09/30/14 4,733.73                               
1/8/2015 1/9/2015 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 22 KIMLEY HORN AND ASSOCIATES Contract #09-007d wo #34 inv #5 75,915.42                             

12/18/2014 1/9/2015 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 43 PARSONS BRINCKERHOFF, INC. Project# 10-18(a) wo #2 inv #15 87,698.14                             
1/13/2015 1/20/2015 1/28/2015 1/30/2015 17 USAT CORP LTE 694-960/1710-2170 MHz = 20 Feet RF-195 with SMA-plug 3,543.00                               

12/24/2014 12/30/2014 1/29/2015 1/7/2015 14 BROOKVILLE EQUIPMENT CORP. Fully compliant locomotives 209,890.00                           
1/20/2015 1/26/2015 1/30/2015 2/3/2015 14 CITY OF LAUDERHILL Reimb under JARC Grant 065- 01/13-03/14 309,126.00                           
1/22/2015 1/26/2015 1/30/2015 2/3/2015 12 SOUTH FLORIDA URBAN MINISTRIES Reimb of nf grant 082.  02/01-03/31/14 44,084.16                             

28 TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 7,153,444.86                        

Item Total 63 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES AND CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 12,118,935.29$                   



AGENDA ITEM NO. G

SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
REVENUE REPORT-JANUARY 2015

 
REVENUE -JANUARY 2015

DESCRIPTION Jan-14 Jan-15 VARIANCE %

Weekday Sales 971,013         913,546       (57,467)        -5.9%
Weekend Sales 205,622         240,456         34,835           16.9%
Other Income 20,071           77,513           57,442           286.2%

Total Revenue 1,196,706      1,231,515      34,809           2.9%
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AGENDA ITEM NO. G

SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
REVENUE REPORT- JANUARY 2015  

JANUARY JANUARY PERCENT (1)

SALES BY TICKET TYPE 2014 2015 CHANGE

Palm Beach Schools 27,550            30,750            12%

Employer Disc. Program 161,999          133,549          -18%

Group Tour Sales 838                 233                 -72.2%

Station Sales:
One-Way 440,639          439,668          -0.2%
Roundtrip 249,643          246,607          -1.2%
12 Trips 41,860            40,236            -3.9%
Monthly 59,800            64,800            8.4%
Monthly Reg. Pass 26,390            15,300            -42.0%
One-Way Discount 7,107              5,756              -19.0%
Roundtrip Discount 10,361            7,820              -24.5%
Monthly Discount 44,356            36,900            -16.8%
Monthly Disc. Reg. Pass 24,578            13,263            -46.0%
Stored Value 81,129            119,121          46.8%
Card Deposits 386                 

Total Station Sales 986,248          989,470          

Total Sales 1,176,635       1,154,002       -1.9%

AVERAGE FARE 3.06 3.11
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AGENDA ITEM NO. G

SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
FARE EVASION REPORT
AUGUST 2014 THROUGH JANUARY 2015

 

TOTAL TOTAL # OF # OF % RIDERS 
MONTH INSPECTED VIOLATIONS CITATIONS WARNINGS INSPECTED

AUGUST 2014 442,931 3,214 215 2,988 124%

SEPTEMBER 2014 465,919 3,332 198 3,124 130%

OCTOBER 2014 507,221 3,490 165 3,322 130%

NOVEMBER 2014 424,072 3,020 153 2,861 120%

DECEMBER 2014 444,040 3,197 150 3,044 123%

JANUARY 2015 442,632 3,253 193 3,060 119%

AVERAGE 454,469 3,251 179 3,067 124%

FARE EVASION % 0.73% FINES 10,635$       
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Solicitation Status Report
January 2015

AGENDA ITEM: H

H- Sol Rpt 0115 2/12/2015

Solicitation Solicitation Description of Services Advertise Document Pre-Submittal Due Date Award
Number Type Date Available Conference Bids/Proposals Contract

No Solicitations are currently being advertised for the Month of January, 2015



Contract Actions Executed
Under The Executive Director's Authority

For The Month ofJanuary 2015

AGENDA ITEM NO: I

Page 2 of 3

Contract/ Purchase Contract /Project Description Contract Amount
Order No. Action $

15-000285 CONTRACTOR: ETA PHI SYSTEMS, INC. Purchase Order $13,600.00

DESCRIPTION: Maintenance and Continuity Services of the existing GeoFocus 
Passenger Information System

15-000278 CONTRACTOR:   USAT CORP. Purchase Order $10,840.00

DESCRIPTION: WI-FI Antennas



Contract Actions Executed
Under The

Construction Oversight Committee's Authority
For The Month of January 2015

AGENDA ITEM: J

J-ConstOvrsgtCom 0115 2/12/2015

Date Signed Contract Amount
Action $

N/A No Contract Actions were executed by the Construction Oversight Committee for the Month
of January, 2015 N/A N/A

Description



























































































Contract Actions Executed
Under The General Counsel's Authority

For January 2015

AGENDA ITEM NO: N

N-ConActsLegal Jan 2015 2/17/2015

Date Signed Contract /Purchase Order No. Contract Amount Term
Action $

N/A NO ACTIVITY DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY 2015 N/A N/A N/A
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